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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWRR DM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WATTHIR + BEFERAEERSN)

Hans Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is a leading operator
in providing integrated facilities of jetties, storage tanks, warehousing and logistic services in south
China for petroleum and liquid chemicals products, offering value-added services in its own ports
and storage tank farms (the “terminal storage business”), trading of oil and petrochemical products
(the “trading business”) and operating of a filling station (the “retail business”).

ERREFARAA(ARANREANBARATARE DAERRTRZIELESN  RERBERMAAMRREL
BERZGEREED  BTEEREMYUARE  XREBFRORFFRERHEERYE ((REAMEL] -
BEhmRALER(EZEE ) REEhE ([ ZEXK]) -

TRANSSHIPMENT
L)

FILLING STATION REFINED OIL TRADE

e REAHE S
STORAGE
5 17
TERMINAL
s 58




Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEER R DT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR « BAEFBAERIN)

BUSINESS REVIEW

Terminal Storage Business

Prior to 28 May 2019, the Group owned and operated two main
liquid product terminals, namely Xiao Hu Island Terminal (“XHIT")
carried out by Guangdong (Panyu) Petrochemical Storage &
Transportation Ltd. (“GD (Panyu)”) and Dongzhou Petrochemical
Terminal ("DZIT") carried out by Dongguan Dongzhou International
Petrochemical Storage Limited (“DZ International”). Upon the
completion of the disposal of GD (Panyu) on 28 May 2019, the
Group continues to own and operate DZIT that is situated in Lisha
Island, Humen Harbour district, Shatian county, Dongguan city,
Guangdong province. DZIT was built with berths ranging from 500
to 100,000 dwt. The tank farm has a site area of approximately
516,000 square metres and is installed with 94 oil and petrochemical
tanks of a total storage capacity of approximately 260,000 cubic
metres, out of which 180,000 cubic metres are specialised for
gasoline, diesel and similar petroleum products commonly available
in trading and consumption markets. Storage tanks with capacity of
80,000 cubic metres were built for petrochemical products.

Strategic Location

The liquid product terminal of the Group is located in the Greater
Bay Area. As Guangdong province is the pioneer in economic
development of China and our terminal situates in the centre of
the economic circle of the province, such location edge attracts
customers to engage with our terminal for their distribution of
refined oils. Apart from oil products customers, there are customers
who have manufacturing plants in the Greater Bay Area. In their
business cycle, there are requirements to temporarily store their
dangerous, poisonous and hazardous goods in designated controlled
facilities with proper licences in accordance with governmental
regulations for safety and environment reasons. The customers may
store their hazardous raw materials, work-in-progress and finished
goods in our storage facilities. Our terminal employs experienced,
professional and skillful management teams with well-equipped
storage hardware. The Group persistently maintains high standards
in safety and environment protection. Our terminal is fully and
properly licensed to handle wide range of dangerous and hazardous
goods. They provide convenience to our customers to move their
products in and out of the terminal during their production cycle.
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Management Discussion.and Analysis
EEENWR DN

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BATTHIR + BEFERRERRSIN)

Revenue

The terminals earn storage income by leasing their storage tanks to
customers based on the storage tank size engaged. Apart from this,
they collect handling charges when providing services in moving
cargoes in and out from the terminals for customers, either by water
in the jetties or by road from the loading stations. Furthermore,
the terminals provide ancillary services such as tank cleaning, waste
treatment and blending to customers and earn respective fees for
the services rendered.

Key Performance Indicators

The leaseout rates and cargo throughput are the major key
performance indicators of the terminals. Higher leaseout rate should
return with higher storage income. More cargoes flows mean more
works in the terminals thus more handling fee income. The lease-out
rates and cargo throughput of DZIT during the last two years are as

follows:

Operational statistics

A
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Change

EERHRT

Liquid product terminal and REEMBER
transshipment services EHH R
Number of vessels visited REMEEE
— foreign — 4Nt
~ domestic N
Number of trucks served to pick up BWEM 2 EEHE
cargoes
Number of drums filled EREE
Transshipment volume (metric ton) e { N 7))
—oil — i
~ petrochemicals —Aftm
Terminal throughput (metric ton) EEATE(RKE)
— port jetty throughput —BEALE
— loading station throughput —HBEAFHE
Storage services KR A%

Leaseout rate — oil and petrochemical
products (%)

AR m kAt
E (%)

180 158 +13.9

434 567 -23.5
67,517 59,113 +14.2
16,250 13,297 +22.2
84,470 64,971 +30.0
96,805 129,275 -25.1
4,718,000 3,591,000 +31.4
2,551,000 2,084,000 +22.4
2,167,000 1,507,000 +43.8
98.5 912  +7.3 pointsZh
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAATTHIR + BEEHERIN)

With the unprecedented outbreak of the novel coronavirus disease
("COVID-19") in early 2020, many PRC factories suspended
operations at the beginning of this year, and the economy was
affected. Fortunately, the economic activities were resumed quickly
following the downturn in the PRC. Coupled with the completion of
the disposal of GD (Panyu) by the Group in 2019, certain premium
customers relocated all or most of their loading and storage services
from XHIT to DZIT, which boosted the terminal throughput as a
whole. Also, mutual access and collaboration between DZIT and
a surrounding port jetty commenced in the second half of 2020,
together with the introduction of light cycle oils from new customers
in early 2020 kept the ports and terminals throughputs relatively
high. As such, most of the operational statistics in DZIT have grown
as compared to last year. The average leaseout rate achieved as high
as 98.5% during the year, representing an increase of 7.3% points
over the last year.

Trading Business

Shanghai Diyou Industry Co., Ltd. ("SHDY") operates in the
trading of oil and petrochemical products and holds a refined oil
wholesale operating licence issued by the Ministry of Commerce of
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). In addition, SHDY is a
qualified supplier for major energy companies such as PetroChina,
Sinopec etc. The operational statistics of trading business during the
last two years are as follows:

Operational statistics 2020
EERIHT i St 22

Number of sale contracts entered BRIVHESREAE
Sales volume of oil and petrochemicals & & A{LE S
products (metric ton) FE N

SHDY continues to develop business with existing customers and
further develops relationships with high-quality new customers to
expand the customer base and business scale since the acquisition
in 2019. During the year ended 31 December 2020, SHDY entered
into in aggregate of 118 sales contracts, with total sale volumes of
approximately 472,000 metric ton. Despite the effect brought by the
COVID-19, sales volumes during this year were only slightly lower
than expected by about a few percentage points as a result of all-
round development of procurement and sales channels by SHDY.
The Group will actively expand its trading business, and it strives to
recover the sales volumes affected by the epidemic in 2021.
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EEENWR DN

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BATTHIR + BEFERRERRSIN)

Retail Business

The Group'’s first filling station in Zengcheng district, Guangzhou
city, the PRC has commenced its operations since April 2020.
The filling station has a site area of approximately 12,500 square
metres. Its floor area, fuel island configuration, equipment level and
construction standards all meet the standards of local flagship filling
stations. The filling station is mainly engaged in petrol filling services,
supplemented by comprehensive services such as convenience
stores, car maintenance and logistics warehouses, and providing
petrol filling related services. Cumulative sale volume has reached to
3.9 million liters since the commencement of operation from April
2020.

SEGMENT REVENUE

During the year, the Group manages its operations by three existing
reportable segment revenue from the business of (i) trading, (ii)
terminal storage and (iii) retail. The breakdown is as follows:

BEEYK
AEBMRFEEMNTIEHES@EIMBME
RZE-ZTFNAFMREE - IHuhiGi
#912,500F 5K - HAGHERE - IHER
B REKEREREESE FEYESD
N Hb [ FERES A0S h B9 K ZE o hnShs = E A
EHMARTS - BLAERIE  REEEFY
REESHEARY - UWRIREINHERES
IR - BT FMARREELR
REMHEA H3908 T -

2EHA

FR - AEBUABRB=EXENOEZS (i)
HERARE UK EEEBH A HRE DL
I AETTEIR « BADINT -

Trading Terminal Storage
g5 ERAH
2020 2019
-Bo%E
% ' §1000 % 1 %
r % %
Sales of oil and HERMRA
petrochemical &R
products 2299128 1000 162,790  100.0 - - - - - - - - 2,299,128 926 162,79 517
Storage income HRRA - - - - 11999 730 11823 T7I8 - - - - 119,999 48 11823 315
Transshipmentand ~ EBREHR
other handiing BIWA
income - - - - a5 259 3,08 211 - - - - a5 17 32,086 102
Port income AW - - = = 1832 11 1,736 1.1 - - = = 1,832 0.1 1,736 06
Revenue from ek
operating A
afilling station - - = = - - = - 18425 1000 = - 1845 08 - -
2299128 1000 162,790 1000 164353 1000 152,055 1000 18425  100.0 - - 2481906 1000 31485 1000

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's total revenue
increased significantly from $314.8 million to $2,481.9 million, an
increase by 688.3% as compared to the last year. The increase was
mainly attributable to the new segment revenue generated from
the trading business and the retail business during the year. The
trading business operated by SHDY was acquired in December 2019
that has brought a substantial increase to the Group’s revenue,
accounting for 92.6% of the Group’s total revenue during the year.
On the other hand, the retail business from the filling station has
commenced its operation since April 2020 that contributed the
revenue of $18.4 million to the Group. During the year, revenue
from the provision of terminal, storage and transshipment activities
for liquid chemicals products in DZIT was $164.4 million, an increase
by 8.1% on a year basis. The increase was mainly attributable to
the increase in storage income and transshipment income that was
arisen from the relocation of certain GD (Panyu)’'s customers from
XHIT to DZIT since last year.

HE—_ZT-_TF+_A=+—HLEFE "
NEE 7 B A H3.148(E T AR INE
24 819187T * BAFIENN688.3% © ANTY
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MBI G -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A THIR « BAEEBAERIN)

OUTLOOK

In 2020, under a pandemic environment, the Group achieved better
financial performance compared to the previous year, with an
increase of revenue and a decrease in loss per share of more than
50%. We benefited from the growth of our traditional terminal
storage business as well as the results of our newly developed
trading and filling station business. Looking forward to 2021,
each business segment of the Company will maintain a trend of
continuous growth and bring better returns to shareholders.

Terminal Storage Business

In 2020, the operating income of DZIT reached an all-time high due
to increased business volume and higher unit prices. Based on the
current development of the industry in the region, it is expected that
the development trend of the previous year will be maintained in
2021. Moreover, the mutual access and collaboration between DZIT
and the surrounding port jetty and oil terminal of Grand Resource
Co. Ltd., a public company listed on the National Equities Exchange
and Quotations, has fully commenced in the second half of 2020. It is
expected to bring the Company a revenue growth of over RMB$10
million in 2021. In 2021, the Group will continue to proactively
cooperate with the local government and relevant partners in
relation to DZIT phase two construction project and strive to make
substantial progress in establishing the project within the year.

Trading of refined oil and petrochemical products and filling
station business

Shanghai Diyou Industry Co., Ltd., which joined the Group at the
end of 2019, achieved an operating revenue of $2.3 billion in
2020, and has commenced the import trade business. Due to the
fluctuation in prices of petrochemical products and the decline
in consumption caused by the pandemic, the operating revenue
and earnings of SHDY did not reach the expected level. However,
the trading business still contributed significantly to the Group’s
overall revenue growth and contributed to part of the profit.
The commencement of the import trade has also expanded the
Company'’s customer base and boosted the trading business of the
Group's subsidiaries in Hong Kong.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (AFSTTHIR + BHFEAZERIN)

The Group'’s first joint-venture filling station was officially put into
operation in April 2020, and in the second half of 2020, the Group
achieved a net gain of over RMB10 million on transferring the right
and obligation of three filling stations lease agreements. In 2021,
the Group will continue to enlarge the number of filling station assets
operated or leased and increase the scale of operating (or leasing)
income in this segment, with a view to making the filling station
business segment a new business growth point for the Group within
3-5 years.

Investment Business

In 2020, the Company participated in a consortium of private
equity funds and acquired New World First Bus Services Limited
and Citybus Limited in Hong Kong. Subject to the lockdown and
isolation measures due to the pandemic, bus companies were in a
loss-making position as the number of passengers were reduced.
However, the board of Directors of the Company is of the view
that bus companies, as public service providers, have sable cash
flow. We estimate that when most of the world’s population are
vaccinated for COVID-19 in the second half of 2021, the pandemic
will be brought under effective control and the lockdown and
isolation measures will be gradually lifted, by then the number of
bus passengers will soon resume. Therefore, in the long run, the
investment in bus companies will generate long-term stable income
for the Group.

All'in all, in 2021, while continuing to perform well in its traditional
business, Hans Energy will continue to expand its trading and filling
station business and adhere to a diversified and flexible investment
strategy. While stabilizing the traditional industry and ensuring
stable growth, the Group will actively explore new business fields
with higher returns and strive to achieve high growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LAATTHIR + BEEHERIN)

FINANCIAL REVIEW
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s financial
performance are set out as below:

Continuing operations: HEREEK

Revenue A

Direct costs and operating expenses BN A LRI

Gross profit EH

Earnings/(loss) before interest and tax & B Fi A1 & F]/(EE)
("EBIT/ALBIT)") ([EBIT,/(LBIT)J)

Depreciation and amortisation e s

Finance costs BF TG AR

Earnings/(loss) before interest, tax, BFE - FiE - TEN
depreciation and amortisation BRI AT (EE)
("EBITDA/(LBITDA)") (TEBITDA,/(LBITDA) ])

Gross profit margin (%) EME(%)

Net loss margin (%) FEEE(%)

Basic and diluted losses per share FREARREEEE
(cents) i)

Revenue and gross profit margin

During the year, the Group’s revenue from continuing operations
was approximately $2,481.9 million (2019: $314.8 million),
representing an increase of 688.3% over the last year. The trading
business which has been acquired since last year has brought
a substantial revenue to the Group. During the year, revenue
from trading of oil and petrochemical products was $2,299.1
million, accounting for 92.6% of the Group’s total revenue. The
revenue from the provision of terminal, storage and transshipment
activities for liquid chemicals products in DZIT was $164.4 million,
representing an increase of 8.1% over the last year. The gross
profit from continuing operations was approximately $66.4 million
(2019: $41.9 million), increased by 58.6% over the last year. The
increase was mainly attributable to the new revenue from sale of
oil and petrochemical products and operating a filling station by
the Group during the year. However, the gross profit margin was
2.7%, reduced by 10.6 percentage points on a yearly basis. This was
mainly attributable to the lower gross profit margin of sale of oil and
petrochemical products diluted the overall gross profit margin of the
terminal storage business.
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B E
BE-T-TE+-A=t+-ALEE
LIS ERRIIOT

Changes
2k

%
%

2,481,906 314,845 +688.3
(2,415,509) (272,987) +784.8
66,397 41,858 +58.6
11,553 (77,891) +114.8
74,303 68,833 +7.9
49,895 49,933 -0.1
85,856 (9,058) +1,047.8
2.7 13.3  -10.6 pointsZf
-1.6 417 -40.1 pointsZh
(1.07) (3.53) -69.7
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTTHIR © BAEFHERIN

Direct costs and operating expenses

During the year, the Group’s direct costs and operating expenses
were approximately $2,415.5 million (2019: $273.0 million),
representing an increase of 784.8% over the last year, of which cost
of inventories from oil and petrochemical products were $2,309.3
million (2019: $160.4 million), accounting for 95.6% of total direct
costs and operating expenses.

EBIT and EBITDA

During the year, the Group successfully turned from LBIT to EBIT.
By excluding a special bonus to Directors of approximately $87.6
million for completion of the disposal of GD (Panyu) in 2019, the
improvement mainly was attributable to that the Group’s active
expansion of new businesses and continuous development of
existing business led to an increase in overall gross profit by 58.6%
as compared to prior year. As a result of the increase of profit,
EBITDA from continuing operations improved to $85.9 million (2019:
LBITDA of $9.1 million) and net loss margin was 1.6%, significantly
decreased by 40.1% points on a yearly basis.

Finance costs

During the year, finance costs from continuing operations amounted
to $49.9 million (2019: $49.9 million) which were mainly incurred
on the Group’s outstanding bank loans.

Taxation

The Group sustained a loss for Hong Kong profits tax purposes for
the year. The applicable tax rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2020 was 25% (2019: 25%).

Basic and diluted losses per share

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the basic and diluted loss
per share from the continuing operations was $1.07 cents (2019:
basic and diluted loss per share of $3.53 cents).
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LIQUIDITY, GEARING AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's total cash and bank balances
amounted to approximately $353.2 million (2019: $974.5 million).
Most of the funds were held in HK dollars, RMB and US dollars.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had total assets of
approximately $2,020.5 million (2019: $2,074.5 million) and net
current assets of approximately $665.4 million (2019: $999.8
million). The current ratio as at 31 December 2020 of the Group
was 2.75 (2019: 4.36). The change was mainly attributable to the
increase in short-term bank borrowing.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had outstanding bank
borrowings of $789.8 million (2019: $702.5 million). The total equity
of the Group as at 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately
$986.2 million (2019: $953.7 million). The gearing ratio (defined
as total liabilities to total assets) as at 31 December 2020 slightly
reduced to 51.2% (2019: 54.0%). The Group will continuously
consider various financial methods to improve our existing financial
position and reduce the degree of leverage of the Group.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group met its
working capital requirement principally from its business operation
and financed with facilities provided by bank. Management is
confident that the Group should have adequate financial resources
to meet its future debt repayment and support its working capital
and future expansion requirements. Due attention will be paid to
the capital and debt markets as well as the latest developments of
the Group in order to ensure the efficient use of financial resources.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

0]

14

Subscription of shares in Bravo Transport Holdings
Limited

On 21 August 2020, Glorify Group Limited (“Glorify”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a share
subscription agreement (“BTHL Share Subscription Agreement”)
with Templewater Bravo Holdings Limited (“TWB Holdings”),
Ascendal Bravo Limited (“ABL") and Bravo Transport Holdings
Limited (“BTHL"), pursuant to which each of Glorify, TWB
Holdings and ABL has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for shares (the "BTHL Share Subscription”) constituting (in
aggregate) approximately 8.6%, 90.8% and 0.6%, respectively
of the entire issued share capital of BTHL following the final
completion of the issue of such shares for the aggregate
consideration of US$15,291,826.34, US$162,319,339.43 and
US$1,050,004.70 (equivalent to approximately $119 million,
$1,258 million and $8 million), respectively.

On 21 August 2020 (immediately after signing of the BTHL
Share Subscription Agreement), BTHL (as purchaser) and NWS
Service Management Limited (“"NWS Service"”) (as seller) entered
into an acquisition agreement, pursuant to which NWS Service
has conditionally agreed to sell, and BTHL has conditionally
agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital of Bravo
Transport Services Limited (formerly known as NWS Transport
Services Limited) (“the Target Company”) for the aggregate
consideration of $3,200 million (the “Acquisition”). The Target
Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
provision of public bus and travel related services in Hong
Kong. The principal subsidiaries of the Target Company include
Citybus Limited (“Citybus”) and New World First Bus Services
Limited (“NWFB"), in which the Target Company has a direct
or indirect (as the case may be) 100% shareholding interest.
Each of Citybus and NWFB operates bus services in Hong Kong
through, among others, public bus franchises granted under
the Public Bus Services Ordinance (Cap. 230 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).

The completion of BTHL Share Subscription and the Acquisition
took place on 30 September 2020 and 15 October 2020,
respectively.
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(ii) Provision of financial assistance

On 21 August 2020, BTHL and China CITIC Bank International
Limited (“CNCBI") entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan
Agreement”), pursuant to which CNCBI (as original lender)
has agreed to grant certain loan facilities (the “Loan Facilities”)
to BTHL for the purpose of the Acquisition. As a condition
under the Loan Agreement, BTHL shall procure that Glorify,
TWB Holdings and ABL enter into a share charge (the “Share
Charge™) with CNCBI (as security agent for the secured parties/
lenders) pursuant to which, among other things, all of the
shares of BTHL held by Glorify (the “Charged Shares”) would
be charged to CNCBI as security under the Loan Facilities.
Glorify entered into the Share Charge on 9 October 2020;
and the Charged Shares were released pursuant to a deed of
release dated 24 December 2020. Accordingly, the Charged

Shares ceased to be affected by the Share Charge.

(iii) Placing of existing shares and top-up subscription for
new shares under general mandate

On 21 August 2020, the Company, Mr. David An (“Mr. An"),
the chairman, an executive director and a controlling
shareholder of the Company, and a placing agent (“the
Placing Agent”) entered into a placing and top-up subscription
agreement, pursuant to which, (a) Mr. An has agreed to
appoint the Placing Agent, and the Placing Agent has agreed
to act as agent of Mr. An and to use its best efforts to procure
purchasers for up to 175,000,000 existing shares of the
Company (the “Shares”) at the $0.33 per share (the “Placing
Price”) (the “Placing”); and (b) Mr. An has agreed to subscribe
for, and the Company has agreed to issue to Mr. An, such
amount of new ordinary Shares as being equal to the actual
number of Shares placed by the Placing Agent under the
Placing, at the Placing Price less the aggregate amount of the
expenses (the “Expenses”) attributable to each subscription

share (the “Top-up Subscription”).

The Completion of the Placing and the Top-up Subscription
took place on 27 August 2020 and 28 August 2020,

respectively.

A total of 175,000,000 Shares (the “Placing Shares”) have
been successfully placed at the Placing Price to no fewer than
six independent placees selected and/or procured by or on
behalf of the Placing Agent. The placees and their respective
ultimate beneficial owners are independent of the Company,
its connected persons and their respective associates and
not connected with any of them. None of the placees and
their ultimate beneficial owners has become a substantial
shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the

Company upon taking up the Placing Shares.
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A total of 175,000,000 new Shares (the “Subscription Shares”)
were allotted and issued to Mr. An at the net subscription
price for each Subscription Share (after deduction of the
Expenses) of approximately $0.32 for each Subscription Share.
The aggregate nominal value of the Subscription Shares was
$17,500,000. The Subscription Shares represent approximately
4.48% of the issued share capital of the Company as
enlarged by the allotment and issue of the Subscription Shares
immediately after completion of the Top-up Subscription.

The net proceeds of the Top-up Subscription were
approximately $56 million. The Company applied the net
proceeds from the Top-up Subscription in full to replenish
working capital after the BTHL Share Subscription.

Further details of the aforementioned transaction are set out in
the announcements of the Company dated 21 August 2020,
28 August 2020 and 21 October 2020.

(iv) Subscription of Limited Partnership Interest
As at 31 December 2020, total capital contribution into the
Limited Partnership was approximately $52.9 million (equivalent
to approximately US$6.8 million) as set out in note 30 to the
financial statements.

Other than the disclosed above, there was no other significant
investments, nor there was no any other material acquisitions or
disposals during the year. The Group did not have any future plans
for materials investments nor addition of capital assets during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATES AND
PRICES AND RELATED HEDGE

The Group's cash and bank balances are held predominately in
HK dollars, RMB and US dollars. Operating outgoings incurred by
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly denominated in
RMB, which usually receives revenue in RMB as well. Management
considers that the Group exposed to fluctuation in exchange rates
are not significant. Besides, prices of oil products are affected by
a wide range of global and domestic factors which are beyond
the control of the Group. The fluctuations in such prices may have
favourable or unfavourable impacts on the Group. However, the
Group mainly operated on a back-to-back sale and purchase model
to avoid the risk of oil price fluctuations. Accordingly, management
is in the opinion that the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange
rate and price risks are not significant, and hedging by means of
derivative instruments is considered unnecessary.
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Save for the above disclosed, there was no other significant risks of
exchange rates and price during the year ended 31 December 2020.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of approximately
230 employees (2019: 230), 205 (2019: 210) of which worked
for the terminals. The Group remunerates its employees based on
industry practices and individual performance and experience. Every
year, the Group devises a budget which states total salary and bonus
plan for the year to encourage the Group’s employees to contribute
their best efforts and to make maximum economic benefits to the
Group. In accordance with the relevant government regulations in
the PRC, the Group is required to cover social insurance, including
but not limited to retirement, medical, workman compensation
and unemployment insurance as well as housing fund for every
qualified employee in the PRC. With these insurance policies and
staff benefits, the Group hopes to provide a reasonable welfare
for each qualified employee. On top of the basic remuneration,
discretionary award or bonus (in cash or other forms in kind) as
may be determined by the board of Directors of the Company may
be granted to selected employees by reference to the Group's as
well as individual's performances. Details are set out in the section
of “Directors’ Report” under the paragraph headed “Share Option
Scheme” and “Share Award Scheme”.

CHARGE ON GROUP’S ASSETS

The Group has provided the lender with certain of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and interests in leasehold land and
buildings held for own use as collaterals for the banking facilities
granted. Details are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT
Details of commitments are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2020, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Directors do not recommend any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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Mr. David An, aged 61, has been the Chairman and an executive
Director of the Company since July 2002. He has many years of
experience in China business particularly in the provision trading of
petroleum products and petrochemicals, properties investments and
developments in China.

Mr. Yang Dong, aged 60, has been an executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since July 2016. Mr.
Yang joined the Company in 2012. Prior to that, he held various
senior key positions in the subsidiaries of China Petroleum &
Chemical Corporation such as the deputy general manager in China
Petrochemical International Co. Ltd. and deputy chairman and
executive director in Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited (Stock code:
934), the securities of which is listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (”Stock Exchange”). He has extensive experience
in international trade of petroleum and chemical commodities. Mr.
Yang graduated from Beijing Normal University with a degree in
Economics. He also holds a Master’s degree in Project Management
from University of Management and Technology.

Ms. Liu Zhijun, aged 53, has been an executive Director of the
Company since April 2006. Ms. Liu currently holds as the financial
controller, PRC of the Company, the deputy chairlady and financial
controller of Guangdong Petro-Chemicals Company Limited (“GD
Petro-Chemicals”) and Guangzhou Hans Energy Investment Ltd.
and the deputy chairlady of Dongguan Dongzhou International
Petrochemical Storage Limited (“DZ International”). Ms. Liu joined
GD Petro-Chemicals in 1997. Prior to that, she had worked in
various government departments and large State-owned enterprises,
including the Audit Office of Guangdong Province, China Travel
Service (Holdings) Hong Kong Limited, etc. She has more than 30
years of experience in financial management. Ms. Liu graduated
from Sun Yat-sen University in 1989 with a Bachelor’s degree in
Economics. Ms. Liu also holds the auditor qualification certificate of
speciality and technology issued by the Ministry of Personnel and
National Audit Office of the PRC.

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 55, has been an executive Director of the
Company since August 2007. Mr. Zhang joined the Company
as Chief Operating Officer, PRC in 2006. He has many years
of experience in petrochemical industry. He has expertise in
petrochemical specialized technology and is familiar with financial
accounting policy and system of the PRC. Mr. Zhang also has in-
depth knowledge in large petrochemical project management. He
had served China Petrochemical Corporation and held various key
positions such as the chief financial officer of the Singapore branch,
deputy general manager and chief financial officer of the Hong
Kong branch. Mr. Zhang graduated from Dongbei University of
Finance and Economics and obtained the qualification of engineer.
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Mr. Li Wai Keung, aged 64, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since July 2002. He is also
the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Li graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
and holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from The
University of East Asia. He is a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Li had worked for Henderson Land
Development Company Limited. He was a chief financial officer of
GDH Limited and Guangdong Holdings Limited until 31 December
2019, an executive director and company secretary of Guangdong
Land Holdings Limited (stock code: 124) until 20 February 2020 and
a non-executive director of Guangdong Investment Limited (stock
code: 270) until 28 March 2020, the securities of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Li is currently an independent non-
executive director of Shenzhen Investment Limited (stock code: 604),
China South City Holdings Limited (stock code: 1668) and Centenary
United Holdings Limited (stock code: 1959), the securities of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. Apart from the abovementioned,
Mr. Li is the standing committee member of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference Guangdong Provincial Committee.

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony, aged 49, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since May 2005. He is also
the Chairman of Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Chan is a Certified Public Accountant and owns a certified
public accounting practice. He has extensive experience in general
assurance and business advisory services in both Hong Kong and
the PRC. Moreover, Mr. Chan has extensive experience in public
listings in Hong Kong and Singapore, mergers and acquisition as
well as corporate finance. He holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from the Manchester Business School. Mr. Chan is
now an independent non-executive director of Honbridge Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8137) and the joint company secretary of
Zhejiang Canguan Instrument Group Company Limited (stock code:
1743), the securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Apart from the abovementioned, he resigned as an independent
non-executive director of Wai Chun Mining Industry Group
Company Limited (stock code: 660) and Wai Chun Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1013) with effect from 6 November 2020, the
securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Woo King Hang, aged 59, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since 28 June 2019. He is also
a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. Mr. Woo has extensive experience in
financial and business management. He worked as an executive
director of Bamboos Health Care Holdings Limited (stock code:
2293) from May 2019 to July 2019. He was also a project controller
of NWS Service Management Limited from January 2019 to April
2019 and served as a financial controller from February 2006 to
June 2010 and an executive director from July 2010 to December
2018 in Hip Hing Construction Company Limited. Both companies
are the wholly owned subsidiaries of NWS Holdings Limited (stock
code: 659). Apart from the abovementioned, he has been appointed
as vice chairman and non-executive director in Centenary United
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1959) since 20 May 2020, the
securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Woo is
a fellow member of the Institute of the Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He holds a
Master’s degree of Business Administration from Kellogg Graduate
School of Management, Northwestern University and the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology, a Bachelor’'s degree of
Laws from Peking University and a Master’'s degree of Laws from
the City University of Hong Kong. Apart from the abovementioned
Mr. Woo is a member of the panel of assessors and the Health
Committee of the Medical Council of Hong Kong, the Chiropractors
Council, the Chinese Medicine Practitioners Board of the Chinese
Medicine Council of Hong Kong and the disciplinary committee of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also
a council member of the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra and the vice
chairman of the Hong Kong PHAB Association.
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Mr. Li Xiao Hui, aged 52, is the director and chairman of DZ
International. Mr. Li has extensive knowledge and experience in
technology and operating management of oil and petrochemicals
storage. He also holds a Master’s degree of corporate management
from Liaoning Shihua University (formerly named as #EJIE45 5t £5%).

Mr. Huang Bo Heng, aged 44, is the director and general manager
of DZ International. He graduated from Guangdong Petroleum
School (B AAEHR) in 1997. Mr. Huang has solid knowledge and
many years of experience in technology, construction project and
operating management of oil and petrochemicals storage. He is now
fully responsible for the production and safety of DZIT.

Mr. Deng Zhi Gang, aged 47, is the director and deputy general
manager of DZ International. Mr. Deng obtained a Master’'s degree
in Business Administration from University of San Francisco. He has
many years of experience in trading and marketing in the business
of storage for oil and petrochemical products.

Mr. Cui Ming, aged 64, is the chairman and general manager of
SHDY. Prior to that, Mr. Cui was the deputy general manager of
the sales department of i A{rZE /A R]. He has been engaged in
the sales of petroleum products for a long time and has extensive
experience in the sales and marketing management of petroleum
products.

Mr. Han Ming, aged 49, is the deputy general manager of SHDY.
Prior to that, Mr. Han graduated from Heilongjiang Institute of
Commerce, where he majored in oil storage and transportation
operation. Mr. Han has many years of experience in business
operation and import and export customs of cargoes.

Mr. Nie Yu Hua, aged 53, is the director and financial controller
of DZ International. Mr. Nie is an International Certified Internal
Auditor, a member of the Chinese Institute of Certificate Public
Accountants and has professional accountant qualification in
PRC. He has over 15 years financial management experiences in
large state owned enterprises, and has worked as a senior project
manager in a renowned accounting firm.
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Mr. Choy Chak Wa, Peter, aged 63, has been the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company since September 2017. Mr. Choy graduated
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and holds a Master’s
degree in Management from Imperial College London. He is
a fellow member of The Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Choy
has held numerous executive positions across a wide spectrum of
industries including manufacturing, university education, non-profits
organisation, garment, audio-visual equipment trading, as well as
civil engineering consultancy company. Prior to joining the Company,
he held as a regional controller in Fugro Holdings (HK) Limited. He
has extensive experience in accounting and financial management
in both Hong Kong and across the Greater China Region. On top of
his professional career, Mr. Choy was awarded the Bronze Medal by
The Chartered Institute of Management Accountants to recognise
his outstanding contribution. He is currently a member of the HKSAR
Inland Revenue Department Users” Committee.

Ms. Lam Lai Wan, Bondie, aged 45, has been the Company
Secretary of the Company since February 2017. Ms. Lam joined the
Company in 2008 and is currently the financial controller of the
Company. Graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy, she is a fellow member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants as well as a member
of Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. Ms. Lam has
extensive experience in accounting and financial management for
the listed companies in Hong Kong and Singapore and had worked
in numerous reputable international accounting firms.
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The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its
business in compliance with the principles and code provisions (the
“Code Provisions”) set out in the corporate governance Code (the
“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). The board of Directors
(the “Board”) is of the view that throughout the year, the Company
has complied with the CG Code except for the deviation from Code
Provisions E.1.2 and which deviation is explained in the relevant part
of this annual report.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG
Code.

THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the
division of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and
plans with a view to enhance shareholder interests while the day-to-
day operations of the Company are delegated to the management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”), with a view to ensuring
that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the chief executive and the
senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the chief executive and the senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

As at 31 December 2020, the Board comprised seven members,
including four executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. David An (Chairman and Member of Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Yang Dong (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Liu Zhijun

Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs")
Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee and Member of Nomination Committee)
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony (Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Woo King Hang (Member of Remuneration Committee,
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three INEDs with at least one INED
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.
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INEDs

The INEDs bring a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experiences and independent judgement to the Board. Through
active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing
issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on Board
committees, all INEDs make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
INED in respect of his independence pursuant to the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
has assessed his independence and concluded that all INEDs are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of
Directors.

Under Code Provision A.4.1, the non-executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Each of the
INEDs has entered into an appointment letter with the Company for
a term of three years from their date of appointment.

Pursuant to the Company’s memorandum and article of association,
all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years at the Company’s general meeting and any Directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting after his/her appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting.

Pursuant to Article 116 of the Company’s memorandum and articles
of association, Mr. Yang Dong, Ms. Liu Zhijun and Mr. Li Wai Keung
shall retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Every newly appointed Director will receive comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment,
so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully
aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

—ToTHEFH EBRFRARAE

BYFHTES
BIUFATEERETEFTREETR
XM ERANE - K RIB HIE -
BREEE2NETEEH - NP REET
SnFRZEEFENBEEACKHEE
EZEZBENE  2RBUINTERY
BREEARREEHZ S EZER °

ARRERESBLIFNTESRELT
RRIE3IBGRMERIBI I Z IR
BIYMEHZ FEERER - ARACH
ZEBIM  URSERBIUIIFATES
REMRANZ EERE BB

B EERBEEHE
ARADHEEZ EERBTE - BT
Ex B R -

RIBEFANEEA 415 - FETESER
BEEERERE - HABEEE - KB
FPTEFRERARFRITLELRERBR
ARH=FNEREE -

REARB 2ABERAMLAR - A
EEHARIEB_FRARAZERKRE
F®mERE—R BEMEEFESEENU
ERERERIETSHECEENES
FRAFABEEE TERRBAFAE - #
AR e LB & -

REAQAREAHBEERARAANE116
G BEEE  BXEELEREZEBRLEE
BREBRITZBREBFAS FHEFR
T EREFEERRE LB REF -

EECRHRERERE
BEARRECETARARZER  £2
BX2H  EARESTEZRBREHE -
AREIR (558 2 B AR AN A B 2 R 75 S & fE
YRS MABFRZEERN LETRAUNEH
EERPIA N 2E

25



Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. Reading material on relevant topics will be issued to
Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code Provision
A.6.5 on Directors’ training. During the year, all Directors attended
seminars, conferences and webcasts relevant to the Group's
business, operations, risk management, corporate governance,
directors’ duty and responsibilities and other relevant topics
organised by various professional institutes and bodies. In addition,
relevant reading materials on new or salient changes to laws and
regulations applicable to the Group have been provided to all
Directors for their reference and studying.

The participation by individual Directors in the continuous
professional development programme during the year ended 31
December 2020 is recorded in the table below:
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T

Attending

seminars/

conferences/

Reading webcasts

HEAE

Name of Directors EEHR BEE R 28 HLEE

Executive Directors HiTEE

Mr. David An BIESE 4 4

Mr. Yang Dong 525 v v

Ms. Liu Zhijun BIEF L+ v 4

Mr. Zhang Lei SRERSE v/ v
INEDs BUIHHTEE

Mr. Li Wai Keung FEEREE 4 4

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony PR 5T A& v 4

Mr. Woo King Hang HASELAE v 4
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Board Meetings
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance
Six Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 December

2020.

The individual attendance (either in person or through other
electronic means of communication) record of each director
at the meetings of the Board, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee during the year

ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:
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NBE-F-FF+-A=+-ALE
B BEZRESE  REEET - b
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FHE S B BEMEFBNA N ) et
T

Attendance/Number of Meetings held

during the tenure of directorship

RESEHRHRE CETEBRY

Annual
Nomination Remuneration Audit General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Directors £z Ezg REZES FHEES BRZEEE RRBFAS
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. David An BExE
(Chairman of the Board) (EZFE21FE) 5/6 NATRER 22 NATE 0/1
Mr. Yang Dong BEEE
(Chief Executive Officer) (TR 48 6/6 NATER NAT @A NATER /1
Ms. Liu Zhijun AFXELL 6/6 NATNER N/ATNE A NATEA n
Mr. Zhang Lei RELE 6/6 N/ATEF N/AT S FB N/AT S FB 01
INEDs BUIHITEE
Mr. Li Wai Keung TREKE 6/6 11 212 33 17
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony R 6/6 11 212 33 17
Mr. Woo King Hang HEE%E 6/6 11 22 33 17
Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held BEZEHIEs - FRERFEIMBIESTAE

meetings with the INEDs without the presence of executive Directors
during the year pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.7.
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the
Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial position
of the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.
The Board and each Director also have separate and independent
access to the senior executives whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable
time after each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s memorandum and articles
of association also contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

Company Secretary

Ms. Lam Lai Wan, Bondie is the Company Secretary. According to
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, she has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December
2020. The biographic of Ms. Lam is set out in the section headed
“Profile of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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Board Diversity Policy
The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”)
on 29 August 2013.

All Board appointments will be based on merits, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates for Board
membership will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, experience, cultural and
educational background, expertise, skills and know-how.

The Nomination Committee will review the Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of such policy.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven Directors.
One of them are female, three of them are INEDs, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management process.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO") should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

The Company complies with the Code Provision A.2.1, the positions
of the Chairman and CEO are segregated and are held by Mr.
David An and Mr. Yang Dong respectively. These positions have
clearly defined separate responsibilities. Mr. David An will focus
on the overall strategic planning and business development of the
Group, whereas Mr. Yang Dong will be responsible for the overall
management, administrative functions and day-to-day business
operations of the Group.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG
Code.
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The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

All the three INEDs are the members of the Nomination Committee
and Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors, and assessment of the independence of the
INEDs.

The Nomination Committee will reference to the Board nomination
policy (the “Nomination Policy”) adopted by the Group on 21
December 2018 for selecting and recommending candidates for
directorships.

Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select and recommend
candidate(s) for directorships to the Board by giving due
consideration to criteria, having due regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board, including but not limited to gender, age,
experience, cultural and educational background, expertise, skills and
know-how, sufficient time to effectively carry out their duties, their
services on other listed and non-listed companies should be limited
to reasonable numbers, qualifications including accomplishment
and experience in the relevant industries the Company’s business
is involved in, independence, reputation for integrity, potential
contributions that the individual(s) can bring to the Board and
commitment to enhance and maximise shareholders’ value.
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Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for
the appointment of a Director in accordance with the following
procedures and process:

(a)

By giving due consideration to the current composition and size
of the Board, develop a list of desirable skills, perspectives and
experience at the outset to focus the search effort;

To consult any source it deems appropriate in identifying or
selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals from existing
directors, advertising, recommendations from an independent
agency firm and proposals from shareholders of the Company
with due consideration given to the criteria;

To adopt any process it deems appropriate in evaluating the
suitability of the candidates, such as interviews, background
checks, presentations and third-party reference checks;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship,
the Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by
way of written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the
recommendation to the Board for appointment;

To make the recommendation to the Board in relation to
the proposed appointment and the proposed remuneration
package;

The Board will have the final authority on determining the
selection of nominees;

In order to be eligible to be elected as Director at any general
meeting, the candidate should be recommended by the Board;
or a notice in writing by a member of the Company given
his intention to propose such candidate, and also a notice in
writing by the candidate of his willingness to be elected; and

In the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors by giving
due consideration to the overall contribution and service to
the Company of the retiring Directors including his attendance
of Board meetings and, where applicable, general meetings,
and the level of participation and performance on the Board;
and whether the retiring Director(s) continue(s) to satisfy the
criteria, thereafter recommend retiring Director(s) to the Board
for re-appointment. The Nomination Committee and/or the
Board shall then make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed re-election of Director at the general
meeting.
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The Nomination Committee met once during the year ended
31 December 2020 to (i) ensure that the Board has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate to meet the requirements
of the business of the Company; and (ii) review and recommend
the re-appointment of Directors standing for re-election at the
Company’s 2020 annual general meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Chairman of the Board and all three INEDs are the members of
the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Li Wai Keung is the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages and the remuneration policy and structure
for all individual Directors and senior management; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.

The human resources department is responsible for collection
and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration. The Remuneration Committee consults the Chairman
and/or the CEO of the Company about these recommendations on
remuneration policy, structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee convened two meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2020 to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all three INEDs (all of them possess
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise) and Mr. Li Wai Keung is the
chairman of the Audit Committee. None of the members of the
Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items before submission to the Board;

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and
terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of external
auditors;

(c) To review the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems;

(d) To review the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control measures, including the functions of
account and financial reporting, reviewing the adequacy of the
Group's human resources, staff qualifications and experiences,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting functions; and

(e) To review arrangements by which employees of the Company
may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional
advice if considers necessary.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended
31 December 2020 to (i) review audited annual financial results
for the year ended 31 December 2019 and unaudited interim
financial results for the six months ended 30 June 2020; (ii) review
financial reporting, risk management and internal control and
compliance procedures; and (iii) review the scope of work and make
recommendations on the appointment of the auditors.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision D.3.1.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board reviewed
and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
directors and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code
and disclosure in this annual report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors.

Specific enquiry has been made to all Directors and all of them have
confirmed that they have fully complied with the Model Code and
there was no event of non-compliance throughout the year ended
31 December 2020.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms
no less exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to possess inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company throughout the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements and
Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing

the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 92 to 99.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company
in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was set out in note 5(c) to the financial
statements.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

Responsibility

The Company has maintained an internal control system and
its implementation has been considered effective by the Audit
Committee and the Board. In addition, the Audit Committee has
communicated with external auditors of the Company to understand
if there is any material control deficiency. Nevertheless, the Company
will review the need for an internal audit function on an annual
basis.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control system and has overall
responsibility for reviewing and maintaining an adequate and
effective risk management and internal control systems to safeguard
the interests of the shareholders and the assets of the Company and
reviewing its effectiveness on an annual basis.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure
with defined lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of
responsibility and authority to the senior management.

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework

The Group’s risk management framework adapts an integrated
bottom-up and top-down risk review process. The top-down risk
review process covers overseeing, identification, assessment and
mitigation of risk at corporate level while the bottom-up risk review
process covers identification, assessment and mitigation of risk
at business unit level and across functional areas. The integrated
risk review process is to enable comprehensive identification and
prioritization of all material risks throughout the Group, escalation
of material risks at the right managerial level, effective risk dialogue
among the management, and proper oversight of risk mitigation
efforts.
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The Group’s internal control framework, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls
is established. The internal control framework also provides for
identification and management of risk.

The management is accountable to the Board for operating and
monitoring the system of internal control and for providing assurance
to the Board that it has done so. The Board forms its own view on
effectiveness after due and careful enquiry based on the information
and assurances provided to it.

The Company improves its business and operational activities by
identifying the areas of significant business risks via a regular review
and taking appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks.
The management of the Company reviews all significant control
policies and procedures and highlights all significant matters to the
Board and Audit Committee.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Controls Effectiveness
During the year under review, the Group has performed the risk
management and internal control review of the Group. The Board
and the Audit Committee have reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group's system of internal controls on all major operations and
considered the Group’s internal control system is designed to
provide reasonable assurance, thereby minimizing risks and allowing
the Group's business objectives to be achieved optimally. The Board
and the Audit Committee considered that the risk management and
internal control system was operating effectively during the year.

To safeguard the interests and rights of shareholders, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual directors.
All resolutions proposed at the shareholders’ meetings are voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules. The poll results are also posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company immediately
after the relevant shareholders’ meetings.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERRSE

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders
Pursuant to Article 72 of the Company’s memorandum and articles
of association, general meetings shall be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more members of the Company deposited
at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
or, in the event that the Company ceases to have such a principal
place of business, the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting, the requisitionists
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may convene the extraordinary
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association or the Cayman Islands Companies Law
for shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer
to the procedures posted on the Company’s website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.
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Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address:  Unit 2608, 26th Floor, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Email: info@hansenergy.com.hk

The Group has set out the procedures and internal controls for
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to compile
with Code Provision C.2.4(e).

There are guidelines to the Directors, officers and all relevant
employees of the Group to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent
the Company from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements.
It also includes appropriate internal control and reporting systems to
identify and assess potential inside information.

Key procedures in place include:

e define the requirements of periodic financial and operational
reporting to the Board and Company Secretary to enable them
to assess inside information and make timely disclosures, if
necessary;,

e controls the access to inside information by employees on a
need-to-know basis, and safeguarding the confidentiality of the
inside information before it is properly disclosed to public; and

e procedures of communicating with the Group’s stakeholders,
including shareholders, investors, analysts, etc. in ways which
are in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The Group has also established and implemented procedures to
handle enquiries from external parties related to the market rumours
and other Group’s affairs.

To avoid uneven dissemination of inside information, the
dissemination of inside information of the Company shall be
conducted by publishing the relevant information on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.
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The shareholders’” meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board, all INEDs, and the chairmen of all
Board committees (or their delegates) and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, are available at the general meetings
to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

Under the Code Provision E.1.2, the chairman of the Board should
attend the annual general meeting. The Chairman and some of the
Directors were unable to attend the last annual general meeting
held on 21 May 2020 due to business engagement. They will use
their best endeavour to attend all future shareholders’ meetings of
the Company.

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to its
memorandum and articles of association. The Company places great
emphasis to enhance communications and relationships with its
investors as the Company’s policy to maintain timely and effective
communications with their shareholders. This is crucial aspect of
good corporate governance, and part of the statutory and regulatory
regime. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue
with existing shareholders and potential institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.
Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a
website at www.hansenergy.com, where extensive information and
updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are posted.
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Directors’ Report

ESHRE

The Board is hereby presented to present the annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

Save for the operating filling stations commenced during the year,
there were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's
principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group's business are set out in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages
4 to 17 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
21 December 2018. According to the Dividend Policy, in deciding
whether to propose any dividend payout, the Board shall also take
into account, inter alia:

the Group'’s actual and expected financial performance;
° shareholders’ interests;

e retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the other members of the Group;

e the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity
and financial covenants to which the Group is subject;
e possible effects on the Group's creditworthiness;

e any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group’s lenders;

e the Group's expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

e liquidity position and future commitments at the time of
declaration of dividend;
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e  taxation considerations;
e  statutory and regulatory restrictions;
e general business conditions and strategies;

e general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Company; and

e other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend and/or modify the Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy
shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/
or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time
or from time to time.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 100.

Taking into account of the cash requirement for the repayment of
bank loan of the Group and its business development, the Directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

The amounts and particulars of material transfers to and from
reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are set
out on the consolidated statement of changes in equity and in note
26 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution represented the share premium and accumulated losses
(net of treasury shares held under the share award scheme) which
in aggregate amounted to approximately HK$649 million (2019:
approximately HK$602.0 million).
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 212. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in share capital of the Company during the
year, together with the reasons thereof, are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. David An (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Dong (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Liu Zhijun

Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Li Wai Keung

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony

Mr. Woo King Hang

Pursuant to Article 116 of the Company’s memorandum and articles
of association, Mr. Yang Dong, Ms. Liu Zhijun and Mr. Li Wai Keung
shall retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Directors’ biographical details are set out in the section headed
"Profile of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

A list of directors who have served in the board of the Company’s
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this annual report is kept at the Company’s registered office
and is available for inspection by the members of the Company
during the business hours.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND APPOINTMENT LETTERS
Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of twelve months which shall continue
thereafter unless and until either party serves the termination notice
by giving not less than three months” written notice to the other.

Each of the INEDs has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from their date
of appointment, which can be terminated by either party giving
not less than one month notice in writing to the other party. Each
of the INEDs is subject to the provisions for retirement by rotation
and re-election at the AGM in accordance with the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association. The term of office of each
of the INEDs is the period up to his retirement as required by the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report, no Directors are considered to have interests, either
directly or indirectly, in a business which competes or is likely to
compete with the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing
Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors
of the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout
this year. In addition, the Company has taken out and kept in force
appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and their associates or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

EERTETHRAEBRARFRSG - HE

R REERT 2EERAR

R_E-_TF+_A=+—H BFK=E
BITRABRARRI RS ZHE ARHE
R EE (TR R EF B KR F
HEREEED ) EXVED) 25 - HER
DREEED  EEEREESFRAEK
1§|J%XV*B%7&8"*K%E@$ A) MR P
ZHERSRAR  RERARBEESENEE
1l%f§lJ%3521lm%EmﬁEZEuEﬂ%WZ%ﬁT%
Mogka - RERE ETARRMER10ATEIE
ESTAPRE BITAME ARG KB FT 2 7
HEKBIAT

RAERXBDRGREABRDHEFR
RABEREE0.108 T 2 EBR

Approximate
percentage to
the issued share
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Name of Director  Capacity of shares Company
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Mr. David An Founder of a discretionary trust 2,548,203,980 64.40%
EE FREEFEIIBA (Note #f2)

Beneficial owner 218,390,000 5.52%

EaHBAA

Note: Mr. David An (“Mr. An") was taken to be interested in those shares by
virtue of being a founder of a discretionary trust. Those shares are held
directly as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise Investments Ltd.
("Extreme Wise") and 2,338,430,000 shares by Vand Petro-Chemicals
(BVI) Company Ltd. (“Vand Petro-Chemicals”). Both companies are
wholly-owned by Julius Baer Family Office & Trust Ltd. (“Julius Baer")
which is a trustee of the discretionary trust. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
An is deemed to be interested in the 2,548,203,980 shares.

On 23 December 2020, 243,763,800 options carrying the rights to
subscribe for 243,763,800 shares were granted to Mr. An under the
Share Option Scheme of the Company adopted on 28 December 2012
subject to the independent shareholders’ approval at an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 25 January 2021 (the
"EGM"). Such grant was approved by the independent shareholders
at the EGM. Details of Mr. An’s and other Directors’ interests in the
share options granted by the Company are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions), or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which are required, pursuant
to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and
Chief executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company”, “Share Option Scheme”
and “Share Award Scheme”, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2020 were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debts securities (including debentures) of
the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouses or
children under he age of 18, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiary, or
holding company or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding company
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Director had a
material interest, whether directly and indirectly, subsisting at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Company did not enter into or have
any management and administration contracts in respect of the
whole or any principal business of the Company.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no transactions which were required to be disclosed as
connected and related party transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INEDs

The Company had received from each of the INEDs the annual
written confirmation of his independence pursuant to the rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all INEDs are
independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, shareholders (other than Directors or
chief executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed to
have interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company which have been disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register of interests required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company
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Number share capital

Name of shareholders of shares of the Company
ERDRE BT

RN A BB EE BRANBNE DL
Mr. An B %5 & (Note A1) 2,766,593,980 69.92%
Julius Baer 2,548,203,980 64.40%
Vand Petro-Chemicals 2,338,430,000 59.10%
Extreme Wise 209,773,980 5.30%

Note: The shares are held directly as to 218,390,000 shares by Mr.
An personally, as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise and
2,338,430,000 shares by Vand Petro-Chemicals. Both companies are
wholly-owned by Julius Baer which is the trustee of a trust and Mr.
An is a founder of a discretionary trust. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. An
is deemed to be interested in the 2,766,593,980 shares. Mr. An is a
director of Extreme Wise, Vand Petro-Chemicals and the Company.

On 23 December 2020, 243,763,800 options carrying the rights to
subscribe for 243,763,800 shares were granted to Mr. An under the
Share Option Scheme of the Company adopted on 28 December 2012
subject to the independent shareholders’ approval at the EGM. Such
grant was approved by the independent shareholders at the EGM on
25 January 2021.

46

BiaE

TR ERFH218,390,000/k RE ST EE

EE AR - 209,773,980 HHExtreme
Wise H # 35 B & 2,338,430,000 % Bl F
Vand Petro-ChemicalsE A - BERA
Al MIulius Baer2E#H  HAERZ
ZEA - MBSLEBEEETABA - 1B
BEHFRBERD - BXEREAERZ
2,766,593,980 A% ik th R B i o &5k
4 A Extreme Wise * Vand Petro-Chemicals
RARRZESE -

RZZT-_TF+_A=+=8 " REARQ
AN-—E——F+=-A=-+/\BEMNE
REHERTE] - M St A 1R H243,763,8001%
B #5518 1) A 52 8 243,763,800 AL AL 17 H B
AR#E - R BI R RRIFRAE® £
Bk - ZBRHER _E-—F—A=-+H
BERESRIAS FEE AR HLE -

HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



EEHE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company has
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or the chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

During the year, apart from the “Share Option Scheme” and “Share
Award Scheme” of the Company as disclosed below, no equity-
linked agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered
into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year are set out below:

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 28 December 2012,
the Company adopted a Share Option Scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) in place of the old share option scheme. The summary of
the Share Option Scheme is stated as follows:

1.  Purpose:
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to recruit and retain high-caliber employees and
attract resources that are available to the Group and to provide
the Company with a means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to such
persons who contribute or may bring benefit to the Group.

2. Participants:
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may at their
discretion grant options to any eligible participant including any
Director, employee and senior management of the Company or
any subsidiaries from time to time to subscribe for the shares of
the Company (the “shares”).

3. Total number of shares available for issue under the

Share Option Scheme and percentage of issued share
capital:
The maximum number of shares in respect to which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 373,263,800
shares, being 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
on the date of adopting the Share Option Scheme. The limit
may be refreshed at any time provided that the new limit must
not be in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of the shareholders’ approval in
general meeting. However, total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time.
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On 30 August 2018, the Company had granted 127,500,000
options carrying the rights to subscribe for an aggregate of
127,500,000 shares, of which 3,000,000 options had been
lapsed, 2,000,000 options had been forfeited, 49,000,000
options have been exercised by the relevant grantees on 30
October 2020 respectively, with 73,500,000 options remain
outstanding.

On 23 December 2020, the Company granted 5,000,000
options carrying the rights to subscribe for 5,000,000 shares
to Mr. Zhang Lei ("Mr. Zhang”), an executive Director of the
Company and 243,763,800 options carrying the rights to
subscribe for 243,763,800 shares to Mr. An, the chairman of
the Board, an executive Director and a substantial shareholder
of the Company. The said grant of options to Mr. An was
subject to the approval by the independent shareholders at the
EGM. Upon the completion of the grant of the options to and
acceptance thereof by the grantees, the Company had utilised
100% of the existing maximum number of shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme. Accordingly, the
Company has sought the approval by its shareholders for the
refreshment of the Share Option Scheme mandate limit at the
EGM.

On 25 January 2021, the independent shareholders of the
Company have approved the said grant of 243,763,800 options
carrying the rights to subscribe for a total of 243,763,800
shares to Mr. An and the refreshment of the Share Option
Scheme Mandate Limit was approved by the Company’s
shareholders at the EGM.

As at 31 December 2020, the maximum number of shares
available for issue pursuant to the Share Option Scheme were
243,763,800 shares, representing approximately 6.16% of
the issued share capital of the Company. Immediately after
the EGM, the maximum number of shares available for issue
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme under the refreshed
Scheme Mandate Limit were 395,663,800, being 10% of the
total number of issued shares as at the date of passing the
resolution approving the said refreshment at the EGM.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant:

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue on the last date of
such 12-month period unless approval of the shareholders
of the Company has been obtained in accordance with the
Listing Rules. Options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive Directors in excess of 0.1% of the
issued share capital of the Company or with a value in excess
of HK$5 million in the 12-month period must be approved in
advance by the shareholders of the Company.

The periods within which the shares must be taken up
under an option:

Subject to the Share Option Scheme, the share options
may be exercised at any time during the exercise period. All
options granted prior to the termination of the Share Option
Scheme and not then exercised shall continue to be valid and
exercisable subject to and in accordance with terms of the
Share Option Scheme.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised:

Options may be exercised at any time from date of grant of the
share option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as
may be determined by the Directors.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments of calls
must or may be made or loans for such purpose must be
paid:

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Directors, provided that
it shall be at least the higher of: (i) the closing price per share
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange
on the date of the grant of the share options; (ii) the average
closing price per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant of the options; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.
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The remaining life:

The Share Option Scheme remains in force for a period of
10 years from adoption of such scheme and expires on 27
December 2022.

Details of the movements of the share options during the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set as below:

9. FgRHEA :
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During the year
Exercise Qutstanding A Qutstanding at
Date of Exercise price at 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December
Eligible person grant period HKS  Note 20 Granted Exercised [apsed 2020
2E e
f1iE -A-A +ZR=1+-H
REBAL RiEs Ay B ME EAOR BRH Bk BEE/AR HAOR
Executive Directors ~ #{7EE
Mr. Yang Dong LS 3000872018 300082019-29/082028  0.36 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
s, Liu Zhijun UrEnt 3000872018 300082019-29/08208  0.236 18,000,000 - - - 18,000,000
Mr. Zhang Rk 300082018 300082019-29/08208  0.236 18,000,000 - (18,000,000 - -
8122000 231202020-2212205 0400 1 - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
Independent non- BukyEs
executive Directors
W Li Wai Keung FEBEE 30082018 30082019-2908208 0236 3,000,000 - - - 3000000
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony -~ BIRE 4 30/0872018  300082019-29/0812028 0.236 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
62,000,000 5,000,000 (18,000,000) - 49,000,000
Employees ] 30/082018  300082019-29/0812028 0.236 60,500,000 - (31,000,000 - 29,500,000
122,500,000 5,000,000 (49,000,000} - 78,500,000
Note: Bf3E
1. 5,000,000 options carrying the rights to subscribe for 5,000,000 shares 1. 5,000,00017 75 # %1 7] 52 #% 5,000,000 f%
were granted to Mr. Zhang on 23 December 2020. The exercise price BPHERER_Z_TF+_A-+=
of each option is HK$0.400 per share. The options shall be vested and HEsREERE - BHOBRENITEER
exercisable from 23 December 2020 to 22 December 2025. TAR0.400% T - ZEBBREBNR - =
THE+-_A=-+=RE-T-HF+=A
—t-EBBRATFIE -
2. On 23 December 2020, the Company granted 243,763,800 options 2. RZZ_ZTF+_A=+=H - KRRIMA
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carrying the rights to subscribe for 243,763,800 shares were granted to
Mr. An subject to the independent shareholders’ approval at the EGM.
The independent shareholders approved the said grant of share options
at the EGM. The exercise price of each option is HK$0.400 per share.
The options shall be vested and exercisable from 25 January 2021 to
22 December 2025.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, 5,000,000 options
carrying the rights to subscribe for 5,000,000 shares was granted
to Mr. Zhang. 243,763,800 options carrying the rights to subscribe
for 243,763,800 shares was granted to Mr. An subject to the
independent shareholders’ approval at the EGM which was
approved by the independent shareholders at the EGM on 25
January 2021. During the year, a total of 49,000,000 share options
have been exercised by the grantees and no share option was
cancelled or lapsed by the relevant grantees. As at 31 December
2020, the number of share options outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme was 78,500,000 (31 December 2019: 122,500,000).
Immediately after the EGM, the Company had 322,263,800 share
options outstanding.

Share Award Scheme

The Company has adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 15 April 2019 (the “Adoption Date”). The
summary of the Share Award Scheme is stated as follows:

1.  Purpose:
The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to retain
participants and to encourage them to make contributions to
the growth and development of the Group.

2. Participants:
Pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme (the “Scheme
Rules”), the Board may grant an award to anyone (other than
any excluded participant) who is an employee, Director, or
consultant of any member of the Group.

3. Administration:

The Share Award Scheme is subject to the administration of
the Board in accordance with the Scheme Rules. The Board has
a discretion to determine the terms of the award. The Board
may engage one or more trustees in the process of granting,
administrating and/or vesting any awards, and the Board may
at its discretion delegate such powers and/or functions relating
to the administration of the Share Award Scheme to the trustee
as the Board thinks fit.
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Duration:
The Share Award Scheme will terminate on the 10th anniversary
of the Adoption Date or such earlier date as the Board may
determine.

Maximum limits:

The number of shares which may be held by the trust at any
one time (taken together with all unvested awarded shares
granted under the Scheme Rules) shall not be more than 5% of
total numbers of issued shares (i.e. 197,831,900 shares) at the
date of grant of the award.

Operation:

The Board may, from time to time remit funds to the trustee
for the purposes of the Share Award Scheme, and such money
will form part of the trust fund. The Board may instruct the
trustee to purchase the number of shares underlying the award
from the open market (either on-market or off-market) and the
trustee shall hold such shares on trust for the participants until
they are vested in accordance with the Scheme Rules.

Vesting:

The Board has a discretion to determine the terms of the
award, including the grantor of the award, the number of
shares subject to the award, the vesting conditions, the date
when the award will vest, and whether the award will carry
rights to dividends paid between the date of the award and the
vesting date.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no share awards have
been granted under the Share Award Scheme.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the percentage of the
aggregate turnover attributable to the Group's five largest customers
comprised approximately 67.7% (2019: approximately 55.6%)
of the Group's total turnover and the percentage of the turnover
attributable to the Group’s largest customer were approximately
29.6% (2019: approximately 14.3%) of the Group's total turnover.
The percentage of the aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers comprised approximately 44.3%
(2019: approximately 80.2%) of the Group's total purchases and
the percentage of the purchases attributable to the Group's largest
supplier were approximately 12.7% (2019: approximately 18.8%) of
the Group’s total purchases.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates
or any shareholder which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
interest in the share capital of any of the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had banking facilities which
were secured by certain of the Group's property, plant and
equipment and interests in land and buildings held for own use
under operating leases. Details of Group’s bank loans during the
year are set out in note 20 to the financial statements of this annual
report.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

Details of the emolument policy for the employees of the Group as
at 31 December 2020 are set out in the section of “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report on page 17.
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DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 7 and 8 to the
financial statements of this annual report, respectively.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Details of retirement benefits plans of the Group as at 31 December
2020 are set out in note 24 to the financial statements of this
annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Except as disclosed in elsewhere in this annual report, during the
year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

During the year ended 31 December 2020, based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2020, there were no material contingent
liabilities in respect of outstanding litigation or legal proceedings
that need to be disclosed.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Safety and Environment

Since the products handled by terminals are hazardous, safety and
environment protection measures and equipment are regarded
as the most vital and critical importance to the success of the
Group. The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability
of the environment and communities in which it operates. As a
responsible corporation, to the best knowledge of the Directors of
the Company, the Group has complied with all relevant laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection during the year
ended 31 December 2020. For the financial risk management,
please refer to the note 28 to the financial statements of this annual
report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with the applicable
rules and regulations. To the best knowledge of the Directors of
the Company, the Group has complied in material respects with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the business and operation of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2020.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group
will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The Company has not changed its external auditor in any
of the preceding three years.

By order of the Board

Yang Dong

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Hans Energy Company Limited (the “Company”), together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), is pleased to present this Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (the “Report”) to provide an
overview of the Group’s management on significant issues affecting
the operation, and the performance of the Group in terms of
environmental and social aspects.

Preparation Basis and Scope

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the
rules governing the listing of securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) —
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” and has
complied with “comply or explain” provision in the Listing Rules.

This Report summarises the performance of the Group in respect of
corporate social responsibility, covering its operating activities which
are considered as material by the Group - (i) trading of oil and
petrochemical products and operating of a filling station (the “trading
and retail business”), and, (ii) offering value-added services in its
own ports and storage tank farms (the “terminal storage business”)
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). With the aim to
optimise and improve the disclosure requirements in the Report, the
Group has taken initiative to formulate policies, record relevant data
as well as implement and monitor measures.

Reporting Period
This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the
reporting period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020.

Contact Information

The Group welcomes your feedback on this Report for
our sustainability initiatives. Please contact us by email to
info@hansenergy.com.hk.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, who (a) have invested
or will invest in the Group; (b) have the ability to influence the
outcomes within the Group; and (c) are interested in or affected by
or have the potential to be affected by the impact of the Group’s
activities, products, services and relationships. It allows the Group
to understand risks and opportunities. The Group will continue to
ensure effective communication and maintain good relationship
with each of its key stakeholders.

Stakeholders are prioritised from time to time in view of the Group’s
roles and duties, strategic plan and business initiatives. The Group
engages with its stakeholders to develop mutually beneficial
relationships and to seek their views on its business proposals and
initiatives as well as to promote sustainability in the marketplace,
workplace, community and environment.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained
from the stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest
in the Group’s business activities. The Group has identified key
stakeholders that are important to our business and established
various channels for communication. The following table provides an
overview of the Group'’s key stakeholders, and various platforms and
methods of communication are used to reach, listen and respond.

—ToTHEFH EBRFRARAE

BEASEEE MG

AEERANAEERBEORINERBEEE
REm AN BEFQEREXMRER
AEE: DERNFEAKREANRLER
MER  RORARENZS - Em -~ R
BRARREBNENRZEZERE
FE o AERENRBIRTE T 8RR N
g AEBEFHEEEFRES T ERDAN
BRBBY AR ERENR TR

AEETERNEEAEMBE - BERE
K EFBET 8 Mk AR E BB T
AEBEH ) EER ARFER  BiBER
AR EERAES AEEENOEE -
AR EEANREEBEE R TIEER
BR - ARMKESHE - TERE R R
RENAFERR -

REBMARMFENRERANRE ERLY
AEBXEE RN HERIMER 215
THEZ - AEBEHERMEBNER
BEA - REBYZEBERE - THRM
AAEENEBREDZANSEERE - R
KA & KamITa o

57



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R HEREBEHS

Stakeholders

A

Issues of concern

BXEIE

Engagement channels
SHERE

Government and Market regulator

B R s E R

Compliance
Promote regional economic
development and employment

Bl
R R R ML

On-site inspections

Research and discussion through
work conferences, work reports
preparation and submission for
approval

Annual and interim reports,
announcements

B R R
FERITIESRMRLR -
BN TS A4
FHRRFEBHRE  RE

Shareholders and Investors

Return on the investment
Information transparency
Protection of interests and fair
treatment

Annual general meeting and
other shareholder meetings
Annual and interim reports,
announcements

BREREEREE K& DK - BRRAFAGMREMBRRES
BHUERE - FERTHERE RE
R RN F A RE

Employees Employee rights and interests —  Conference
Working environment —  Training, seminars, briefing
Health and safety sessions
Career development —  Cultural and sport activities
opportunities — Intranet and emails

(=1=] BEREN N s - B3
TEIRIR - B e SRe
fREREZ S - XERBEED
BEBREE - ABRENEE

Customers Safe and high-quality service —  Website, brochures, annual
Stable relationship reports
Information protection and —  Email and customer service
privacy hotline
Business ethics —  Feedback forms

—  Regular meeting
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Stakeholders Issues of concern

Engagement channels

EEA FEE1E SHERE
Suppliers —  Long-term partnership —  Business meetings, supplier
—  Honest cooperation conferences, phone calls,
—  Fair, open interviews
— Information resources sharing -  Review and assessment
—  Risk reduction —  Tendering process
HrEm - RHARHER - EBegw HERgRE EF
- WESEE EE - Sk
- ¥R -  HBRFE
-  EAHRR#=E - HEERF
- ER&ER

Peer/Industry associations —  Experience sharing

—  Industry conference

—  Cooperation - Site visit
—  Fair competition
CGYE Tt - EB53T - TEwE
- BfF - BMER
- ATEEF
Community —  Community involvement —  Charity and social projects
- Social responsibilities
Zan — ii 2R - RERHEER
EE
- 7 EEEE

Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group
understands the expectations and concerns from stakeholders.
The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more informed
decisions, and to better assess and manage the resulting impact.

The Group have adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG
reporting by understanding the key ESG issues that are important
to the business of the Group. All the key ESG issues and key
performance indicators (KPIs) are reported in the Report according
to recommendations of the ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of
the Listing Rules) and the GRI Guidelines.
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The Group have evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG
aspects through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification — Industry Benchmarking

e Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of
relevant ESG reports of the local and international industry
peers.

e The materiality of each ESG areas was determined based on
the importance of each ESG area to the Group through internal
discussion of the management and the recommendation of
ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules).

Step 2: Prioritization — Stakeholder Engagement
e The Group discussed with key stakeholders on key ESG areas
identified above to ensure all the key aspects to be covered.

Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues

e Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and internal
discussion among the management, the Group’s management
ensured all the key and material ESG areas, which were
important to the business development, were reported and in
compliance with ESG Reporting Guide.

As a result of this process carried out in 2020, those important ESG
areas to the Group were discussed in this Report.

ESG GOVERNANCE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues
Board’s overall vision and strategy in managing ESG issues

The board of directors (“Board”) has a primary role in overseeing
the management of the Group’s sustainability issues. During the
year, the Board spent significant time in evaluating the impact of
ESG-related risks on our operation and formulating relevant policy
in dealing with the risks. The oversight of the Board is to ensure the
management to have all the right tools and resources to oversee the
ESG issues in the context of strategy and long-term value creation.
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ESG Working Group

The Group attaches great importance to ESG work. Under the
leadership of the Board of the Company, each subsidiary has set up
a dedicated safety and environmental protection department (“ESG
Working Group”) to implement specific safety and environmental
protection work, so as to comply with government requirements,
implement the concept of “safety and environmental protection” in
its operation and fulfil its social responsibilities.

The ESG Working Group is primarily responsible for reviewing and
supervising the ESG process, and risk management of the Group.
Different ESG issues were reviewed by the Working Group at the
meeting, which holds once per year. During the reporting period,
the ESG Working Group and the management reviewed the ESG
governance and different ESG issues.

Board’s ESG management approach and strategy for material
ESG-related issues

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations of
different stakeholders on our ESG issues, materiality assessment is
conducted each year. We ensure various platforms and channels
of communication are used to reach, listen and respond to our key
stakeholders. Through general communication with stakeholders,
the Group understands the expectations and concerns from
stakeholders. The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make
more informed decisions, and to better assess and manage the
resulting impact.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG
aspects through the steps: (1) material ESG area identification
by industry benchmarking; (2) key ESG area prioritization with
stakeholder engagement; and (3) validation and determining material
ESG issues based on results of communication among stakeholders
and the management. Hence, this can enhance understanding of
their degree and change of attention to each significant ESG issue,
and can enable us to more comprehensively plan our sustainable
development work in the future. Those important and material ESG
areas identified during our material assessment were discussed in
this Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

Based on ISO14001, the standard of management system for
environment, the Group has established a set of management
systems regarding environmental protection, including but
not limited to “Atmosphere Pollution Management System”,
“Waste Management System” and “Wastewater Management
System”.

The Group’s objectives on environmental protection are
to eliminate and reduce the impact of its operation on the
ecological environment and endeavours to save resources and
protect the environment. The Group is in strict compliance with
the “Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and other relevant laws and regulations, and had no
material non-compliance regarding environmental issues during
the reporting period.

EMISSIONS

Air Pollutant Emission

Emission control is essential for mitigating the impact on
the environment and protecting the health of employees.
The Group’s emission complies with “Emission Limits of
Air Pollutants (DB44/27-2001)" (KES5Z¥HEIRIRE) and
“Emission Standard of Air Pollutant for Bulk Gasoline Terminal
(GB 20950-2007)" (fzH B AR 5 R M BEHIEAE). The decrease
in air pollutants emission in 2020 was mainly attributable to
less frequent business travels and transportation by vehicles
under the COVID-19 pandemic and effective implementation
of fuel saving strategies during the year. The air pollutants
emission during the reporting period is as follows:
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ACOVID-19%& 15 MER R BRI E
IRAMZBITIRERTEE - LRERE
MEETA BOMRES - RREHEARS
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Trading and Terminal
Air Pollutants retail business  storage business 2020
YNNEE ) LIRTELE  BEARER —B-BE
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) AAlHINO,) kgF 32 1.12 2,486.22 2,487.34 5,128.48
Sulfur dioxide (S0,) Z&{LHR(SO,) kgT 72 0.03 44.69 44.72 4837
Particulate matter (PM) FIFRT(PM) kgT 5% 0.08 249.71 249.79 535.93
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As most of the products stored are highly volatile, the
Group has implemented “VOCs One Enterprise One Policy
Comprehensive Improvement Program” (VOCs — 1 — kAR &
JA 77 28) to control volatile organic compounds (VOCs) emission
from source and production processes. Key measures to
mitigate the leakage of the volatile chemicals are implemented
as follows:

e External floating roof tanks' are used to store gasoline,
diesel and other volatile chemical products

e Nitrogen blanketing? is used in the tanks to ensure stored
product is separated from the air, vapour generated in the
tank is collected and treated with activated carbon.

° To reduce the non-methane hydrocarbon (NMHC)
emission, oil-gas condensation recovery devices are
installed to achieve a recycling rate of 98%.

e All the volatile organic compounds (e.g. pentane, acetone)
are stored in specific containers and sealed properly to
avoid leakage.

Apart from measures adopted to reduce VOCs, the Group
lowers the emission of SO, by using low-sulfur diesel (National
V standard) for the boiler.

External floating roof tanks (ZTER BT 1) are storage tanks
commonly used to store large quantities of petroleum products.

They eliminate breathing losses and greatly reduce the evaporative loss
of the stored liquid.

Nitrogen blanketing (2 &) is widely used in many industries
to prevent fires, explosion, degradation of products during their
production, storage and transportation.
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Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") Emission3

Climate change is gradually concerned by the community. The
Group manages the carbon footprint by minimising the energy
consumption and water consumptions as these activities cause
significant emission of greenhouse gas. Policies and procedures
adopted on resources saving are mentioned in the section “Use
of resources”. With a sense of promoting the use of clean
energy and green environment, the Group has switched its fuel
consumption to fossil fuel with lower carbon content such as
Liquefied Petroleum Gas (“LPG"). The decrease in GHG scope
1 emission in 2020 was mainly due to the reduction in business
travels and transportation by vehicles under the COVID-19
pandemic, as well as effective implementation of fuel saving
strategies during the year. With the effective implementation
of power saving policies of the terminal storage business, the
GHG scope 2 emission slightly declined in 2020.

BERBE(CRERE )N
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The GHG emission during the reporting period is as follows: RiE IR ERESERAE R
™
Trading and Terminal
GHG Emission i retail storage
REREHN BIHREE R
Scope 14 #HEN4 tonnes of CO-e 438 273.40 278.28 369.26
—EfHIREEM
Scope 2° #E2S tonnes of CO-e 2412 2,848.14 2,872.26 2,910.80¢
—EIREEM
Total Shr tonnes of CO-e 29.00 3,121.54 3,150.54 3,280.06°
“EiREEM
GHG emission ~ JBEFE tonnes of CO»-¢/ 1.30 Trading and retail:
intensity FEE employee ZH5REE
—afiEEn/ 248
EE
tonnes of COx-e/ 1.21 Terminal storage:
thousand tonnes of AR
terminal throughput 1.566
“altiE e,/
EE AN £ T

3 The calculation of the greenhouse gas emission is based on the 3
“Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard” from Greenhouse
Gas Protocol.

4 Scope 1: Direct emission from sources that are owned or controlled by 4 # &1 : NEMYES ST H A REEZH

BRERBERIREBCRERBZEER)
wl hEZERREREFE

the Group. e
Scope 2: Indirect emissions from purchased electricity consumed by the #BE2  NEEEES O KEELPGHIRIE
Group. HFE& °

The data of 2019 has been restated for comparative purpose for
adoption of the latest model for electricity consumption in Hong Kong
and China.

—hENBBE LB AR
@%%Eﬁ%&qﬂlﬁﬁs—%ﬁﬁ EHES -
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Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

Wastes generated are handled with a comprehensive procedure
to mitigate the impact to the environment. The Group has a
strict classification system for different types of wastes. Each
type of waste has specific storage location and collection
procedures. There is a precaution implemented for the leakage
of waste to prevent pollution.

Hazardous wastes such as hazardous wastewater, waste oil
cleaning rag and organic solvents are handled according to
the latest policies of “National Hazardous Waste Inventory”.
These wastes are separately stored and handled with ledger
for record. The Group engages qualified recycling companies
to perform waste disposal and treatment so as to minimise the
impact on the environment.

During the year, as new customers discharged more hazardous
organic solvents which consisted of wastewater, this led to an
increase in the amount of hazardous waste generated in 2020.
The hazardous wastes generated by the Group during the
reporting period are as follows:

BEREEERY
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Trading and Terminal

Waste Disposal retail storage

BENRE BHREE BERH

Hazardous wastes ~ E4£RBEZE  tonneshi - 96.01 96.01 53.97
generated BEEY)

Hazardous wastes ~ E4HHE  tonnes/thousand - 0.04 Trading and retail:
generated BEZEYZE  tonnes of terminal BH5RTE
intensity throughput -

W/ ERALE
FIiE Terminal storage:

BERH
0.03

—B-FEHE ABHAARAR
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The Group has put effort on waste-free initiatives in reducing
non-hazardous waste. The Group has launched waste recycling
and implemented different measures to reduce the wastes
generated in the office. For example, used paper and plastic
materials are collected in the office for recycling purpose. Waste
electrical and electronic equipment is separately collected.
With these measures, the Group hopes to ease the pressure
on landfill space and bring benefits to the environment. The
amount of non-hazardous waste generated and the amount of
non-hazardous waste recycled in 2020 were remained stable.

The non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group during the
reporting period are as follows:

Trading and

Waste Disposal retail

BERNRE B5REE

AEEBNETROBEEERZYNT
BEEVIEZ - ARBECHESEZRYE
WHETTEEEARERAEES
MREEY - PIIER R EWEE AW
MR RIBBME - LERIN AR - &
BERMETREIRANE - AREH
PREXFRETEERRNEN M
REBETRGER - —T_TFELEN
BEEBREVHERDYHNEZEREY
BERFRE

RBEHEAEEEEEEFEDD
BERAT

Terminal
storage
AR

Non-hazardous EEMEES  tonnesh 0.12 6.66 6.78 6.78
wastes generated  EEEY)

Non-hazardous EEREE  tonnes/employee 0.005 Trading and retail:
wastes generated ~ EEYZE /g8 EHREE
intensity 0.020

tonnes/thousand 0.003 Terminal storage:
tonnes of terminal EEAE
throughput 0.030
W/ ERANE
T

Non-hazardous EHES  tonnesHE 0.03 - 0.03 0.03
wastes recycled BEEY)

Non-hazardous EUHES  tonnes/employee 0.001 - Trading and retail:
wastes BEY W/ &8 BHRTE:
recycled intensity ~ F[E 0.003

Terminal storage:
BHERR -
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Wastewater

The terminal and warehouse areas are equipped with drainage
system to collect wastewater. Impermeable layers are applied
to all pipes and treatment facilities to avoid leakage of
wastewater. Rainwater and wastewater are collected by two
separate systems to prevent pollution to groundwater.

The Group also cooperated with the Environment Faculty of
South China University of Technology (FErIE T K2R
E2B7) to develop a sewage treatment facility, which treats
wastewater with microorganisms. During this year, around
17,479.70m3 (2019: 20,003.50m3) of wastewater was
discharged and treated. After the treatment, the water which
meets satisfactory quality standard, is used in fire services and
planting. Not only the emission of wastewater to land and
water bodies is reduced, but also the water can be reused to
save the water resource. This system is simple and the cost
of maintenance and operation is low. Therefore, it is widely
admired and accepted by government departments and peers.

Noise

Noise is mainly generated from the operations of blower of
boilers, pumps and compressors, etc. Appropriate acoustic
insulation is applied to those machines. Regular maintenance
is also conducted as to reduce the noise generated due to
wearing of the components in those machines.

The Group has adopted policies and guidelines to improve the
efficiency in energy, water and other material consumption,
including “Energy Saving Management System”.

Energy

The energy consumption of the Group mainly comes from fossil
fuels and electricity. The Group promotes the idea of “green
office” to reduce the electricity consumption as follows:

e The temperature in the office is set at 26 Degree Celsius
in summer.

e No heating is supplied in winter according to the
characteristic of weather in South China.
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e All electronic appliances have to be switched off when
leaving the office.

e After all staff leave the office, security guards double
check the electronic appliances and ensure all of them are
switched off.

The Group also checks the oil usage frequently to minimise
the chances of oil leakage which lead to energy wastage.
With the effective implementation of energy saving policies of
the terminal storage business, the consumption of purchased
electricity dropped slightly during the reporting period. In light
of less frequent business travels and transportation by vehicles
under the COVID-19 pandemic and effective implementation
of fuel saving strategies, both petrol and diesel consumption
decreased during the year. During the year, the energy
consumptions are as follows:

o BERWAERAMIEMAESR

o FMEBEBIMRABAER REA
BREEESR  BRAEERN
B -

AEETELEREMHEN BE
BERBNHE  URRERR B
MEEBAR FEFHEERRR -
K& HREEE N EREENUR
4 o ERCOVID-19ZIE A=
BB ERMZBITRR A - ARk
BREMETE RREE - FRTH M
SOREREER D - FRELRBRERE
SR

Trading and Terminal
Energy Type retail storage 2020
RER EpRTE  BEAE  —¥-%F |
Purchased electricity EE MWhFEF Rk 29.85 3,404.01 3,433.86 3,479.46
Petrol b MWhT{ET Rk 16.01 235.29 251.30 284.18
Diesel E9 MWhFET R i - 722.94 722.94 1,158.01
LPG RIEEAR  MWhTETER - 117.22 117.22 109.14
Total energy HREFEE MWhTETREE 45.86 4,479.46 4,525.32 5,030.79
consumption
Energy consumption &¢JREFEZE  MWh/employee 2.06 Trading and retail:
intensity TETRE /B8 Z5LEE
4.92
MWh/thousand 1.73 Terminal storage:
tonnes of terminal ISEER -
throughput 2.38
TETEE/
EEATETH
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Water

Water is another important resource used for the daily
operation. In order to monitor the usage of water, meters
are installed in different locations and water consumption is
recorded regularly. Staff are responsible for managing the
water usage and checking the water system. If leakage of
water pipe happens, repair will be immediately carried out to
reduce the wastage of water resource.

In the workplace, the water pressure is adjusted according
to the actual water usage. To encourage water-saving, water
usage of each staff in the staff quarter is recorded and the staff
has to pay water bills by themselves.

The decrease in water consumption in 2020 was attributable
to the effective implementation of the water saving strategies
during the year. The water consumption during the reporting
period is as follow:

Trading and

Water Consumption retail
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RERAKE  KEEETRMEZ
£ THRGAKE BITARERE
FKRBEKREL - WAKEHELER
R RN T S - UR KB IR
HORE -

TESAKBEREERAKER
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Terminal
storage
e N

Water consumption  7K)&# 2 m3z o 89 84,554 84,643 95,443
Water consumption ZCEFEZE  m3employee 4 Trading and retail:
intensity UK/ B8 BHRTE:
NATEA
m3/thousand tonnes 33

of terminal Terminal storage:
throughput TSR
IHRS 46

ERATETH

Nitrogen

Nitrogen is an important resource for facilitating the storage of
highly volatile substances. It provides a protective layer of gas
on the substances, which is named as blanketing. The process
is controlled automatically instead of manually to avoid wastes.
The usage of nitrogen is monitored to ensure there is no
leakage.
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The Group’s terminal is near to the waterbody with high
biodiversity and rich fisheries resources. Based on the Group's
internal policies, efforts have been made to minimise the
impact of activities on the environment. For example, two sets
of oil spill monitoring and alerting system have been installed in
the water body near the terminal. The system is able to detect
oil spill accidents occurred when the oil tanker is berthing or oil
products are loaded.

The situation of the terminal is also monitored by staff under
24-hour real-time video surveillance system. If oil spill accidents
are detected, the signal from the alarm system can reach the
responsible staff and prompt remedies can be carried out to
reduce the impact on the environment.

To strength the pollution control, the Group has cooperated
with a company specialised for handling oil spill accidents to
equip adequate facilities (e.g., oil boom) to prevent the spread
of oil leakage in the sea.

Governance

Our Group addresses climate-related risks based on the nature
of the risk to our operations. The physical impacts of climate
change, including extreme weather events, or damage to
facilities have immediate operational impacts and are treated
as operational risks. Long-term challenges, such as emerging
ESG issues and climate-related risks and opportunities, may
be discussed by the Group’s ESG Working Group. Our ESG
Working Group provides effective governance for integrating
and addressing ESG issues, including climate change, within
our business.

The ESG Working Group is responsible for approving
operational emissions targets for the Group and commissioning
an ESG benchmarking, as well as gap analysis exercise to
identify gaps in both disclosure and policy relative to best
practice standards. Moreover, the ESG Working Group works
closely with the Group's different operation departments, with
an aim to develop consistent and enhanced approaches on
addressing ESG risk issues and report to the management.
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Strategy

Climate change risk forms part of our overall risk profile
through its role in increasing the frequency and intensity of
certain diseases, and the health and mortality impacts resulting
from natural disasters. We assess the overall level of risk by
taking into consideration a range of diverse risk factors across
the many categories in our product or services range. This
diversity of risk is combined with our business strategy and
broad geographic footprint helps us distribute risk and provide
protection against the impacts of short-term climate change
effects.

Our products and services continue to provide protection for
people in our communities against weather and heat-related
disease. Besides, we continue to explore opportunities to
engage our business partners and encourage them to develop
climate resilience and reduce their operational carbon footprint
by taking into consideration of different climate-related
scenarios, including a “2°C or lower scenario” through the
following steps:

Step 1: Set Future Images Assuming Climate Change Effects
As climate change measures proceeds, there is a possibility that
the industry will be exposed to substantial changes, such as stricter
policies including the introduction of and increases in carbon
pricing, as well as advances in technology and changes in customer
awareness. In light of these climate change effects, based on the
International Energy Agency (“IEA") scenarios and others, we
developed multiple future images as the external environment that
will surround our Group.

With regard to the IEA scenarios, we put focus on the 2°C scenario
(2DS) and pictured future images in case where climate change
measures do not progress and where such measures progress
further “Beyond 2°C scenario”.
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Step 2: Consider the Impacts

We considered the impacts on our Group for each of the future
images developed in Step 1. We believe that in such a society, it will
be possible to expand carbon dioxide reduction effects.

With regard to effects on raw material procurement and production,
introduction of and increases in carbon pricing is anticipated in
accordance with the global advance of climate change measures,
leading to the possibility of higher raw material procurement and
production costs.

On the other hand, in the case where climate change measures
are not adequate throughout society, production interruptions and
supply chain disruptions are likely to increase as a result of higher
frequency and intensification of natural disasters such as flooding.

Step 3: Respond to the Strategies

Our Group will begin promoting the reduction of non-renewable
energy in our daily operation. This strategy will allow for flexible
and strategic responses to each demand for the regions where the
emission factors of purchased electricity consumptions are high. By
promoting real carbon emissions reductions throughout the world
through these types of initiatives, we are working to achieve zero
carbon emission in our business.

We minimize carbon emissions through comprehensive energy-
saving and introduction of renewable energy. With respect to
renewable energy in particular, we have set a new target, achieve a
reduction rate for purchased electricity in coming few years.

With regard to the ongoing confirmation of the suitability and
progress of the Group’s strategies, we believe that we will have
opportunities for stable funding and sustainable increases in
corporate value through appropriate information disclosure,
dialogue with institutional investors and other stakeholders.
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Risk Management

Our Group identifies the climate change related risks or to test the
existing risk management strategies under climate change with the
aid of risk assessment. Hence, the areas where new strategies are
needed could be identified.

The risk assessment takes a standard risk-based approach using
national data, local information and expert knowledge, which can
identify how climate change may compound existing risks or create

new ones.

The risk assessment is conducted through the following steps:

Step 1: Establish the context

e Objective/goal
e Scale

° Time frame

e  Climate change scenario for most climate variables and sea

level

Step 2: Identify existing risk (past and current)
e |dentify the record of occurrence of climatic hazard in the past

in the area

e Risk management strategies in place to tackle future occurrence

of the hazard
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Step 3: Identify future risk and opportunities
e Explore climate change projections for the selected time
frame(s) and emission scenario(s)

e |dentify potential hazards

e Investigate whether any existing risk from Step 2 may get
worse under future projected changes

e |dentify new risks that can emerge under future projected
changes

Step 4: Analyse and evaluate risk

e Identify a set of decision areas or systems (i.e., geographical
areas, business operation, assets, ecosystems, etc.) that has the
potential to be at risk in future

As outlined within the Governance section above, the Group has
robust risk management and business planning processes that are
overseen by the board of directors in order to identify, assess and
manage climate-related risks. The Group engages with government
and other appropriate organizations in order to keep abreast of
expected and potential regulatory and/or fiscal changes.

We continue to raise awareness of climate change in regard to
monitoring of carbon and energy footprint in our daily operation.
However, there remains gaps in understanding how such climate
risks and opportunities may impact our operations, assets and
profits. Our Group assesses how the business addresses climate
change risks and opportunities and takes the initiative to monitor
and reduce their environmental footprint.

74

HR3 BB B RREBNEE
o RETREERNFRBEERERRAMRK
By IER

o RRIBEEE

nE

Of]

o ERNBRERBIANESD
ERERERE LB

EXH-A

. ERAEBHHE
AR

© BRI BEHER

HR4 DT RFTEER
o BRIBEAIREAXERN —ERRE
B EG(NHBIEGE  RELE -

WmEXTERI—&fa - AEERERE
MEREEMEFREEE  EHEFE
BB HEUER  SHEMEERIRAEN
R o REBRBAFREMSENERE
M - ZREER MR EESRRE
EEPHNZHER

HPIEER T HRIZECMRA  XRA
EEBE T ERRAMEEIRBEN - AT - RIR
R BB MAIFEREENEE BE
MBNEERNFEZE - AEBEFEE
B S RIRE (R R R MEE - W x
BERFRDEIRIZNEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BIR - HEREREE

Significant Climate-related Issues

During the reporting period, the significant climate-related physical
risks and transition risks, which have impacted and/or may impact
our Group, as well as the steps taken to manage these risks, were as
follows:

Financial Impact

MBE

Detailed description of risks
k=2

Physical Risk
BRER

Acute physical risks

— Increased severity and frequency —
of extreme weather events such as
cyclones and floods, strong wind. Staff
are easily being injured. Also, under
the extreme weather events, the costs
of transportation, communications
and living increase, which may lead to
financial loss.

—  Increased likelihood and severity of
wildfire, which may hinder the operations
of factories. Financial loss occurs due to
the interruption of supply chain, logistics
and transportation.

BAERRR

- BRREMEE - KK - BENBRER -
BMBELEXRE LT - BEIHREE - It
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PIBERR S B E - A IERE - WIRANE
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RERA LT

Operating cost increases
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Steps taken to manage the risks
B E TR S B

Planned to adopted
scenario analysis to
disclose an organization’s
planning under future
scenarios, most notably
one with in a 2°C
scenario.

Established a natural
disasters emergency plan.
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Detailed description of risks

e

Physical Risk
ERER

Chronic physical risks

- Prolonged hot weather may increase the
energy consumption.

- Climate change brings uncertainties to
the environments of production and sales.
Although direct losses will not incur by the
company, this may still affect and limit the
sales and production significantly.

- Prolonged climate change may detriment the
human’s health. Continuation of temperature
rise can increase the fatality rates and
incidence rates of some diseases, especially
the one related to cardiac and respiratory
system; the spread of some climate-sensitive
diseases such as malaria and dengue fever
may increase.

REERER
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Financial Impact

g d-Z

Steps taken to manage the risks

EEREBRIMNSR

Revenue reduces from -
decreased production capacity
and the negative impacts of
workforce.

Planned improvements,
retrofits, relocations, or other
changes to facilities that may
reduce their vulnerability to
climate impacts and increase
the climate resilience in long
term.

- Engagement with local or
national governments and
local stakeholders on local
resilience.
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Steps taken to manage the risks

EERERFRRNS R

Financial Impact

gt 7

Detailed description of risks
AR

Transitional Risk

BERR

Policy risk

As a result of energy efficiency requirements,
carbon-pricing mechanisms increase the
price of fossil fuels, or policies to encourage
sustainable land use, hindering the area of

expansion, which increase the operation cost.

Mandates on and regulation of existing
products and services as of the tightened
environmental and safety laws and standards
of oil. We have to spend much compliance
cost to update or maintain the equipment to
fulfil the new regulations.

BURRER

MR EERMEMARIE - BOEBHSIE
AMHER LT XBEBRREGEBL
HFERA - SHREERTE - i
I BN

BE  REAPIMHITERE - FRHR

Operating cost increases due to
increased insurance premiums
for the factories.

Risk of trade increases.

ERE LT
I
B 5 ERE N

TEEK

Planned to be involved in
carbon trading and adoption
of clean energy in the
operations to reduce the
carbon emissions.

Monitor the updates of

the relevant laws and
agreements, to avoid the
unnecessary increase in cost
and expenditure due to non-
compliance.
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Detailed description of risks

e

HEREREE

Transitional Risk
BERE

Legal

AR

risk

Exposure to litigation. We have to adapt the -
tightened law and regulations issued by the
government due to climate change, and they
have the risk of litigation once they failed to
obligate the new rules.

Enhanced emissions-reporting obligations.

We may have to spend much time on fulfilling
the report standards to comply the new
obligations.

JEE o

EFFRRR - AEEFEEEBRTE -
RARE T B B RZEAGIAR A - 40
RELBHWHTARIE » PIREHE S SR AAR AR
BEVREREE - RIFIFTERRES
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Financial Impact

g d-Z

Operating cost increases for
high compliance costs and
increased insurance premiums
for the Group.

BRKAR SRS ER
REIEI - BEERA L
9’_|_

Steps taken to manage the risks

EEREBRIMNSR

Monitored the updates of
environmental laws and
regulations and implemented
GHG emissions calculations
in advance.

TERIRBDE MR DI e B
R WRALEBITAER
BENGTETE

Technology risk

Developing the low carbon energy-saving
products and energy saving technologies, the
capital investment and R&D expense increase
consequently.

More green building strategies with low-
carbon, energy-saving technologies are
adopted by industry peers. Lagging behind
may weaken our competitive edges.

AR

FISHEMEP L E m R ETRERI - ARRE -
R E AT F SR AN
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EBEHL - BhgERIR o MIRTE R AT REH
PHMHFES

Capital investment in
technology development
increases.

RITRENEARE LT

Planned to invest in the
innovations of energy saving
products.

Examined the feasibility

and efficiency of applying
the latest environmental
technologies.
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Detailed description of risks

Transitional Risk
Market risk

More customers are considering climate-
related risks and opportunities, which may
lead to changes in customers’ demand for
products.

Uncertainty in market signals. “How
environmentally friendly the product is”
becomes one of the factors to affect the
product selling price.

Increased cost of raw materials. More

environmentally-friendly raw materials may be
much expensive, which may increase the cost.

i ER

TEFPERRERBRRNEE - 7
BEE P YR VR A Pk &
MIGFSR TR o [ EmA I EIREE
EINRTEEREBNRE L —
FRFMERA LTt - EZHIRBEEENR
MRKARBEE RS E + LEEINKA

Financial Impact

gt 7

Revenue decreases for the
change in revenue mix and
sources.

Operating cost increases as
abrupt and unexpected shifts
in energy costs.

Production cost increases due
to changing input prices and
output requirements.

Wil & BRSEE - &
W AR
BEIRRX AR SRR e FB AT 2 41
BB - REERA LT
RANEREREEEMR
FEHIRES) - UBAEEK
AEF

Steps taken to manage the risks

EEREBARBNSR

Tightened the control of the
environmental hazardous
materials in our products and
studied the application of
recycled materials.

WRERNHEAERE
IR - 3 R
GEER

Reputational risk

Unable to fulfil the expectations of the
customers, damage the Group's reputation
and image.

Stigmatization of our business sector, such
as more stakeholder concern or negative
stakeholder feedback on the product
designed in a less environmentally-friendly
way.

BERR

RELERIRPHE - AKEMBENTY
BgX18

EBHARLE - MEHERANE

Revenue decreases from
decreased demand for goods
and the decrease in production
capacity.

Operating costs increases from
negative impacts on workforce
management and planning.

ESBREELTY 2
Wz A
BHNERERABES

Supported the green
productions.

Fulfilled the social
responsibility by organizing
more activities or executing
actions to demonstrate how
we place importance on
climate change.
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During the reporting period, the primary climate-related A|EHE @ TERIFHEBEEE RIEED
opportunities and the corresponding financial impacts were as  BI# 2R :

follows:

Detailed description of opportunities

Financial Impact

BB

Resource efficiency

—  Reduce more packaging material usage
—  Reduce water usage and consumption
BEIR M Ex

- ORI EReEDH

- OB RKERIER

37

Operating cost reduces through efficiency
gains and cost reductions

- EBBERRETHIRAA - fER LB

Energy source

- Use of lower-emission fuel sources
—  Use of supportive policy incentives
—  Use of new technologies

BER

- ERERERUE

- EREFBEFE
- ERFRR

—  Operating cost reduces through use of
lowest cost abatement

- Returns on investment in low — emission
technology increases

- EBERRERBERARER S ER A
- REEFREHRMER T

Products and services

—  Development of climate adaptation and insurance risk

solutions
—  Ability to diversify business activities
EmM R
- BRERKENRRERRAFAST R
-  EBEZTHEEN

—  Revenue increases through new solutions
to adaptations needs, such as insurance risk
transfer products and services

-  ERYERENHERD R (WRBERE
R an A ARTS ) S pn e
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Detailed description of opportunities

Bis

Markets

Access to new markets -

Financial Impact

E S

Revenue increases through access to new

5 and emerging markets
- ERFTMS - EEER SO ETISIE KA
Resilience

Participation in renewable energy programs and adoption
of energy-efficiency measures
Resource substitution or diversification

EERE -
-  Z2HEBARRTRSRNENEEEE
- BRERIESHA -

Market valuation increases through resilience
planning, such as infrastructure, land and
buildings

Reliability of supply chain and ability to
operate under various condition increases
Revenue increases through new products
and services related to ensuring resiliency
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ZETFFR

Metrics and Targets

Our Group adopts the key metrics to assess and manage
climate-related risks and opportunities. The energy
consumption and greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions indicators
are the key metrics used to assess and manage relevant
climate-related risks where we consider such information is
material and crucial for evaluating the impact of our operation
on global climate change during the year.

Our Group strives to track our energy consumption and
greenhouse gas emissions indicators regularly to assess the
effectiveness of emission reduction initiatives, as well as set
targets to contribute our effort to have minimal impact on
global warming. The details are described in the section A1:
“Emissions” of this Report. Our Group has adopted absolute
target to manage climate-related risks and opportunities and
performance.

SOCIAL ASPECTS

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group highly considers employees as important assets and is
committed to improve in these four areas: employment, health
and safety, development and training and labour standard.
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B1.

82

EMPLOYMENT

The Group has established and implemented a set of human
resources management policies and procedures in place with
the aim to provide good and safe working environment to
its staff in order to comply with “Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China”. It sets out the Group’s standards
for staff recruitment, promotion guidelines, remuneration scale,
holiday and statutory paid leaves, parental leaves and working
hours.

All employees are treated equally and their employment,
remuneration and promotion opportunities will not be affected
by their nationality, race, age, religion and marital status.

The Group also advocates harmonious and work-life balance
culture among the employees through organising diversified
activities, including annual dinner, annual gathering, sport
days and birthday parties, etc. These activities can help the
employees to relax and enhance communications among
them. During the reporting period, no concluded case (2019:
nil) regarding employment was brought against the us or our
employees.

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the
employee compositions (in percentage of employees) by
gender, employment type, age group and geographical region
were as follows:

Employee compositions

1. E®

AEEEFEMRETEANERK
BRIEF  REIRERIFRZSR
MITERE AR E(PRESHER
R HIEAKREHBETHE &
TSl AR - REREEEHR
H - ERRIRARE
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EEMHEX

By gender R

e Male o B 83% 85%
e Female o Tt 17% 15%
By age group RERHER

e Age 30 or below e 30BREIA T 34% 37%
o Age 31-40 © 31-405% 34% 32%
o Age 41-50 ® 41-505% 23% 23%
e Age 51 or above o 51pREIA 9% 8%
By geographical region R E

e Hong Kong o BB 4% 4%
e ThePRC o 96% 96%
By employment RER

e Senior management s BRERE 7% 4%
e Middle management s FHREIRE 10% 7%
e  General o — 82% 88%
e Contract/short term e 5#), 5 H 1% 1%
By employment mode REBER

e Full-time o 2% 99% 99%
e Contract/short term « 545 1% 1%
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The employee turnover rate during the year by gender, age
group and geographical region are as follows:

Employee turnover rate

IR - F AR RIEE D
EBERKLLZMT :

BEMALLE

By gender BBl

° Male o« B 12% 50%
e  Female o L4 - 39%
By age group REBRAR

e Age 30 or below * 305K AT 16% 81%
e Age31-40 * 31-40%% 5% 30%
e Age41-50 * 41-505% 9% 14%
e Age 51 or above o STBREIA 5% 6%
By geographical region Rt E

e Hong Kong o - _
e  The PRC o F 5] 11% 51%
Overall @st 10% 48%

B2. HEALTH AND SAFETY

Upholding the belief that safety is the first priority, the Group
is committed to providing a healthy and safe workplace for all
its employees and the community. The Group has established
“Health, Safety and Environment Policy Statement” in
accordance with the requirement of “Occupational Health
and Safety Management System” (OHSAS18001) and
ISO45001:2018. The Group continues to improve the working
conditions and monitor the effectiveness of safety related
controls. The Group complies with related health and safety
laws and regulations such as “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases”, “Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, “Provisions on the Supervision and Administration of
Occupational Health at Work Sites”, etc. In 2020, no concluded
case (2018: 1 case, 2019: 1 case) regarding health and safety
was brought against us or our employees.
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Care to Employees

Every employee is required to have a medical check annually.
Employees are provided with safety training and personal
protective equipment (helmet, goggles, masks, etc.) in the
workplace. Occupation hazards assessment is conducted
by third party regularly to monitor the performance on
occupational safety. To ensure the staff to have better health
protection, the Group provides medical insurance for the staff
annually.

The Group is committed to providing all employees with a
warm and comfortable working and living environment. The
Group has set up self-managed staff quarters and canteens
with a view to providing sound rest space and healthy
catering to its employees. Drinks are also freely provided to all
employees in hot season to prevent them from having heat
stroke. Furthermore, the Group offers various activities for the
staff, such as annual trip, annual gathering and birthday meal,
to advocate the work-life balance and harmony. Such activities
can strengthen the relationships between the staffs and allow
them to be more relaxed.

Safety Precaution in Workplace
Safety of employees in workplace is crucial. Key safety
precautions are implemented as follows:

e Toxic gas detector, audible and visual alarm and
emergency cut-off valve are installed in each berth.

e  Parameters of all flammable and explosive substances
are carefully and closely monitored (e.g., temperature,
pressure, flow volume) during transfer. All parameters
information is transferred to PLC (Programmable Logic
Controllers) in the terminal control centre for monitoring
the frontline operation.

e  Worker, who enters the tank, must wear protective
clothes and make sure that the toxic gas concentration
does not exceed the acceptable level.

e  Emergency shower, eyewash facilities and breathing
apparatus are provided.
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B3. DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING B3. ZERZII

The Group continues to provide comprehensive and suitable
trainings to employees to promote a learning culture based
on the Group’s “Training Management Procedure” and other
related internal policies. The Group analyses the employees’
training and operation needs to prepare training and budget
plan yearly. The Group provides diversified on-the-job trainings
to employees, particularly safety trainings, with the aim to
improve the quality of the employees’ safety and to establish a
corporate safety culture.

Generally, there are both internal and external trainings for
employees. Every new employee needs to receive a three-
month training including general knowledge and skills about
storage tanks. Assessment is conducted after the training. Only
the new employees who pass the assessment can start their
work in their position. Continuous assessment is conducted
to keep track on the performance of the current employees.
The Group also offers on-the-job training, which based on the
operation needs and annual training plan. It aims to enhance
the performance and skill of employees. External training
mainly includes certification training for specialists (e.g. safety
management personnel, engineers, accountants, etc.). The
Group invites related government departments and institutions
to deliver training to ensure employees can perform duties with
relevant qualifications.

With continuous trainings and assessments, the safety
knowledge of the employees can be strengthened and the
safety awareness can be enhanced. This can decrease the
occurrence of work-related accidents. The detailed breakdown
of the percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category is as follows:

Percentage of employee trained
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By gender BB
— Male —51 89% 97%
— Female - 1% 3%
By employment category RIEERER
— Senior management —ERERE 1% 2%
— Middle management —RRERE 14% 9%
- General ——M 75% 89%

— Contract/short term — &/ B

“EoFETR REERAERAT
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The average training hours completed per employee by gender
and employee category is as follows:

Average training hours

(hours/employee)

TR R (R 1EE)

RURRERERNE S - BREET
PSRRI BN T

d

By gender R 5
— Male —51% 10.1 19.6
— Female — 2k 5.6 1.5
By employment category RIEEER
— Senior management —RREEE 15.3 18.9
— Middle management —HRERE 14.8 34.6
- General ——#% 8.2 8.3
— Contract/short term —&#, /a2 - -

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group respects the human rights of employees, especially
gender equality and is strongly against employment of child
labour and forced labour. The Group strictly complies with
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China”, Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong and other relevant laws and
regulations. Recruitment guideline clearly states that person
under 16 is not allowed to work in the Group and zero
tolerance to child labour and forced labour.

During the year, the Group was not subject to any punishment
by the government and was not involved in any lawsuit related
to child labour or forced labour.
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During the reporting period, the Group had 74 suppliers
(2019: 90 suppliers) which were located in the PRC. The Group
depends on suppliers to provide materials and components for
different storage facilities. The selection of suppliers is based
on a list of criteria, including compliance, price, quality, stability
of supply and after-sales services with completion of “Supplier
Assessment Form” in accordance with the Group’s internal
policy “Material Procurement Management Regulations”.
Besides, the Group assesses the suppliers with a rating system.
The Group maintains a long-term relationship with suppliers
based on the result from supplier assessment. During the
year, the assessment result was satisfactory and there was no
significant risk related to supply chain in environmental and
social aspects.

The Group implements the “Organizational Risk Management
Procedures” and “Organizational Environment and Relevant
Management Procedures” to identify the environmental and
social risks in each section of the supply chain, and determines
the significant impacts of the supply chain to the environment
and society with the execution of the Group's internal policies
“Material Procurement Management Regulations” and the
“Supplier Management Procedures”. It is expected that the
risk of supply chain comprises of delay, termination and
accumulation of the supply of materials. The supply chain risk
assessment is carried out by the managers and supervisors from
the Procurement Department half-yearly. During the reporting
period, there was no non-compliance case of the supplier being
discovered.

To reduce the impacts of the Group’s operation to the
environment, the Group used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers. The
Group implements the “Material Procurement Management
Regulations” during procurement, and requires the suppliers
to be certified with the quality management systems, such
as 1SO9000 or equivalent. Products with the certification of
environmental labelling would be more preferrable. Besides,
suppliers are required to conduct sampling test and inspection
for the products and services.
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

As a leading midstream player in providing storage service for
chemical products in South China, maintaining the safety and
quality of customers’ products in the warehouse is the utmost
concern of the Group. In order to continuously improve the
quality of service provided by the Group, we have set up an
internal policy — “Hazardous chemical storage Management
Procedures” and other related procedures in accordance
with the requirement of quality management system
(ISO9001). During the year, the Group was not subject to any
disputes relating to the storage service or punishment by the
government and was not involved in any lawsuit related to
product responsibility.

Complaints Handling

The Group upholds the feedback from the customers. The
Group implements the internal policy “Customers Complaint
and Services Management Procedures” to handle the
complaints from the customers. Department of commerce of
the Group is responsible for dealing the with complaints from
customers. Prompt response will be taken and the problem will
be identified to prevent similar complaints from happening.
During the year, one complaint (2019: nil) related to the
efficiency of goods unloading was received by the Group.

The Group responded to the cases immediately and explained
to the clients. The situation has improved after the adjustment
of the working schedule of employees and the increase in the
consumer service training.
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Quality Control

According to “Regulations on the Safety Administration of
Dangerous Chemicals”, the Group requires customers to
provide Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) for chemicals stored.
Besides, all storage tanks are labelled with UN Number (United
Nation Number) and other relevant numbers for identification.

When customers’ goods are delivered to the tank, the testing
company engaged by the customers will carry out sample
testing on the goods, verify the certification or testing report
provided by the suppliers and check if the name, specification
and technical information of the sample meet the national/
international standards. Only goods that pass the testing and
meet the related requirements can be stored in the Group's
warehouse.

Customer Information Protection

The Group upholds a belief that information security and
privacy is the key principle for operation. We comply with
relevant laws and regulations. According to Group's Staff
Handbook, employees are required to sign an agreement to
protect the privacy of clients and any other sensitive business
information. Employees who violate the agreement will receive
punishment and legal action will be taken. During the year, no
severe violation was found that posed a significant impact on
the Group.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group maintains a high standard of business integrity
throughout its operations and tolerates no corruption or bribery
in any form, the Group strictly complies with the “Chapter Il —
Crimes of Undermining the Order of Socialist Market Economy
Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Chapter VIII
— Graft and Bribery of Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in HKSAR" and other
relevant laws and regulations relating to anti-corruption.

EERFEERAT

B7.

HEZH
REKERICEMZ2EREH) - K
KSEZREFPIUATHFEMER
(B LZ2ERR) - FRILZHN - A
Fr R RE A UNGRSE (B & BIAR SR ) &
H A rERAARSE - PAGLEERY o

EEPERRNEFFHER  EFZ
B rl s s mETmER
A ZERERAA M ERRENR
ShigEEREH  RREEMER
REEINRABEERE - REBEB
R ME R A E RN E R AT FEER
AREERE -

ERERRE

Bz kBl eHEEEMEEN
JRA - AR SEEFRARIE S » M
BTHBERIER o RIBAKER
BTFM  REARILBGHENRER
FRMLMEMEMEERNEEER -
ERBENERGERE - WERE
EETE c FA - MERRHEAKE
EREATENBREEREA -

RES
AEERBEZEBREERRREN
TERST - TEESEAEAN BN
BREE - AEEEBETHEARKM
B A E = - BB e T RLRE
)~ HEARKXMBEAE(EN
BE-B5HRFE)  BAFITERE
(B LR IRBD R B b B R R BB H
MRREREIER ©

89



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRI - HEREREE

90

The Group has adopted “Compliance Policies” and stated
that the Group takes reasonable care to ensure that it will
not export, re-export, or otherwise divert customer’s products
and other items in violation of any Trade Control Laws. All
the employees and external drivers who can get access to the
customers’ products are monitored. For example, the weight
of truck is checked when it enters and leaves the premises to
monitor any abnormal loading.

The Group has established related investigation and whistle-
blowing procedure for any corruption cases. The Group
has zero tolerance to any forms and degrees of bribery or
corruption behaviours in relation to the Group's business
activities. During the year, no concluded case (2019: nil)
regarding corrupt practices was brought against us or our
employees.

The Group provided training sessions comprising of anti-
corruption, anti-bribery, anti-fraud, anti-blackmail and anti-
laundering to the directors and staff regularly. During the
year, 96% (2019: 92%) of the employees received the anti-
corruption training. The number of employees received anti-
corruption training and the training hours by employment
category were as follows:

Anti-corruption Training
REFEI

By employment category
Z{ES 5
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Number of
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training hours
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- Board of directors —EFe 5 7.0
- Senior management —SREEE 6 7.0
— Middle management —hRERE 20 25.0
— General ——M” 187 272.5
Total @5t 218 311.5
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to contributing to the society and
fostering positive relationship with the communities in which
the Group operates. The Group has related policies and
measures to understand the needs of the community, such
as villagers, employees and non-governmental organisations.
Contribution to the community and maintaining harmonious
relationship with the stakeholders in the region of operation
are crucial for the sustainable development.

During the year, the Group participated in many charitable
activities to help the community counter the COVID-19
epidemics and obtained outstanding social awards which
recognised our contribution to the community.

The details of charitable events and outstanding social awards
are listed as below:

e Donation of RMB20,300 to the Wuhan Jinyintan Hospital
("EEMSRBEERT") in February 2020 to support
prevention and control of COVID-19 epidemics.

e Donation of RMB20,000 to the Dongguan Charity
Federation ("ERZETEZA42") in May 2020 to support
alleviation of poverty.

o  "HEMA—4BEEAR" was awarded to the Group.

° "M HEEEOEERE" was awarded to the
Group.

o "ERAIR e —FARE" KEE
Group.

fiz" was awarded to the

o "EREARDEFEBLOBMK "SEEBL"”
to the Group.

was awarded
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Hans Energy Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hans
Energy Company Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 100 to 211, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 December 2020, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
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matters.

Assessing potential impairment of property, plant

and equipment and interests in leasehold land

AR BERRE  URFEERAZEEL R
BFESNETRE

and buildings held for own use

Refer to accounting policy 1(g)(i) and note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter

BREITER

B ARG BE 19() K H15E(10)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENES A REZEE

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s property, plant
and equipment and interests in leasehold land and
buildings held for own use accounted for 39% of
the total assets of the Group. These assets principally
comprised dock and storage facilities and interests in
leasehold land and buildings held for own use.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recorded a loss before taxation of HK$38 million. In
particular, one of the cash-generating units (“CGU")
with property, plant and equipment and interests in
leasehold land and buildings held for own use carried
at a value of HK$693 million as at 31 December 2020,
recorded a loss before taxation of HK$3.5 million.
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Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment
of property, plant and equipment and interests in
leasehold land and buildings held for own use included
the following:

e evaluating management’s identification of
CGUs and the amounts of property, plant and
equipment, interests in leasehold land and
buildings held for own use and other assets
allocated to each CGU;
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Assessing potential impairment of property, plant L% - BERRE  URBEARAZHELHE

and equipment and interests in leasehold land 1EF#EZEHEEHE
and buildings held for own use

Refer to accounting policy 1(g)(i) and note 10 to the FERRiFE B HEFHIBEBE190)RHT7(10)
consolidated financial statements

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENENAREZSEE

The Key Audit Matter

RRETEE

Consequently, management considered that potential
impairment of property, plant and equipment and
interests in leasehold land and buildings held for
own use existed for this loss making CGU as at 31
December 2020.

Management performed impairment assessments
for property, plant and equipment and interests in
leasehold land and buildings held for own use using
the value in use model and compared the aggregate
carrying values of each separately identifiable CGU
to which the property, plant and equipment and
interests in leasehold land and buildings held for own
use had been allocated with the net present value of
the respective future cash flow (“discounted cash flow
analyses”) to determine the amount of impairment
which should be recognised for the year, if any.
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assessing and challenging management’s
impairment assessment models, which included
evaluating the impairment indicators identified
by management and assessing the impairment
assessment methodology with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

obtaining and reviewing the value in use
calculations prepared by management and on
which the directors’ impairment assessments for
property, plant and equipment and interests in
leasehold land and buildings held for own use
were based;

challenging the key assumptions and estimates
adopted by management in the discounted
cash flow analyses by comparing the significant
inputs, which included future revenue and future
operating costs with the historical performance,
committed contracts on hand, the financial
budgets of the Group which had data been
approved by the directors and externally derived,
which included projected growth rates, projected
inflation rates and industry analyses published by
external research institutes;
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AR BERRE  URFEERAZEEL R
BFRESNETRE

Assessing potential impairment of property, plant

and equipment and interests in leasehold land
and buildings held for own use

Refer to accounting policy 1(g)(i) and note 10 to the FERE4A B FFIRZLIELEE 19() % H15E(10)

consolidated financial statements

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Key Audit Matter

BRETER

BN ESNAEEZEE

We identified assessing potential impairment of
property, plant and equipment and interests in
leasehold land and buildings held for own use as a key
audit matter because of the significant management
judgement required in making assumptions and
estimations, including estimations of future revenue,
inflation of operating costs and discount rates applied,
which can be inherently uncertain and could be subject
to management bias.
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assessing the discount rates applied in the
discounted cash flow analyses by benchmarking
against those of other similar companies in the
same industry;

evaluating the historical accuracy of
management’s value in use calculations by
comparing the forecasts at the end of the
previous financial year for revenue and operating
costs with the actual outcomes in the current
year and investigating reasons for any significant
differences between the forecast and actual
results;

performing sensitivity analyses for both the
discount rates and future revenue and considering
the resulting impact on the impairment
assessments and whether there were any
indicators of management bias in the selection of
assumptions.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

REMBRRREAKBEREUINER

EEFUEMEREE - HEE8%ET
FNEFRANZHEE - BTBEGERM
BIRR LR IR BE RS

B A BB RROE L TR
B8 BREATHURREATR HER
it -

D

i

manMERaBRRmES - RN
EERMEEMES - FIEET - TE
HpEEREHGEEVBHRRARMER
AHBREF AT T BB FEEREENE
UFFEERBERRAOBER

AEREPIERITHIIE - RBFIRB /U
HitERFEERERRL - HMFER
E%FE - HESE - BRfPLBEA®RE -

ESHGEMBBRARENER

EXARBRBEB LSRG RMACE
BB REERD R FECR TR EE
ZREHBEEMTENSEAMBERE - X
HHERRREREVBRROBRE TN FE
A ARRF S8R AR T B B0 B R SR AR BRI A
FHOAFZEHEE -

96 HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

“EOTHEFH ERRRERAT
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it BERERELENGEN  LEERE
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MRS BIRNEE
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BEMBET RSN BRRAENEE

BAWBER  RUGAMBHRRERBES
TEEANRFFRHERMERNE AR
PORERS R IERE YHABSEEMER
BN RE -  WREERBERBBRE
S BRILZSN - NRIAERE A o 3
BMARARENAR - HEFAEBALR
BRURERE -

BEARBIERKFNRE - BEFERER
RCBEBETEADETONER EX &
REERBRA R ARRE IR - SERRBUL T
A REFeEEsR 5l - RS EBHE M
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P & AR RE L 5 B 75 3R R PO RO A BR
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

98

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

ERB(EBEERDETENHIBIRE
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e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and,
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Kong Wing Hung.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 March 2021
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Consolidated Income Statement
mealERK

for the year ended 31 December 2020 BE T =T F+-_A=1+—HItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TEFIR)

Continuing operations: BB
Revenue WA 3 2,481,906 314,845
Direct costs and operating expenses B KA K AL 2 & A (2,415,509) (272,987)
Gross profit EF 66,397 41,858
Other income HAb Yz 4 34,334 22,508
Selling and administrative expenses  $5& &7 E A (89,178) (177,712)
Reversal of impairment losses REEERR 5(c) - 35,455
Profit/(loss) from operations BEER,(BE) 11,553 (77,891)
Finance costs B TS AN 5(a) (49,895) (49,933)
Loss before taxation RRBLATES 18 5 (38,342) (127,824)
Income tax FTiS i 6(a) (994) (3,552)
Loss for the year from BECEERTAEER

continuing operations (39,336) (131,376)
Discontinued operations: %t@ﬁ%ﬁ :
Profit for the year from 1A A EE TS F N T

discontinued operations 32 - 1,234,689
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE), H5F (39,336) 1,103,313
Attributable to: FEAG -

Equity shareholders of the Company 72 B

— continuing operations — BRI (40,095) (131,915)
— discontinued operations — IR AR TR - 1,240,535
(40,095) 1,108,620
Non-controlling interests PR iR
— continuing operations — RS ET 759 539
— discontinued operations — RS TS - (5,846)
759 (5,307)
(Loss)/profit for the year FER(ER) ER (39,336) 1,103,313
Basic and diluted (losses)/ BREXREERR
earnings per share 9
— continuing operations —RHEIRE T (1.07) cents fli  (3.53) cents {lli
— discontinued operations — R TS N/A i 33.23 cents {ll

(1.07) cents i 29.70 cents {1

The notes on pages 106 to 211 form part of these financial #HHRE106E 2118 2 Mt sT A4AER I Z
statements. Bk —#D -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEHERER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T —TF+ A=+ —HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZTLHI7R)

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for
the year:

[tem that may be reclassified
subsequently to consolidated
income statement:

Exchange differences on
translation of financial
statements of subsidiaries
— continuing operations
— discontinued operations

Release of translation reserve upon
disposal of a subsidiary

Other comprehensive income for
the year

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company
— continuing operations
— discontinued operations

Non-controlling interests
— continuing operations
— discontinued operations

Total comprehensive income for
the year

The notes on pages 106 to 211 form part of these financial

statements.

—ZoTHEFH EBRFRERAE

FR(ER)ER

FREMBEYES :

HgneEH D RE
REREARMIAR

BEMB QR M B®RE

ZIERERR

—FHERE X

HE—RHMEAR
RARFRILE AR

FREMEE YRS

FRAZEREAE

FEA
ZA/NC]) &S
—RIERERT

SRR o
—FHBIREER

—RIERERTE

FRAZTEREAE

(39,336) 1,103,313
3,379 (265)

- 632
32 - (85,880)
3,379 (85,513)
(35,957) 1,017,800
(37,974) (131,500)
- 1,155,238
(37,974) 1,023,738
2,017 (141)
- (5,797)
2,017 (5,938)
(35,957) 1,017,800

HNE106 B 211 B 2 M5 AKX L E 5

BRER 2 —#D

101



Consolidated Balance Sheet

meBEERER

at 31 December 2020 R=ZE-THF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TEFIR)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Interests in leasehold land and
buildings held for own use

Prepayments and other receivables

Other investments

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables and
contract liabilities

Bank loans

Lease liabilities

Current taxation

Amounts due to related parties

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

102

ERBEE
YIZE - BB MR E 10
BEERZAELI R
EFiEs 10
TEAS FRIA I E At FE U R IR 11
iR & 14
mREEE 12
B 13
REBEE
PEASS 15
B 5 M E A FEUGRIA 17
Re RIRTTHES 18(a)
REBAE
B 5 R EAME A
UREHAE 19
IRITEN 20
HEaE 21
BNERFRIE 22(a)
JE (<) B S 5 kI8 23

REBEEFE
REERARBAE

576,639 574,017
208,769 173,912
16,070 22,711
167,959 =
1,239 1,394
5,033 4,729
975,709 776,763
174,688 149,154
516,864 174,063
353,219 974,510
1,044,771 1,297,727
127,861 128,252
162,218 50,021
6,487 5,246

584 1,481
82,230 112,958
379,380 297,958
665,391 999,769
1,641,100 1,776,532
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEERER

at 31 December 2020 R=ZE=TF+-A=+—8H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAFITHI)/R)

Non-current liabilities

Bank loans

Lease liabilities

Amounts due to related parties

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable
to equity shareholders of
the Company

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on R Z=Z—

29 March 2021.

Yang Dong
RS
Director

EBEF

The notes on pages 106 to 211 form part of these financial

statements.

—ZoTHEFH EBRFRERAE

ERBERE

RITER 20
HEAE 21
FE 1S RS 7 SRR 23

BEFE

BRRHE
%N 26(b)
a1

RATIRREL B

iR
E 3

627,560 652,478
27,311 2,886
- 167,448
654,871 822,812
986,229 953,720
395,664 373,264
573,453 565,361
969,117 938,625
17,112 15,095
986,229 953,720

KA RETEE o
Liu Zhijun
2=
Director
EE

TRz — 8D °

—F-ZA-TNAEE=SHE

HRE106BE211 B 2K AEK I F8
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERZER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 BE T =T F+-_A=1+—HItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TEFIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Compant
ADIRRELER

Treasury
shares held (Accumulated
undershare  Share-based losses)/ Non-
Share Share  Special Translation Statutory award compensation retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve reserve reserve stheme reserve profits Total interests equity

RERGER
itHERN Bt (RitER)/
Ba  RHEE RAEBE  ERBE  iREE  ERRG  EHRRE  REE At FeRER 4B

§/000 §000 §000 §000 §000 §000 §000 §000 §000 §000
v T T T T T T T T T T
(Note 25@)) |
(K3k258)

Balance at 1 January RZB-1E

2019 -B-RziH 33264 TI04TT (251428 89,506 31947 - 6800 (1,037,359 (76,792) (7,590) (84382)
Profit or the year ERER = - - - - - - 110860 1108620 (5307 1103313
Other comprehensive income Hh2mkd - - - (84882) = = = = (84882) 631 (85513)
Total comprehensive income SAkEEE = - - (3488 - - - 1108620 1023738 (5938) 1,017,800
Dividend declared to non-controlling 584 FEFHER

interests n respect of prior years  ERERARE = = = = = = = = = (5,021) (5.021)
Equity setled share-based IVERHEZ RN

transaction ) - - - - - - 8,200 - 8,200 - 8,260
Lapse of share options BiRiExT = = = = = = (360) 360 = = =
Shares purchased undershare 1R ISR A 42E: 13

award scheme BARG - - - - - (16,581) - - (16,581) o (16,581)
Acquisition of 3 subsidiary Wi -FELE

(Note 27) (Rx27) - - - - - - - - - 68 68
Capttal njecton from FERERTE

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 52,746 52,746
Disposal of equity interests in HENBLRZER

a subsidary (Note 32(c) (H#3200) = = = = = = = = - (9170 (19,170)
Balance at 31 December it K g

2019.and 1 January =t-AR-2-%F

2020 -B-RAzEH 3324 710477 (251,428) 4,624 31,947 (16,581) 14,700 71,622 938,625 15,095 953,720
(Loss)profitfor the year ER(EE)/ 57 - - - - - - - (40,095) (40,095) 759 (39,336)
Other comprehensive income Lfb2EhE - - - 21 - - - - 21 1,258 3319
Total comprehensive income e - - - 211 - - - (d00%s)  (37.974) 2017 (35.957)
Issue of ordinary shares on BARERLAR

placement (Note 26(0)() (Fs=261b)i) 1750 38806 - - - - - - 56,306 - 56,306
Equitysettled share-based EREERARA

transaction - - - - - - 5% - 59 - 5%
Shares ssued under share RERREEL

option scheme (Note 26(o}i) B (HzE 2600 i) 4900 12544 - - - - (5,880) - 11,564 - 11,564

Balanceat 31 December 2020 W-E-%%
TRz t-Heks 395,664 761827  (251,428) 6,745 31,947 (16,581) 9416 31,527 969,117 171 986,229

The notes on pages 106 to 211 form part of these financial ZHRFE106EE2118 2 MizE AARK I ZH
statements. BiEz 2 —2H -

104 HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mERTRER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE T —TF+ A=+ —HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZTLHI7R)

Operating activities EETE
Cash used in operations G XA 18(b) (329,335) (141,918)
PRC dividend income withholding tax paid 2157 BIf% & Hﬁli\?ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁ - (11,987)
PRC corporate income tax paid BB LHER (2,229) (86)
Net cash used in operating activities & %EEFARETEE (331,564) (153,991)
Investing activities REEE
Net proceed from disposal of HER LXK
discontinued operations PSR 8 32(c) - 619,995
Net payment for acquisition of WeiE —rIf B A Rl
a subsidiary X HER 27 - (142,886)
Increase in restricted cash xﬁE%Hfﬁ > 30 18(a) (67,347) =
Payment for the purchase of BAME  BERREZ
property, plant and equipment - (5,601) (30,142)
Payment for purchase of BAEMITE 2 X H
other investments (171,437) =
Payment for the purchase of interestsin ~ BBE#EEAZHE
leasehold land and buildings held for T METFER 2T
own use (7,675) =
Proceeds received from the disposal of HEME BENMREZ
property, plant and equipment B4k priS 308 2 174
Prepayments for purchase of property, ~ BAME  HEK&EZ
plant and equipment N (1,526) (20,557)
Prepayments for right-of-use assets ﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁ IR - (1,806)
Interest received BUFE 5,857 9,890
Net cash (used in)/generated from REZE(FTA),/ g
investing activities REeFE (247,727) 434,668
Financing activities mﬂﬁ)ﬁib
Interest paid EAIFLE 18(c) (48,411) (51,934)
Advances from a related party F‘EH&"E@& 18(c) - 236,869
Repayment to related parties et * IE 18(c) (168,462) (232,042)
Payment for purchase of shares under ¢E%}€fo’7}§%1§bu+ A
share award scheme Bz - (16,581)
Allotment of new shares in relation to B S 2 F DB EE
placement 26(h)(ii) 56,306 -
Allotment of new shares in relation to BRTTE B 2 F %D
exercise of share options B0z 26(b)(iii) 11,564 -
Capital injection from non-controlling 3FT g Fadopadey
interests - 52,746
Proceeds from new bank loans %ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%mﬁﬁﬁf” 18(c) 89,846 749,896
Repayment of bank loans BBRITER 18(c) (50,539) (908,068)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests &, JEZ AR 25 RIS &, - (5,021)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEEREESHNERLDD 18(c) (6,219) (4,334)
Interest element of lease rentals paid EHTE‘,EJE%E']?H &5 18(c) (1,472) (150)
Net cash used in financing activites FEEBFARETEE (117,387) (178,619)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%fﬁlﬁ =]
and cash equivalents mA),/ IR (696,678) 102,058
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BZEEREE
at 1 January 4@EER 974,510 881,071
Effect of foreign exchange HEERSE 2 HE
rate changes 8,040 (8,619)
Cash and cash equivalents RT-A=+t—-Hz
at 31 December ﬁﬁwﬁﬁsﬁﬁlﬁ =] 18(a) 285,872 974,510
The notes on pages 106 to 211 form part of these financial #FHRFE106 B E2118 7 Mt st AARK L EH
statements. BHEY —BH
ZE-TFFH EBERERAT 105
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SRR E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTTHIR © BAEFHERIN

1

106

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group. Note
1(c) provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
other investments (see note 1(f)) are stated at their fair
value.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell (see note 1(w)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

1
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(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI + SHERERIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

(©

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these financial
statements for the current accounting period:

e Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the
amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
provide further guidance on how to determine whether a
transaction represents a business combination. In addition,
the amendments introduce an optional “concentration
test” that permits a simplified assessment of whether
an acquired set of activities and assets is an asset rather
than business acquisition, when substantially all of the
fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in
a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets.

The Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
transactions for which the acquisition date is on or after 1
January 2020.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7 R 3 B &
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries, controlled structured entities and non-
controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties)
are considered.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so
that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any
voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the
relevant activities are directed by means of contractual
arrangements.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI + SHERERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EXGIHBEE)
(d) Subsidiaries, controlled structured entities and non- (d) HBAT  FEFIEBUEEER

controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with
notes 1(0) or (r) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(j)). A controlled structured entity that is directly
held by the Company is considered as branch/agent of
the Company and the assets and liabilities thereof are
accounted for as assets and liabilities of the Company in
the Company’s balance sheet.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Goodwiill

(f)

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(j)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities
The group’s policies for investments in equity securities,
other than investments in subsidiaries, are set out below.

Investments in equity securities are recognized/derecognised
on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investment. The investments are initially stated at fair
value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL") for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the
Group determines fair value of financial instruments, see
note 28(f). These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(9)

Other investments in equity securities (continued)
Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an irrevocable election to
designate the investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made
on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is
made, the amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
until the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings. It is
not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or
loss as other income in accordance with the policy set out
in note 1(f)(v).

Property, plant and equipment

(i)  Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(j)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (see note 1(v)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(i)  (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

1 EXSHEEE)
(9) W% - BERRE(E)
(i &)
WE - BB LREEREBK
A2 & TR T oA E A
EREH  EHRERE
(BB’ - NEREAE

— Buildings 20-30 years —EF 20-30%F
- Dock and storage facilities 5-30 years —ERATTT
Rt 5-304F
— Filling station facilities 20 years — bRk R 204
— Office equipment 5-10 years —WNERE 5-10%F
— Motor vehicles 5-10 years —R8 5-104F
— Leasehold improvements Over the term of —THEMEEE T EA
the lease
— Right-of-use assets Over the term of —(EREEE THHA
the lease

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if

any, are reviewed annually.

(i)  Construction in progress represents oil and gas (ii)

station under construction and pending installation,
and is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note
1(j)). Cost comprises direct costs of construction
as well as interest charges, and foreign exchange
differences on related borrowed funds to the extent
that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest
charges, during the periods of construction.

Construction in progress is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when the asset is ready for its
intended use. No depreciation is provided in respect

of construction in progress.
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PSRRI RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI + SHERERIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

0]

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(j)).
Amortisation of club memberships is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of 17 to 24 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from that use.

(i) Asalessee
Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component for all
leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets
which, for the Group are primarily laptops and
office furniture. When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Leased assets (continued)
(i) As alessee (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,

1 EXRSFHERE)
() HEEEE)
(i) MEREBEAE)

EHEENcE - HEAR
B M6 RN S A R
MEENREEREES
B RS A R I IR AR E
R MRTERR Z e
E %M - RIE AR RR IR

the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and BERME o RIH TR

interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in

which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 1(g)

and 1())).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI + SHERERIN)

(i) Leased assets (continued)

0}

(i)

T FFR

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are any rent concessions which
arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions set
out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such
cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and
recognised the change in consideration as if it were
not a lease modification.

In the consolidated balance sheet, the current
portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined
as the present value of contractual payments that
are due to be settled within twelve months after the
balance sheet date.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the case,
the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in accordance
with note 1(t)(i).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Leased assets (continued)
(ii) As a lessor (continued)

HAEAERRIL)

1 EXESFEEGE)
() HEEE#E)
(i) EREBEAE)

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the group applies the
exemption described in note 1(i)(i), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

(j) Credit loss and impairment of assets

0}

Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs"”) on the financial assets
measured at amortised cost (including cash and bank
balances, and trade and other receivables) and lease
receivables.

Other financial assets measured at fair value are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other

receivables and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition or
an approximation thereof;
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI + SHERERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 S5EER(E)
(j) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued) (j) EEEEREERE(E)
(i) Credit losses from financial instrument and () @RMIAERERESHNE
lease receivables (continued) BEEE)
Measurement of ECLs (continued) ATEEBEEERE)

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate;

— lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the balance sheet
date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

0}
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Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and lease
receivables are always measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the balance sheet date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
balance sheet date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI + SHERERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 REFBEKR(E)
(j) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued) (j) {"'EEE}E&QEJXE Z)
(i) Credit losses from financial instrument and (i) ¢sWMIEREWESHE
lease receivables (continued) EEE(E)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued) ZER A (&)
In particular, the following information is taken into BEEEms  SIEEERE
account when assessing whether credit risk has BB ERARE S KR
increased significantly since initial recognition: EAREEREUATER

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each balance sheet date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S SRR B RE

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BB FHERIN)

1

120

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

0}

Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
1(t)(vi) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI + SHERERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

0]

(ii)

T FFR

Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset and
lease receivable is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal of
impairment in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  right-of-use assets;

— intangible assets;

—  goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
balance sheet.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S SRR B RE

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BB FHERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

122

Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or

not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using the pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a

cash-generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable)

or value in use (if determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI + SHERERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

T FFR

Impairment of other non-current assets

(continued)

—  Reversal of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the
balance sheet date (see notes 1(i)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or
a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the balance sheet
date to which the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S SRR B RE

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BB FHERIN)

1

124

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

(k)

)

0}

(i)

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any writedown of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Consumable parts

Consumable parts held for repair and maintenance
purposes by the Group are stated at cost less any
provision for obsolescence.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 1(t)) before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration under the payment terms
set out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for

ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(j)(i)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional (see note 1(m)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI + SHERERIN)

1

T FFR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Contract assets and contract liabilities (continued)

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(1)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 1(m)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see note 1(1)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note

1G)-

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note

1(v)).
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HAEAERRIL)

(p) Employee benefits

0]

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a share-based
compensation reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based compensation reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the share-
based compensation reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised share capital for the shares issued) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits/accumulated losses).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI + SHERERIN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(a)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Share award scheme
For the share award scheme, the Group may
purchase its own shares through the trustee of the
share award scheme from the open market for the
shares to be granted under the share award scheme.
Shares held by a controlled structured entity of the
Group (see note 1(d)) to meet obligations under
share award scheme (see note 25(a)) are accounted
for as treasury shares in the consolidated financial
statements.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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(a)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI + SHERERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EXGIHBEE)
(9) Income tax (continued) (q) FE%i(E)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables (including amounts due to
related parties) are initially recognised at fair value and are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sales of goods, the provision of services or the
use by others of the Group's assets under leases in the
ordinary course of the Group's business.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI + SHERERIN)

(t)

Revenue and other income (continued)

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The Group
takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration
for any effects of a significant financing component if the
period of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable.

(ii) Portincome
Port income is recognised upon performance of the
services.
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(t)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products, depending
on the terms agreed with customers.

Leasing revenue

Revenue is recognised when the performance
obligation is completed which is generally the time
when the transacting parties first come into an
agreement.

Dividends

— Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

— Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under
the effective interest method using the rate exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note

1G)(0).

(vii) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the balance
sheet initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful
life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI + SHERERIN)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 ERSBERE)
(u) Translation of foreign currencies (u) HiEmE

The functional currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries in the PRC are Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi Yuan (“RMB") respectively. The Group adopted
Hong Kong dollars as its presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the translation reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in

the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended

use are complete.

(w)
operations
(i) Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if it is highly probable that its
carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use and
the asset (or disposal group) is available for sale in
its present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a
single transaction, and liabilities directly associated
with those assets that will be transferred in the

transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held
for sale when the above criteria for classification
as held for sale are met, regardless of whether the
Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the

subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current asset held for sale and discontinued
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI + SHERERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Non-current asset held for sale and discontinued
operations (continued)

0]

T FFR

Non-current assets held for sale (continued)
Immediately before classification as held for sale,
the measurement of the non-current assets (and all
individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group)
is brought up-to-date in accordance with the
accounting policies before the classification. Then, on
initial classification as held for sale and until disposal,
the non-current assets (except for certain assets as
explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial statements
of the Group and the Company are concerned are
deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures) and
investment properties. These assets, even if held for
sale, would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for
sale, and on subsequent remeasurement while held
for sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As long as
a non-current asset is classified as held for sale, or is
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or
amortised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Non-current asset held for sale and discontinued
operations (continued)
(ii) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations,
or is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale (see (i) above),
if earlier. It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented on the face of the
statement of profit or loss, which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell,
or on the disposal of the assets, or disposal
group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.

(x) Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PSRRI RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI + SHERERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(x) Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
are as follows:

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of non-current assets,
including property, plant and equipment and interests in
leasehold land and buildings held for own use, at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. When indication of impairment is identified,
management prepares discounted future cash flow to assess
the differences between the carrying amount and value in
use and provides for impairment loss. Any change in the
assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts would increase
or decrease in the provision of impairment loss and affect the
Group's financial position.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BB EHERIN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are trading of

and provision of terminal, storage, warehousing and

transshipment services for oil and petrochemical products

and operating a filling station.

0]

ZETFFR

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers by major service lines

Revenue from contracts with
customers not within the
scope of HKFRS 15

Continuing operations

Storage and warehousing income

Discontinued operations

Storage and warehousing income

Revenue from contracts with
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customers within the scope of E15%EERH

HKFRS 15

Continuing operations

Port and transshipment income

Sales of oil and petrochemical
products

Revenue from operating a filling
station

Discontinued operations
Port and transshipment income
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Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by business lines and by geographic
markets is disclosed in notes 3(b)(i) and 3(b)(iii)

respectively.

ERRFEERAT

WA R 2 EpER &
(a) WA

KEEY T EEEAEERIH
MERNACERBE - B
£ B REBRE - LR
35 o

() EEFENHNBAREE
FRISIEE B0 D]

119,999 118,233
- 8,990
119,999 127,223
44,354 33,822
2,299,128 162,790
18,425 -
2,361,907 196,612
- 4,487
2,361,907 201,099
2,481,906 328,322
KRERFAEHNBRAIRERFE L

i T 58D M D 8BS B K RE
3(b)(i) &2 3(b)(iii) I FZ °

139



BRI

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHITR -
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(a) Revenue (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contacts with customers in
existence at the balance sheet date

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 or HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts
such that the above information does not include
information about revenue that the Group will
be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the sales contracts
that had an original expected duration of one year or
less.

In 2020, the Group has one customer (2019: three)
with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group's revenues. Revenues from sales of oil and
petroleum products to this customer arose in the
PRC and amounted to approximately $734,276,000
(2019: Revenue from sales of oil and petrochemical
products to these customers arose in the PRC
and amounted to approximately $45,124,000,
$39,847,000 and $37,628,000 respectively). Details
of concentrations of credit risk arising from the
Group’s major customers are set out in note 28.

(a)

LN
(ii)

(iii)

7 43
(hE/

S RARRERRER
EESERAPRAEF
HEHBA

AEBEEFESDER
FI2IRABEYBHREE
AIE 1SRN EREEL
B ERERTBRAEE
ERRERRHPRAS —F
HIATEIHE A OFIRE
#) R T8 % A HE M Y
AHVEHL o

R-E-ZTF - A£EH
—ZBBEF(ZZT—NF:
—R)EAXEERETZ
RHBBAEBRAZ
10% - MZEFHEER
mRARERHKARE
FE & #) 734,276,000
T(ZE—NLF : A%
EEREERMEAL
ERBARESEH -
o Bl & % 45,124,000
T~ 39,847,000 7T K&
37,628,000 7T ° AN @ =
ERFELEERBRET
2 FEIBE M FE28 ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI + SHERERIN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by entities, which
are organised by business lines and geography. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has identified
the following four reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following

reportable segments.

— Terminal storage: this segment represents the
Group's provision of terminal, storage and
transshipment activities carried out in Dongguan, the

PRC.

—  Trading: this segment represents the Group's trading
of oil and petrochemical products business carried

out in the PRC.

—  Retail: this segment represents the Group’s operation

of a filling station in Zengcheng, the PRC.

—  Xiao Hu Island Terminal (“XHIT"”): this segment
represents the Group's provision of terminal,
storage, warehousing and transshipment activities
carried out in Panyu, the PRC. As disclosed in note
32, the segment XHIT was classified as discontinued
operations for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The composition of reportable segments of the Group
has changed in the year ended 31 December 2020
following the commencement of operation of a filling
station. Reportable segments are aligned with financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purpose of resources

allocation and performance assessment.

“EOTHEFH ERRRERAT

3

WA R 7 B8R ER =& (4

(b)

PEHRE
AEBFEBIZERFE MRS D
ZEREIRHIELL o RIFERA
SEEEETHEEASRNIE
WMERADRERMFERE —
AN - ANEEFRELA T
BA s 530 - AEBIWES G
EAIE LD ED - AR T 512 7]

#&if\i ®

BEEM : EOBRAAE
BRPEREEE 2RM
558 ~ Brfe R 2 375 -

— B ko RAEER
‘:F' wE BB mmM&A
HZEDDZ¥7I% °

- ZTEHIBRAEER
B A IR Uk 2
%o

NEEWE([PRAEL
El) “%%$El#
FEHESLE ZIRMH
?\%T‘EE&L%Z
ETE o a0 FE32 AT
B OHE_ZT-NFTZ=
A=+—HIEFE - MR
HltED BB BKE LK
BT o

REEZ2HDHMOARNEE—
ToEEA_A=t+—HLEE
E FISHAE & DM Uk 18 A POk & -
BoEERRAEERSR
ﬁﬂaﬁA%%éﬁnﬁ&%ﬁ
AR EN K -
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

0}

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following basis:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of investments
in subsidiaries and other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include trade and other payables and
contract liabilities and lease liabilities attributable to
the individual segments and bank loans managed
directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated
by those segments and the expenses incurred by
those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment (loss)/
profit is “(loss)/profit before taxation”, i.e. “adjusted
(losses)/earnings before taxes”. To arrive at “(loss)/
profit before taxation”, the Group’s (losses)/earnings
are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as head office
or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning (loss)/profit before taxation, management
is provided with segment information concerning
revenue, interest income, finance costs, depreciation
and amortisation and (reversal of)/provision for
impairment losses on trade receivables.

3

WA R 5 BB & (4

o E|E (E)

(b)

0]

DEKE BERAR
LA ED BRIR KD ED
MERMS  ARERE
THEBABRATNEER
ERBAREDBEIGZ
B BEREAE:

DHEEBEMEETE
E BYEERRBE
EETEERWMEBLRA
ZEREREMBRAREE °
DEHABBEE D BEE
Z B 5 N H A AT 5 IR A
REMmBBEREERE
ARy RE#ZE R 2 RIT
B e

=

AARIHELRARE
MAAEEZBARZE
MAEEZ X HEZE

MEEEEMELEZ
EdEHSEMOEEA

HEDER

)
)
b2

PE ¥ BB (518 ) O M AT
RAZIER BB (B
8),5A ] BT REHH
ER 2 BB (BR) &
Mo BEHIBRBA (&
18),/ 8% RNERZ (B
18),/ BRI B ERB
@R &P 2 1 B (A48 ER =
RAETTHEA)(EH AR -

BRESERBRTA (ER),/
A2 D EPERSN - EIRE
TR A RA ~ FIEIK
A~ BTSRRI R
5B 5 RWRSOREREE
(BmE), BE2HEER -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BB EHERIN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance

0]

ZETFFR

WA R DR ()

(b) DEBIRE ()
() "HEE BERAEEE)
BE-_Z2-_Z2FK_F

—hE+ZA=+—H1
FE FRARHUTAKE
BRRETHEBAENS

for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is EREIGEOLERE 2
set out below. REBEARESHERH
PR »
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RfERE RIEGEER
Terminal storage Trading Retail XHIT Total
ERER g% gE MERLE &3t
2020 2020 2020
ka3 TECRE C3- ka3
§000 $1000 §000
n T n T
Revenue fromextemal ~ SPEIEFUA
Customers 164,353 152055 2,299,128 162,790 18,425 - 13477 2481906 328322
Inter-segment revenve  ZHERA 84,146 - 9,279 - - - 93,425 -
Reportable seqment revenue TR A3 28499 152055 2308407 162,790 18,425 - 13477 2515331 328312
Reportable segment (loss)/ "J ARRHE
profit before taxation B8/ 4 (3470) 13957 8,829 231 (2329 - (B39 300 (57,00)
Interest income FIEMA 528 12,340 1) 2 3 - 1507 812 13,869
Finance costs HEHA 48,448 48410 57 1 1114 - - 2374 49,619 50,7%
Depreciation and fERES
amortisation 64,530 64,458 1,305 8 1873 = - - 67,708 64,501
(Reversal ofjprovision for ~ BHEMEFHE
impairment losses on BiE(&E)/
tradle receivables B - (34 60 - - - - - 0 (35455
Reportable segment assets JHEHHEE 979497 84167 753129 331,800 61,888 - - - 1794514 1165967
Reportable segment ~ AHEHHAS
liabiities 806,894 736332 268,199 90,898 65,013 = - - 1140106 827,30

ERERARAT
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTTHIR © BB ERHERSIN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 AR D ERERE (&)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DIWWE(E)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (i) ARETHBKA ~ B
profit or loss, assets and liabilities EENEEZYHEE
Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Total
BELZER KRIBEER @t
2020 2019
TECEE CE0E
$'000 $'000
r I
Revenue KA
Reportable segment revenue BEERETON 2575331 314,845 - 13477 2573331 328322
Elimination of inter-segment HEAHREA
revenue (93,425) - - - (93,425) -
Consolidated revenue FalA 2,481,906 314,845 - 13477 2481906 328322
(Loss)/profit (B8)/ %57

Reportable segment (loss)/profit ~ AIRE A H(EE) /HF] 3,030 16,194
Gain on disposal of discontinued ~ HER FEEEK 7 %

(73,215) 3,030 (57,021)

operations - - - 1,307,768 - 1,307,768
Unallocated other income less other A A EEE(I A E A

expenses A% 21,394 4,205 - = 21,394 4,205
Unallocated head office and FARBHRAFTY

corporate expenses (59,412) (148,223 - - (59,412) (148,223

Net fair value losses on financial ~ EEBHIERA A EHEZ

assets at fair value through profit £ RAEA A EER

or loss it (3,354) - - - (33%4) -
Consolidated (loss)/profit before ~ &ABH A (BE) /47|

taxation (38,342) (127,824 - 1234553 (38,342) 1,106,729
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PR R R YRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BB EHERIN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues,

profit or loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

ZETFFR

Assets

Reportable segment assets
Elimination of inter-segment
receivables

Other investments

Unallocated head office and
corporate assets

Others

Consolidated total assets
Liabilities
Reportable segment liabilities

Elimination of inter-segment
payables

Unallocated head office and

corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

ERRRARDA

aE

AHEDHEE
I EH ) BB 2 FE UK IR

Hibx &
AOBCEBEAREE

AHEDHRE
HhEH ) BB 2 FE S RIR

AOBECAEERARAE

=
mERA

3

o

WAR D B®RE (&)

(b)

D Ew|E (E)
(i) HEDBBA - B -

BERBBZHIRE)

1,794,514 1,165,967
(205,512) =
1,589,002 1,165,967
167,959 =
263,519 879,200
- 29,323
2,020,480 2,074,490
1,140,106 827,230
(205,512) =
934,594 827,230
99,657 293,540
1,034,251 1,120,770
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WARSBREE)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DIWWE(E)
(iii) Geographic information (iii) HEE R
The following table sets out information about the TRENEBHWEAAS
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from ()VAEERINSRFAEZ
external customers and (ii) the Group’s property, WARGNAEEZWE
plant and equipment, interests in leasehold land MELFZE - BEERZ
and buildings held for own use, intangible assets, HMETHREEFTRER -
non-current prepayments and goodwill (“specified B EERIERBIBEMNR
non-current assets”). The geographical location of BRNEE([IEEIEREE
customers is based on the location at which the EDNFEBRZER - &
services were provided. The geographical location F T & A 12 4 AR 75
of the specified non-current assets is based on the Z U B B RYE o IETEIER
physical location of the asset. HEEMAEMBRIAEEZ
BRI B AR -
Revenues from external
customers
IBEF G2 BA

146

The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) HE(TE#EES)

— Continuing operations — BT 2,481,906 314,845
— Discontinued operations — R T - 13,477
2,481,906 328,322

Specified non-current assets

EEFRRBDEE

Hong Kong a5 12,126 9,008
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) Bl (TE1EEE) 795,624 767,755
807,750 776,763
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BB EHERIN)

4

OTHER INCOME 4 Hftezs

Continuing operations: BEREEK
Interest income FEUWA 5,857 19,701
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) bE H Wies, (E518) ) F 58 15,371 (3,039)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BER

equipment R EE (54) (720)
Government grants (note (7)) AT B (R EEG)) 552 =
Net fair value losses on financial assets BARERABRZ

at fair value through profit or loss EREEA A

EBFEE (3.354) =
Others (note (ii)) Hfth (BREGi)) 15,962 6,566
34,334 22,508

Discontinued operations: IR
Interest income FBUA - 1,507
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BER

equipment =tz B1E - (1,256)
Net foreign exchange loss b 518 558 - (75)
Others Hib - 261

- 437
34,334 22,945

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group )y REE—ZT=-_TF+-_A=+—H
successfully applied for funding support from the Employment IEFE - AEEXDAEBERIT
Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by The BEBFHRZOHEREES TH
Government of The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. [RPLZEIFTEIRBEED - ZESH
The purpose of the funding is to provide financial support to BEREACERHVBEIE - Uk
enterprises to retain their employees who would otherwise be BRAGHHENET - BIEER
made redundant. Under the terms of the grant, the Group is B AEBEEHHRATEER
required not to make redundancies during the subsidy period and 8 WABMABRFARINEE
to spend all the funding on paying wages to the employees. MIE& -

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the amount included iy MBEZZ-ZEF+=-A=+—H
a net gain of $11,825,000 earned from the facilitation of the IEFE  ZeEaERNEERERK
execution of three filling stations lease agreements by the Group. =M b A ERRENFELMATE

#911,825,0007C 2 SF WLz
ZE-TFFH EBERERAT 147
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTTHIR © BB ERHERSIN)

5 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 5 BREAIEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BrEERTE B &K% T IBE =
g

(a) Finance costs (a) BRI
Continuing operations: BESEER
Interest on bank loans IRITERF B 48,423 49,783
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNE 1,472 150
49,895 49,933
Discontinued operations: IR
Interest on bank loans IRITERF B - 2,374
49,895 52,307
(b) Staff costs* (b) EIFA*
Continuing operations: BEKEER
Contributions to defined contribution ) E SRR FGR KT SI1E
retirement plans o2 R 3,043 2,015
Salaries, wages and other benefits - TEREMEF 57,549 128,420
Equity-settled share-based payment DERSEE R H
expenses (note 25(b)) (P 5E25(b)) 596 8,260
61,188 138,695
Discontinued operations: B
Contributions to defined contribution R E R BURINGT BI1E
retirement plans o2 B3 - 348
Salaries, wages and other benefits M - TEREAER - 61,002
- 61,350
61,188 200,045
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BB EHERIN)

5

5 KRBAEBREGE)

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(c) Other items Hiig g
Continuing operations: BERKEER
Amortisation of intangible assets BT A E

(note 12) (FF5E12)
Depreciation e
— owned property, plant and —BEYE  BEE
equipment B
— right-of-use assets* — (R E~
(note 10(c)) (EE)
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment Z S5 EWERTOREEE
losses of trade receivables BfE/(BE)
(note 17(b)) (P sE17(b))
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SR 2 B
— audit services —FET RS
— review services — &R
Cost of inventories (note 15(b)) FERA(HEE15(0b))
i Staff costs include $1,762,000 relating to depreciation of
right-of-assets (2019: $3,184,000 relating to operating lease
charges on properties), which amount is also included in the
respective total amount disclosed separately above.
ZE-TFFH EBERERAT

169 170
60,922 59,698
13,212 8,965

60 (35,455)

1,578 1,208
450 380
2,309,313 160,412

BIRABREMSRNFEREEE
RIHTE1,762,000C (ZF— N5 ¢
3,184,000 C Y XML ETHEE R
BE)  ZFEIEI AR Ll @R #
BN aEET -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTTHIR © BB ERHERSIN)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6 MmEBERRPZAEHR
STATEMENT
(a) Continuing operations (a) BEREEL
(i) Income tax in the consolidated income (i) HmEBBERPZFAEHIE

statement represents:

Current tax — PRC Corporate BNEATRIE — B b3
Income Tax (note ii) FriS i (B sEin) 994 575
Current tax — PRC dividend income B ERF 18 — A1 B A& 2 A
withholding tax (note iii) TE AR (B i) - 2,977
994 3,552

Notes: FfaE -

(i)  No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided for the year () BE-ZT-_ZTF+=A
ended 31 December 2020 as the Group sustained a =+—HLEFE  HE
loss for Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes for the year BREHME  ARA
(2019: $Nil). SERFRELEEE -

A L 37 % gk 2 8 RS B
FHRBE(CZ—NEF

(i) The applicable PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of the iy BEZZT-_TF+=A
PRC subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December =+—HLEFE F
2020 was 25% (2019: 25%). MEBARZEAPBEE

ESHBEA25%
T—NF :25%) °

(iii)  During the year ended 31 December 2019, undistributed (iy HEZZ—hF+=

o
—~

profits from Guangdong (Panyu) Petrochemical =+—HLEFE B
Storage & Transportation Ltd. (“GD (Panyu)”) of (HB)AmEIRHEER
RMB50,741,000 (equivalent to $59,535,000) and of BARAR([BE(E
which RMB50,741,000 (equivalent to $59,535,000) B))zAxsBABAR
related to undistributed profits for the years ended 31 #50,741 ,OOOT_EUFE"“E’\
December 2018 and period ended 28 May 2019, have 59,535,0007T) ' EF A
been declared to its holding company, Guangdong E # 50,741,000 7_|: (48
Petro-Chemicals Company Limited, before the & # 59,535,000 7t ) A
completion of the transaction mentioned in note 32. BE-_Z—N\NE+=-A8
Under the grandfathering treatments, undistributed —t+—HLEFEREZRE
profits of a foreign-invested enterprise as at 31 —E-AFERA=Z+N
December 2007 are exempted from withholding HIEEE 2 KD ERF
tax. The amount of RMB50,741,000 (equivalent to B BRI EE32F7 A &Y
$59,535,000)) was fully paid in March 2019 together 2 5 5E AT A H R A
with withholding tax liability of $2,977,000. AESAMEIERA
AIERk - ERZ A
PR&EIT - SR E 2
REBZE_ZTLF+=
A=+—B2ZEXHERF
BRBENTR - HEe
E A R ¥ 50,741,000
7t (#8 E 7 59,535,000
) ERBENHES
2977000 T E R =
—NF=AFBHZMT -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BB EHERIN)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6 MREBRRPZMBHR(E)
STATEMENT (continued)
(a) Continuing operations (continued) (a) BELEEKR(E)
(ii) Reconciliation between tax expense and (i) REABETE 2HER
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: THETTERHENT

Loss before taxation M Bl E R (38,342) (127,824)

Notional tax on loss before EARNERRE A
taxation, calculated at the rates  EEEfER 7 FHE &L
applicable in the tax jurisdictions  FRFiAIEIEETE 2

concerned HEFIA (4,721) (16,627)
Tax effect of non-deductible DA H 2 g2

expenses 5,454 5,190
Tax effect of non-taxable income  JEERFIUMA Z TR iS5 £ (5,231) (9,990)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RIERZ AEARIEE B

not recognised 2R 7,782 21,939
Withholding tax on profits FE D IRTEFNEL

distributions - 2,977
Others i (2,290) 63
Actual tax expense BEEMRIBRX 994 3,552
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WABTTHIR © BB ERHERSIN)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6 HmEBBRIPZABHR(E)
STATEMENT (continued)
(b) Discontinued operations (b) ARILBEET .
(i) Income tax in the consolidated income (i) HMEBHRPZFEHRIE:

statement represents:

Deferred tax — origination and FEFRE — SR E=R Y
reversal of temporary differences 24 K a1 %%

(notes 22(b) and 32(a)) (PMH5E22(b) %232(a)) - (136)
Notes: BT
(i)  No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided for the year () BE-T—NAF+_A
ended 31 December 2019 as the Group sustained a =t HIEFE 3%E
loss for Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes for the year. ENERmME - ARAK
SENFNEERS -
Ut I 5t BB RIS B
FTIREHE -
(i) The applicable tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries for the iy, #EZZFT—hF+=A
year ended 31 December 2019 was 25%. =+—HILFE +H
WEARZBERABER
25% °
(i) Reconciliation between tax credit and (i) REABRFTEZHER
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: REETHERZHENT

Loss before taxation (note 32) BB EsE (B RE32) - (73,215)
Notional tax on loss before BERREBERE A

taxation, calculated at the rates ~ BiEHER 7 iR E G
applicable in the tax jurisdiction  KFiATIETIE v Z&HFHIE

concerned - (18,304)
Tax effect of non-deductible PRS2 BT E

expenses - 150
Tax effect of unused tax losses not KR 2 R ENAFIBE B

recognised IR - 18,018
Actual tax credit BERBIERR - (136)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BB EHERIN)

7  DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 7 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) BRIBCEB R ERINE383(NERA
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the AI(BBEENEER) ROE 25045
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BoESMeWT -

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2020 —E-EHE
Salaries,

allowances  Retirement Share-based

Directors’ and benefits scheme payments

fee inkind contributions (note)

SR A

Him 28 Ef o

ESiHe REVKE BRATHHER (Ci2)

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Fr Fr Fr

Executive directors HITES

David An BE - 18,778 60 - 18,838
Yang Dong BE - 2,065 60 - 2,125
Liu Zhijun 2% - 1,330 60 - 1,390
Zhang Lei RE - 2,164 60 596 2,820

Independent non-executive directors B ¥ EHTESE

Li Wai Keung Fgig 120 - - - 120
Chan Chun Wai, Tony RixE 120 - - - 120
Woo King Hang e 120 - - - 120

360 24,337 240 596 25,533
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7
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SETAERIN)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

7 EEM(E)

2019 —E—hE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement  Share-based
Directors'  and benefits  Discretionary scheme EVENS
in kind bonuses  contributions (note)
AR &
i - 28k Bz
LREDYE BB RIGEIRK (FFzE)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt T T
Executive directors #HTEE
David An if = 7,308 80,000 60 - 87,368
Yang Dong BE = 1,722 5,000 60 1,333 8,115
Liu Zhijun E=E = 1,190 1,000 60 1,200 3,450
Zhang Lei K& - 1,512 1,600 60 1,200 4,372
Independent non-  BIFHTES
executive directors
Li Wai Keung E3E 120 - - - 200 320
Chan Chun Wai, Tony FEiR(E 120 - - - 200 320
Woo King Hang HHER=Z
(appointed on 28 —NERA
June 2019) —+N\BE
Z1) 60 - = - _ 60
Hai Hiu Chu (resigned  ZBER(R =T
on 28 June 2019) —NFRHA
Z+N\BEHE) 60 - - - 200 260
360 11,732 87,600 240 4,333 104,265
Note: B5E

These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the
directors under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of
these share options is measured according to the Group’s accounting
policies for share-based payment transactions as set out in note 1(p)
(ii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to reverse
amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity instruments
are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share
option scheme” in the directors’ report and note 25(b).

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no amount was
paid or payable by the Company to the directors or any of the five
highest paid individuals set out in note 8 below as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the years.

ZERBBEAARBREABRTESRL
BEEMGHEE - ZSEBIEEERRE
REERHE () (DAERH NS 2
BEHBETUNE  WRBEZBEBER
EBEFERM CRASHE  HPEaT
AR THERBAIRAM -

ZEEMAN w2 15 (B E B R R
R BRESE ) BEEEERE [ BR
REETEI | —BR R EE25(b) R R EE

BE_Z_ZFRKR_ZT—NLF+_-A
=+—BIFE ARAREC T SERS
EENTINHESAEER= M AL
FREMATEE - LRSI FEEMBEAEER
LIMABMES SIEABERE - FA
ﬁﬁgﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁ&
AFS o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BB EHERIN)

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2019: four) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The emolument in respect
of the remaining individual is as follows:

REFMAL
RAEERESESFMALS - OF
(ZE—NF : @B) ALHARAF
EE EMERWE7EE - TA
TBEmT

Salaries and other benefits S I e L A L s

Share-based payments VARR 1 i Bl 2 2

Contributions to defined contribution [FE S FURIRET &
retirement plans YEH 2 K

The emolument of the remaining individual with the highest
emoluments is within the following band:

Nil - $1,000,000 Z£%1,000,0007T
$1,000,001 - $1,500,000 1,000,001t &
1,500,0007T
9  (LOSSES)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 9

Basic and diluted (losses)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic and diluted (losses)/earnings per
share is based on the loss attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of $40,095,000 (2019: profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
$1,108,620,000) and the weighted average of 3,742,116,000
ordinary shares (2019: 3,732,638,000 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year, calculated as follows:

—ZoTHEFH EBRFRERAE

768 770
- 667
32 60
800 1,497

RRFMBE T AL ZMEEATHE
A

2020 2019
—g-®F —F-AF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AEL
1 _
- 1
SR (EE) B
EREALEE(FHE), BT

EREAREBEE(ER) BN
BEFRAAQRZEBBRBKRE
1k &5 48 40,095,000 T ( = T — A1
FARRZEBRIE R EF
1,108,620,0007T ) & B, 877 & A% N
REF 19 803,742,116,000 0% T @ A% (=
T — 14 : 3,732,638,0000% & 3@ %)
8- BREEFTEWT
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9

156

(LOSSES)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 9 SRUESE) BRE)
Basic and diluted (losses)/earnings per share (continued) BREXRE#E(FEER) BRGE)

Weighted average number of BB IMETIIH
ordinary shares
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—HBEITERER
Effect of treasury shares held under share  1RIBIX(D 2Bt 2 A Y
award scheme EFRn 2
Effect of ordinary shares issued in placement F & /R 2$1TH) B AY
(note 26(b)(ii)) S22 (PsE26(b)ii)
Effect of share options exercised BT EREN e
(note 26(b)(iii)) (Bt=E26(b) i)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares W +=—A=+—HH)
as at 31 December TR T E

3,732,638 3,732,638
(58,590) =
59,768 =
8,300 =
3,742,116 3,732,638

(Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary T ERIREEMN

equity shareholders (&518),&mF
— continuing operations — B E T
— discontinued operations RS

(40,095) (131,915)
- 1,240,535
(40,095) 1,108,620

Basic and diluted (losses)/earnings BREAREE
per share (F518), &R
— continuing operations — I ERE K (1.07) cents 1l (3.53) cents 1lli
— discontinued operations — AR | PR N/A RER  33.23 cents 1l
(1.07) cents {1l  29.70 cents 1l
The diluted (losses)/earnings per share is the same as the basic HREBEE-Z-_ZFRE_T—NF
(losses)/earnings per share as there were no dilutive potential TZA=T—RAILFENEER A
ordinary shares in existence during the years ended 31 BERCBES AR - EREE
December 2020 and 2019. (B18),/ BARGRERN(EE) &

AHER -
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

Cost:
At 1 January 2020

Exchange adjustments
Addtions

Disposals

Transfer

At 31 December 2020

Accumulated
depreciation and
amortisation:

At 1 January 2020

Exchange adjustments

Charge for the year

Written back on
disposals

At 31 Decermber 2020

Net hook value:
At 31 Decermber 2020

RoE-EE
t2A=t-A

SiHTERER

—ZoTHEFH EBRFRERAE

Buildings

Other

Filling  properties
station  leased for
faciities ~ own use

Al AR
A ARNR
§1000 §1000
i i

Dock and
storage
facilities

Office
equipment

10

Motor
vehicles

g
§1000
fn

Y3 - BERRE
(a) FREEHIR

Interests in

|easehold

[and and

buildings

held for

oWn use

Leasehold ~ Construction (notes (b)
improvements in progress  Sub-total  and (c))
BERRZ

BELTHR

k52 i

L (bR
kB HEIE it )
§000 $000 $000 §'000
T n n n

R4N - 13 101,259 5704 10,889 182 5411 118716 212175 1370891
2,093 1575 138 69,114 361 613 - 154 75294 15214 90568
- - 30519 1857 1116 1,356 - 152 36310 271798 64168

- - (2501 (1169) (222) - - - (3.89) - (3.89)
-8 - - - - - %) - - -
34565 2878 40419 1,141,061 6,959 12,858 1892 - 1266482 255247 1,521,729
8,978 - 2518 559,869 3818 1,624 1892 - 584699 38263 622962
692 56 9% 39,069 05 45 - - 058 2119 43364
1959 962 7419 56680 668 653 - - 68401 5436 73837
- - @50 (1113 (222) - - - (3842) - (3842)
11,629 1018 7588 654,505 4,489 8722 1892 - 680843 46478 73632
%36 7010 3281 486,55 2410 4,136 - - 576639 208769 785408
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 10 Y% BERREE)
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued) (a) EREEYERGE)
Interestsin
leasehold
land and
buidings
Other held for
Flling ~ properties  Dock and i
station leased for storage Office Motor  Leasghold  Construction (notes ()
Buldngs  facltis  ownuse faclites equpment  vehies impoemens inprogress  Subdotal  and(C)
HEERZ
BELHR
T
g kB HEIR
$/000 §000 $'000
T ] T
Cost: A
Milnuay2019  RoE-AE
-A-A 30940 = 5907 1,087,657 481 8431 1892 9270 1148968 216921 1,365,889
Bxchange adjustments 3558 (1189 = 35 2389 (89) (182) = 03) (2559 (@74 (30337)
Addtions HE 211 = 6,823 7,866 893 341 = 16410 37,95 - 37954
Disposals HE = = (2811) (3m) = (64) = = (3800) - (3826)
Acquisition of a WE-RHBAR
subsidary (ote 27)  (P127) - B RE = pi| I - - M - m
At31 December 2019 R-E-AF
tZA=+-B  n - 11,03 1,071,259 5704 10,889 1892 5417 1158716 212175 1,370,891
Accumulated ZifERES:
depreciation and
amortisation:
Mllnuay2019  RoE-AE
-A-A 7,760 = - 51549 3401 8,092 1599 - 536383 34317 510720
Bxchange adjustments 3 55% (198) = W (1239 (68) (146) = - (1274) (841)  (13,580)
Charge for the year EENE 1416 = 3937 57,184 485 30 293 - 63,635 41 68,362
Wiitien back on WNHERER
disposals - - (1.415) () - (642) - - (2534 - (2.534)
At31 December 2019 RZF-NF
TZRA=+-B 898 - 2518 559,869 3818 7624 1892 - GRAGY 38263 62962
Net ook value: FERE:
At31 December 2019 RZF-NF
TZR=t-A BM -85 5130 1886 325 - B4 S0 1392 74199
(b) The Group was granted the rights to use the land by the (b) AEEEHBEBTHERT i
PRC authorities with lease terms of 25 to 50 years. EAEERN - HEHR25F50

E'Eo
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 10 Y% - BERREE)
(c) Right-of-use assets (o) EREEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets FREEERAEEESDEE D
by class of underlying asset is as follows: BRI FEITAT ¢

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
—E-EE —E-NF
+=—HA=+—-H +=ZA=+—8H
Note $'000 $'000
Bt Fr T
Interests in leasehold land and BEERzHEELTH
buildings held for own use REFHEZ (i) 208,769 173,912
Other properties leased for own use, IR E KA BREY
carried at depreciated cost HEtaRHEEwE (i) 32,831 8,505
Prepayments, carried at depreciated  IZH7TE 5K ZFIBRHY
cost FE{HFIE (iii) 1,991 2,165
243,591 184,582
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases RERERANEEMS MNFRX
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: HESHWT :

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assetsfsf FAfE & EIZIBE A &

by class of underlying asset: SEEE M ERS
Interests in leasehold land and buildings #{EE B2 fE i &
held for own use BFREER 5,436 4,727
Other properties leased for own use Hihg AHEEME 7,479 3,937
Prepayments T I8 297 301
13,212 8,965
Interest on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) HESEN S (FFE5@E) 1,472 150
Expense relating to short-term leases 42 HAFAE & FISATAHIR
and other leases with remaining —E-NF+=A
lease term ending on or before =+—HzkZHl
31 December 2019 FEREEAME S
W REFRE - 2,430
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(c) Right-of-use assets (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, additions to
right-of-use assets were $58,317,000 (2019: $9,768,000).
This amount related to the capitalised lease payments
payable under a number of tenancy agreements for a
filling station of $30,519,000 and interests in leasehold
land and buildings held for own use of a lease holding
property of $27,798,000 (2019: $7,962,000 (including
$1,139,000 from acquisition of a subsidiary (note 27)).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were
no additions to right-of-use assets in relation with
prepayments of costal usage right additions to right-of-
use assets (note 10(c)(iii)) (2019: $1,806,000).

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 18(d) and
28(b), respectively.

(i) Interests in leasehold land and buildings held

for own use

The Group was granted with land use rights for a
period of 25 to 50 years on leasehold lands and held
an office building located in the PRC. The Group is
the registered user of these lands and the building,
including the whole or part if undivided share in
the underlying land. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the land use rights from
the government authorities and the building from
the previous registered owners, and there are no
ongoing payments to be made under the terms of
the leases.

(ii) Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties for its retail business, where its filling
station is primarily located, as its offices and staff
quarters through tenancy agreements. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 2 to 20 years.
Lease payments are usually increased every 2 to 3
years to reflect market rentals.

(o)

FEREEE(E)
HE-Z-_FTF+_A=*1—
HIEFE  FREEERER
58,317,000 T ( = & — J1 F -
9,768,0007T) ° %% REEAIRIREL
BRI ERRENNE RN
FAE{13:30,519,0007T R iFER
FAz i RAEF 27,798,000
T(ZZF—NF : 7,962,0007T
(BIERE BB QR MG
1,139,0007C (MI5E27))EFRE »

HE_ZT-_ZTF+_A=+—
HILFE r TEE@EEEER
EENRENEREEERE
(EE10(0)(ii) (== — N5 :
1,806,00075)

HEReRHRBMNHERRE
j:‘J/qu E' *ﬁ n$ E’\)E'JU%SZE’\W uf
18(d)5228(b) °

(i) HEEAZEELHRE
FREZE
AEBRUATEHEE
T IER A HI25 =506 1Y
T AR — R
PRE - AEBEAEZEL
HEEFHFMEBEFA
a%ﬁﬁhﬁ%%&%

ADEMGE - B
—é@mﬁmﬁ LA 18] IR
e BEER L F AR
mEREMES AWEE
FREBEHEGRRBER
R ER BT o

(i) HtEgAHEEWE
rEBEDEBEERZER
HTEEB(E MM E
DRTEH) VS H R
R ARERAE
ETIEE  HE—RUF
AH2E206 - MERZE
BE2E3F LA AR
MHES °
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 10 Y% BERREE)
(c) Right-of-use assets (continued) (c) FHABEEE)
(iii) Prepayments (i) FEAFE

Prepayments represent prepayment of costal usage AT RIBFE AL A R Bl #Y
right located in the PRC. The Group is granted with AT RIE - K
costal usage rights for a period of 8 years. Lump sum SEERESHERE B
payments were made upfront to acquire the costal Hi84F - EXX T —FBATH
usage right from the government authorities and I LRI E B
there are no ongoing payments to be made under EEE AR REHEEK
the terms of the lease. P EE M FIER BT

11 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 11 FENFEREMERKIR

Prepayment for purchase of property, BEYE  BER

plant and equipment FEETE IR 2,662 20,546
Prepayment for right-of-use {5 AR & 2= T8 15 7R (Bt

assets (note 10(c)(iii)) FE10(c)iii)) 1,991 2,165
Other receivables H b e sIE 11,417 -

16,070 22,711
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12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 BREE
Club memberships o8

Cost: R :

At 1 January n—A—H 3,858 3,869

Exchange adjustments VE 5 R 39 (11)

At 31 December W+-—A=+—H 3,897 3,858

Accumulated amortisation: e o

At 1 January n—HA—H 2,464 2,304

Exchange adjustments FEE 3, ZA 28 25 (10)

Charge for the year FEITE 169 170

At 31 December W+=ZA=t—-H 2658 2,464

Net book value: BREFE :

At 31 December W+—BA=+—H 1,239 1,394
The amortisation charge for the year is included in RNEEZHBERGTAGEERR
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated income [{TBER ] -
statement.
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13 GOODWILL 13 BHE

$'000
T
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—-NF—H—H -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 27) U g — BT B 2 B (T 5E27) 4,729
Exchange adjustments b 34, 38 B -

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 HR-Z—hF+-_A=+—HK
—ZET-FF—H—H 4,729
Exchange adjustments [E 3 % 304
At 31 December 2020 R-E-FF+—-_A=+—H 5,033

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units P ENEFBRESEHR KK

LY
("CGU") identified according to country of operating and BN ELEMN([IREE
operating segment as follows: K

Bz )T

Trading 25 5,033 4,729
The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on R EABNHIIE R ENE A
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow BEFESL - ZSEERARER
projection which are prepared on the basis of reasonable SRR - THIRRME R RARRTISAR
assumptions reflective of prevailing and future market AHERRRER - REREMR12%
conditions. The cash flow is discounted using a discount rate of WITIREFR(ZZE—NEF : 12%) °
12% (2019: 12%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect FrATIRE ART A MR T EHEE
specific risk relating to the relevant CGU. ReEF BB ERRE o
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14

OTHER INVESTMENTS

14. HfigE

Unlisted equity securities at FVOCI BAREFARMBEE
(non-recycling) ek 2 3E_E TR AN RE
FH(AArEm) 118,557 -
Financial assets measured at FVPL WARERT AR
ZEREE (ii) 49,402 -
167,959 -
()  The unlisted equity securities are shares in Bravo Transport () #Z%F3kLEWERAZESH BBravo
Holdings Limited (“BTHL"), a company incorporated in the British Transport Holdings Limited([BTHL])
Virgin Islands and engaged in investment holding. On 9 October Wk E—ERRBELHSHT
2020, all of the BTHL shares held by the Group (“the Charged MR DR R EREER - B
Shares”) was charged to China CITIC Bank International Limited —E-ZTF+ANA - AEEEE
as part of the financial assistance provision to BTHL. On 24 B2 FBTHLAR M (TR, 1) #EE
December 2020, the Charged Shares were released pursuant to a FTHERIT(BER)BRAF - A
deed of release dated 24 December 2020. REFBTHLA B DM ER) - B
ZZEZTF+ZA=+MA - HR
BORERHA-ZT-_TF+ A
—+ 0 B RREZIRE AR o
The Group designated its investment in BTHL at FVOCI (non- AEBEEEBTHLNIRE T AR
recycling), as the investment is held for strategic purposes. No AAEFAEM R (A
dividends were received on this investment during the year (2019: @) - AAFEZIRE T EREEE B
Nil). B o FRTERZILERERE (=
T—hEF &)
(i) The financial assets represent interests in a limited partnership. (il ZELRMEERBREBARIER -
15  INVENTORIES 15 &
(a) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet comprise: (a) REEEEBERAZFEEE:

Oil and petroleum products Bl R AEmR 171,269 39,796
Oil and petroleum products in transit EE A M N A RE MR - 105,118
Consumable parts JHFEM 3,419 4,240

174,688 149,154
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15 INVENTORIES (continued) 15 BE#E)
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as (b) BRABIRFTAEBERZEES
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: BEofwT

Continuing operations: BEKEE
Carrying amount of inventories sold Z&EFEREE 5(0) 2,309,313 160,412
16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A CONTROLLED 16 REMBLAAR —BEREFEBMEE
STRUCTURED ENTITY B
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (a) BREMEBAT
The following list contains only the particulars of LTHREBEHAEFBNE
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or B BEXAERERTENN
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary BRAEIZFHE - BRIERHHRA
shares unless otherwise indicated. B RIFTFE 2 It FE Bl i imAR o
Attributable equity
Place of Particulars interest
Place of incorporation/ of issued and FEfERE
Name of subsidiary operation establishment paid up capital  Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
EBR
KEARER ey /RIS BHRRAHES B TERH
Continuing operations
RREERY
Guangdong Petro-Chemicals Company Limited HongKong ~ Hong Kong 20,000,000 shares - 100%  Investment holding
ESRBILIERAR &b &b of §1 each RERR
20,000,000
BiREEIT
Oriental Point International Limited HongKong  Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares - 100% Tradeof oiland
RREEBRAT B4 ; of $1 each petrochemical products
1,000,000 EEAmRAER
BiRERIT
Timeslink Development Limited HongKong ~ Hong Kong 10,000 shares ~ 100% - Provision of administrative
EaiRERAA S ; of $1 each services
10,000% RETHRE
SRAETT
Union Petro-Chemicals (V) Company Limited  Hong Kong ~ British Virgin 100 shares 100% - Investment holding
ERBRRMTARAR BE Isands of US$1 each REBR
ABRAES 100
BREEIET
Guangzhou Zhongshui Petrochemical The PRC The PRC RMB580,000,000 - 92%  Investment holding
Development Limited B HE ARH580,000,0007T RARR
EMEER AR T ERM TER
ERAA( AL
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16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A CONTROLLED
STRUCTURED ENTITY (continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

16 REMBARKR -—MZEFEEUE
e
() REMBIR(E)

Attributable equity
Place of Particulars interest
Place of incorporation/ of issued and JEk
Name of subsidiary operation establishment paid up capital  Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
BEAR
[if: kL Eeny i/ RL % EMRRAE B BE IEEH
Dongguan Dongzhou International The PRC The PRC RMB555,000,000 - 92%  Provision of terminal, storage
Petrochemical Storage Limited i G AR555,000,0007T and transhipment services
("DZ International”) RUBE  BERESR
REmRNER AR RARAR
(TRMER )
Guangzhou Hans Energy Investment Ltd. The PRC The PRC RMB580,000,000 - 92%  Investment holding
("GZ Hans") EF # AR580,000,00010 RERRK
BMEREREARRAR(EMER])
Shanghai Diyou Industry Co., Ltd ("SHDY") ~ The PRC The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 91%  Trade of oil and
DE#EREZERAA( LEak]) e B (paid up capital of petrochemical products
RMB4,702,000) EEhnRAtER
(Note 2)
50,000,007
(BHRRAARS
4,702,0007¢) (F££2)
Guangzhou Hans Industry & Transportation ~ The PRC The PRC RMB5,000,000 - 60%  Operation of a filling station
Energy Co., Ltd. # # (paid up capita e,
ENTERIRERARAT(ERIR)) of RMB410,000)
(Note 2)
ARES5,000,00070
(BHRRAARE
410,007z ) (¥f32)
Guangzhou Zengcheng Industry & The PRC The PRC RMB1,200,000 - 60%  Operation of a filing station
Transportation Filing Station Co., Ltd. " G ARH1,2000007T e,
BMEHE T MaERA
(R IR])
Creative Apex Intenational Holding Limited ~ HongKong ~ British Virgin 1 share of US$ each 100% - Investment holding
SISERERERAA B Isands RERAE T RER
ZERAHEE
Glorify Group Limited HongKong ~ British Virgin 1 share of US$1each 100% - Investment holding
B Isands 1RERAEIET RERRK
ZERAES
Discontinued operations
Bl £
GD (Panyu) (Note 3) The PRC The PRC RMB220,000,000 - - Provision of terminal,
EB(ER)(:3) # G AE220,000,0007T storage, warehousing and
transhipment services

R b 2ER

LT
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16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A CONTROLLED
STRUCTURED ENTITY (continued)

(a)
Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

GD (Panyu) and GZ Hans are sino-foreign equity joint
venture companies and #8541k, DZ International,
EBTAR - #T and SHDY are limited liability
companies. The official names of &A1k, DZ
International, B T2 and &3 T2 are in Chinese
and the English translations are for reference only.

The amount represented the registered share capital
which is not fully paid up yet.

The equity interest in GD (Panyu) was disposed to
Guangzhou Gas Group Company Limited on 28 May
2019. See note 32.

The following table lists out the information relating to
GZ Hans and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020
and, which are the subsidiaries of the Group which
have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”) as at
31 December 2020 and 2019. The summarised financial
information presented below represents the amounts
before any inter-company elimination.

ZETFFR

ERRFEERAT

16 REMBLAAR —EZEFERMLE

B

(a)

435 )

REMBRR (&)
fEEr . BE(ER)REMNERS

HONEERTE  HIRA
£ RMEE  Z8T
BTN EEER
ERERBEERA - PIE
Afe - RMNERR - ERBT
RZRIER TR 2 IER BT
RPX - BEXBEERS

Eo

firE2 . ZEEERABRNZM
A o

a3 REsER)NRESR

—E-hAFERA=-1+NH
HETFEMNRRERFR
AR) e RBIEE32 °

TEREVNE@EMNES KX ELHE
RER_E_EF+_A=+—
HOER  ZSRAR_T=F
FRZFE-NF+ZA=+—H
BAREERAEAFFERER
(M3EZRiEms ) MMEB AR -
TX 25 BEREZ ARG
ER R RIHEEHENESEE -
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16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A CONTROLLED 16
STRUCTURED ENTITY (continued)

REMBARAR —HZEHEBLEE
e

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a) REMBATE)

2020 2019

—B-EF
$'000 $'000
F7T Tt
GZ Hans and GZ Hans and
its subsidiaries its subsidiaries
EMNERR BNZER R
HK B A F] HEIB AR
NCI percentage IR ER A A 8% 8%
Non-current assets IERENE E 797,214 770,255
Current assets MEEE 485,011 527,819
Current liabilities mENEE (354,251) (239,120)
Non-current liabilities JEMEABE (697,156) (859,105)
Net assets BEFE 230,818 199,849
Carrying amount of NCI IR R E A 18,465 15,988
Revenue WA 2,481,275 314,331
Profit for the year F R 18,022 14,800
Total comprehensive income FHWEBREE 16,977 13,673

Profit allocated to NCI AR IHERERR

Sa A 1,442 1,184
Dividends paid to NCI (A SE1E AR R 2 I A~ AR 2 - =
Cash flows from operating activities BETEELIRSRE 119,291 25,508
Cash flows from investing activities REETBHELRSRE (12,922) (181,807)
Cash flows from financing activities METEELRERE (173,912) (496,299)

(b) RE-—BZEHEBLER

(b) Investment in a controlled structured entity

168

The Company directly controlled a trust (the “Share Award
Scheme Trust”) that was set up in relation to the Group’s
share award scheme adopted on 15 April 2019 (the “Share
Award Scheme”). Principal activities of the Share Award
Scheme Trust include purchasing, administering and
holding the Company’s shares under the Share Award
Scheme for the benefit of eligible employees (see Note
25(a)). The Company has the power to direct the relevant
activities of the Share Award Scheme Trust and it has the
ability to use its power over the trust to affect its exposure
to returns. Therefore, the Share Award Scheme Trust is
considered as a controlled structured entity of the Group.

ARABEEZEHERNEER-F
—NFEA+RBRAHBRND
REETEI([ I RT3 DA
3k 32 S FE ([ B fn 225+ 811
FEl) o Bin BB BIEFEMER
ABBIERIB R 8 R
BRETIZMGERE  EEEET
BARRBBG (RMFE25)) © A&
RAVERETB ZEE B1ER

RS E N B EREY
EREMENFEH IR - Eit -

Betn B2 Rt Bl e AR E
RS AR EEE
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

17

B2 R HEMmBEYRFR

Trade debtors, net of loss allowance MR EEEED

Financial assets measured at amortised cost 1 S5 AN 5T & &)
SRVEE

Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIA Ko EAth & LR

The amounts of the prepayments and other receivables
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense after more
than one year are $1,667,000 (2019: $1,316,000). Apart from
these, all the other trade and other receivables are expected to
be recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

(a) Ageing analysis
As at balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of

trade debtors (which are included in trade and other
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of
allowance, is as follows:

80,116 95,513
80,116 95,513
436,748 78,550
516,864 174,063

TEHR—F RN SERAERZTE
T3R8 K H i fE W 5K I8 41,667,000
TT(=ZZ—N%F :1,316,0007T) ° Kt
ZON - BB 5 R E b EWGRIE
TER N —F R B ERABER °

(a) BRERDT
REER - BIEEZAHEEN
BREEZESERERGIAZ
5 REMBEUGRIE) 2 BRER DT
UM

Within 1 month —EAR 80,116 91,459
Over 1 month but within 2 months — @A H1ER{E AR - 1,124
Over 2 months but within 3 months MEA N FE=EAR - 34
Over 3 months but within 6 months @A EBAREARA - 2,896

80,116 95,513

Subject to negotiation, credit is generally only available
to major customers with well-established trading records.
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to
its trade customers. Further details on the Group's credit
policy and credit risk arising from trade debtors are set out
in note 28(a).

“EOTHEFH ERRRERAT

B ARBERME @ REE—R
ERTARHRZRHEIEER
F - AEEGBETESEFP T30
RZBHRES - BEAEEEER
REEZRYERELE ZEER
B 2 — T RHIFEN I EE28(a) ©
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17 TRADE AND OTHER'RECEIVABLES (continued)
(b) Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables during the year is as follows:

17 ESREMERRIEEZE)
(b) FREHEKEEFTIEEEERE
BREB)INT -

Balance at 1 January W—A—HW%H% - 38,927
Amounts written off during the year F M SEFRIR - (3,358)
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment FARERBE
losses during the year BE(EEE) 60 (35,455)
Exchange difference fE N =5 4 (114)
Balance at 31 December Rt+—A=+—H
EOf 64 =

In prior years, receivables that were past due mainly
represented an amount of $38,927,000 due from a
customer (“Customer A”) that was in financial difficulty.
To reclaim the trade debtor, the Group filed an application
to the court in the PRC and the court granted the Group a
lien on Customer A’s goods stored at the storage facilities
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2015.
Subsequently, the goods were sold by the court through
an auction in 2016 and the related sale proceeds of the
goods (“the auction proceeds”) were being held under
the custody of the court since then.

In June 2018, the Group has filed a written request to the
court for releasing the auction proceeds to the Group.

In December 2018, forced execution processes in respect
of the auction proceeds and distribution of Customer A’s
assets were initiated and applied by the first mortgagor
of Customer A, a third party. The court has accepted this
application. Based on the foregoing and considering the
complexity of the forced execution processes and the
number of related creditors involved therein, the directors
reassessed the recovery of receivables due from Customer
A during the year ended 31 December 2018. The directors
were of the opinion that the expected credit losses of
the amount due from Customer A as at 31 December
2018 amounting to $38,927,000 was necessary to be
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2018.

RBEFE  afRERREEFEERE —
HEVBER#E 2 EF(BRR]) 2 BUGK
1838,927,0007T ° AW EE F FEREREK
BE-_ZT—RAE+-_A=+—HILtFE -
REBEZMAPBUERRERE - MARE
RZEBEETASERE L FERELSRS
Bt EmiEREER - H1E2 - »
TE AT RFELLERBRELE

BEREEEEMSRE(HERMSEK
1H]) Bt EBERARE ©

RZZF—N\FRA  AEESRERRER
EEHF  EXRMAKERERERSEK
I8 °

RZZE—NEFE+=A HEMEREED
ﬁ%ﬁ@éémﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁmgﬁﬁﬁ
—HERA(E=F BRI D - AREE
SRR o B E XTI R ERR T2
Fr g s A R By R AR E R AR
AB - BEEEEFIBEZE_ZE—N\F
+TZ A=+t HIEFERKEFRREZ
EIE §$%%ﬁm£ﬂai—f
—N\F+-_A=+—BULEFEERN=
—A¢+:HE+—E%%§ﬁ$%EZ
TEHA{= B E51838,927,0007T °
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(b) Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of

17 BESRHMBWEEGE)
(b) FREZRUSRFIBEERRE

trade receivables during the year is as follows: (continued)

In November 2019, the court issued the final allocation
plan for the auction proceeds and in December 2019,
the court released first part of the auction proceeds. As a
result of the new development in the court proceedings,
additional storage and warehousing income of $8,871,000
(note 3) and interest income of $11,997,000 (note 4)
were recognised.

In addition, related impairment losses of $35,455,000
(note 5(c)) were reversed. The unrecoverable part of
the previously impaired trade debtor of $3,358,000 was
written off accordingly.

In March 2020, the court released the remaining part of
the auction proceeds.

18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION
(a) Cash and bank balances comprise:

REHNT : (&)

—E-NF+—R  ERpt
Eﬁﬁ/%?xlﬁﬁéﬂjm%%@a?r%u *
IR —F—hFE+—BEmRaEit
HEBRIE - BRNEARFAA
FER  MERRBEINGTERE
BE U A8,871,0007T (Ft3E3) &Kl
BULA11,997,0007T (Hf3E4) o

AN - 8RR E &5 135,455,000
TC(FIsES(c)) BB E - LRTE R
ENE S RUERF TR E B
3,358,000 T iR it hi 8 o

N\ZETHEZR - ARBEI
BTSRRI ED S

RERBITERRAMBRSREER

(a) RERBITHHKELE

Cash and bank balances
Less: Restricted cash (note 1)

Note 1: The restricted cash were held for the purpose of bank
guarantee and bank borrowing.

—ZoTHEFH EBRFRERAE

B MIRTTHES
W ZRFIES
CESD

353,219 974,510
(67,347) =
285,872 974,510

W ERHRSRBITERRE
R -
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18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER CASH FLOW 18

INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash used in

operations:

SETAERIN)

(&)

2R -

BeRRTEKRAMESREER

(b) BRBATGREKLEBIARSE

Loss before taxation

— Continuing operations

— Discontinued operations

— Gain on disposal of
discontinued operations

Adjustments for:

Interest income

Finance costs

Depreciation

Amortisation of intangible assets

Equity-settled share-based
payment expenses

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Provision for/(reversal of)
impairment of trade receivables

Gain on disposal of discontinued
operations

Net fair value losses on financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Exchange differences

Changes in working capital:
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and

other receivables
(Decrease)/increase in trade

and other payables

and contract liabilities
Decrease in amounts due to

related parties

Cash used in operations

172

BrEL AT 18
— B TS (38,342) (127,824)
— R AR T 32(a) - (73,215)
—HER
Bl 32 - 1,307,768
BATBIBED
FE
FBUA 4 (5.857) (9,890)
BT RRAR 5(a) 49,895 52,307
e 5(c) 74,134 68,663
B EEEY 5(c) 169 170
LAESEE Y
B 15 > 5(b) 596 8,260
LEDE - BE R
[iEEE 4 54 1,976
Z S WA SORE
BtE, (BEE)  5(0 60 (35,455)
HELR
s 32 - (1,307,768)
FREREARE
TR ERMEE
NAEEEBFE 4 3,354 -
PE H ZERE (15,759) 2,245
BBEES 2B
FEEN (15,055) (66,005)
B 5 R EAREIR
SRIAIE N (344,971) (10,231)
B 5 R EAM S
FEREHER
CRA), /180 (8,266) 47,081
FE1STREES 5 5RIE
e (29,347) -
CEEIEFTRAR S (329,335) (141,918)
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18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER CASH FLOW 18 BEeRBTASKEMBEEREER
INFORMATION (continued) (%)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing () AMEITBHELEZEE/HE

activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash
flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

TR AEEBRMERBESE
ZEBEEH I FE BERER
FReFE  METHELEZE
BEHRATREMEIARKIE
EREBHRAEEBGEHERE
KOBERBREZHMEELEZRS

ZETFFR

MEZBE -
Amounts due
to related Lease
parties Bank loans liabilities
A
] RITEHK HEAE
$'000 $'000 $'000
i i i
(Note 23) (Note 20) (Note 21)
(KzE23) (HzE20) (WzE21)
At 1 January 2020 A_E-T45-F-A 280,406 702,499 8,132 991,037
Changes from financing cash flows: HERSRENED
Proceeds from new bank loans MROERAEIE - 89,846 - 89,846
Repayment of bank loans BERTER - (50,539) - (50,539)
Repayment to a related party BE— 2R (168,462) - - (168,462)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHERSNMERS - - (1.472) (1472)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHERSNERE S - - (6,219) (6,219)
Interest paid 2RFIE - (48,411) - (48,411)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ EER S RELBA (168,462) (9,104) (7,691) (185,257)
Exchange adjustments R A% (367) 47,960 1,366 48,959
Other changes: Hip 25
Payment to a related party PEAEERETEL
classified as operating cashflow OREA L YRE S (29,347) - - (29,347)
Increase in lease liabilities from entering FRITUNHEEEL
into new leases during the year REREEN - - 30,519 30,519
Interest expenses (Note 5(a)) FIEFS (FizE5a) - 48,423 1472 49,895
Total other changes Ehw@gazt (29,347) 48,423 31,991 51,067
At 31 December 2020 i e
+-R=1+-8 82,230 789,778 33,798 905,806

ERRRARDA
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18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER CASH FLOW 18 HERBITESKREMBESREER

INFORMATION (continued) (#&)
() Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

(0 BMEEBELZEBEHRE)

activities (continued)

Amounts due
to related Lease
parties Bank loans liabilities
ipiElv]
TR RITER
$'000 $'000
Tr T
(Note 23) (Note 20) (Note 21)
(KizE23) (MizE20) (HzE21)
At 1 January 2019 W-Z-NE—A—-H 205,835 879,934 5,907 1,091,676
Changes from financing RERSRENED
cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loan MBTETAEHE = 749,896 = 749,896
Repayment of bank loans BEETER - (908,068) = (908,068)
Advances from a related party —ZEEE 7By FE 236,369 = = 236,369
Repayment to a related party BE—LERATE (232,042) - - (232,042)
Interest element of BREERER
lease rentals paid pilfsEis - - (150) (150)
Capital element of ARtk
lease rentals paid EXEn = = (4,334) (4,334)
Interest paid BRFE - (51,934) = (51,934)
Total changes from RERENELHA:
financing cash flows 4,827 (210,106) (4,484) (209,763)
Exchange adjustments BB (1,189) (19,436) (32) (20,707)
Other changes: Hib#E
Increase in lease liabilties FRAIVHAEEEL
from entering into REAREEM
new leases during the year - - 7,962 7,962
Decrease in lease liabilities FRRAISIIESEEL
from early termination of REaBERD
leases during the year - - (1,371) (1,371)
Interest expenses (Note 5(a)) MEFL (H5a) = 52,157 150 52,307
Proceed from disposal of HER HEEREEY
discontinued operations FrETA 70,933 = = 70,933
Total other changes Hib 884 70,933 52,157 6,741 129,831
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-nF+=R
=1+-H 280,406 702,499 8,132 991,037
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18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER CASH FLOW 18 BHERBITHABKRHMEESREER
INFORMATION (continued) (#&)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d) HERESRHEZRE
Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement FFIAGABR e RERMNEERRE
for leases comprise the following: SREBIETHSE

Within operating cash flows BEREEREREA - 2,430
Within investing cash flows BERRERERE - 1,806
Within financing cash flows BERBEREREA 7,691 4,484
7,691 8,720

These amounts relate to the following: ZEREETHERA :

Lease rentals paid ENHEERS 7,691 6,914

Prepayment for right-of-use assets FRAEEEENFIA
(note 11) (BzE11) - 1,806
7,691 8,720
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19 TRADE AND OTHER‘PAYABLES AND CONTRACT 19 EFRHMENRERENVEARS

LIABILITIES

Trade creditors B ENBERR 73,382 49,862
Contract liabilities aHaE 27,606 31,333
Other creditors and accruals Hih BN R RETIRE A 26,873 47,057

127,861 128,252

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, all the trade and other
payables are expected to be settled or recognised as income
within one year.

As at balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of trade creditors
(which are included in trade and other payables), based on the
invoice date, is as follows:

RZE_FEFR-_ZF—NF+=A
=t—H FBEESREMERNKE
AR —FERBEREREBUWA -

REER - WEZEEHIIROEMNE
HETARB S R EAM B FIE) R
DT -

Within 1 month

—fEAR

Contract liabilities

The Group receives part of the contract value as a deposit from
customers when they sign the oil and petroleum product trade
agreement. This deposit is recognised as a contract liability until
the customer takes possession of and accepts the products. The
rest of the consideration is typically paid according to the credit
terms granted to the customer. The amount of the deposit was
negotiated on a case by case basis with customers.

73,382 49,862

BREE
EEREAMAROBERE SHE
o AREEFIRSHOANER
EREE REPERERERUKER
Al - ZERESERR/ENEE - H#T
REBERBERTEFPHNEERNX
1o meeBERENBRETPER
BT -
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19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT 19

LIABILITIES (continued)
Movement in contract liabilities

ESRAEMENRERGNEE(E)

BRAEEES

At 1 January

Decrease in contract liabilities as a result
of recognising revenue during the year
that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year

Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
receiving deposits from customers

At 31 December

20 BANK LOANS

(a) The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans is as

follows:

n—AH—H 31,333 =
FRERFIETAELN

BEMHRAZREL

a &R

(31,333) =

HEFPESZEEEN

EHAaEEMN 27,606 31,333
Rn+-—A=+—H 27,606 31,333

20 RITEX
(a) MITEFEREENDWWT :

Current liabilities
Bank loans

Non-current liabilities
Bank loans

—ZoTHEFH EBRFRERAE

FBEE
IRITER 162,218 50,021
FREBEE
IRITER 627,560 652,478
789,778 702,499
177
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20 BANK LOANS (contifted) 20 SRITERE)
(b) At 31 December 2020, the bank loans were repayable as (b) R=—Z2E=_FF+_-_A=+—8"
follows: IRITEFAEN T HREEE

Bank loans (secured) RITER(HER)
Within 1 year or on demand R —F A E R 162,218 50,021
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFNA 81,701 63,358
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERFR 545,859 277,887
After 5 years hFE - 311,233
627,560 652,478
789,778 702,499
(c) At 31 December 2020, the Group had banking facilities () RZZEZZFF+=ZA=+—8"
totalling $789,778,000 (2019: $702,499,000) which AEEZRITHRERES H
were secured by certain of the Group’s property, plant 789,778,000 L (Z T — N & :
and equipment with net book value of $365,765,000 702,499,000 7T ) » JyLAA £
(2019: $383,217,000) and interests in leasehold land 8K % {8 /4 365,765,000 7T ( —
and buildings held for own use with net book value T — L4 : 383,217,0007T) Z
of $180,176,000 (2019: $173,912,000). The banking M - BEREZERREFER
facilities of the Group amounted to $813,542,000 180,176,000 7T ( =& — N4 -
(2019: $702,499,000) of which $789,778,000 (2019: 173,912,00070) 2 FBEEERZ
$702,499,000) were utilised. HE T RABFRR R - K

SE 2 HR1TRLE /813,542,000
T (ZZF—N4F : 702,499,000
JT) » H 789,778,000 (=&
— JLEE : 702,499,0007T ) & &
)EH °
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21 LEASE LIABILITIES 21 HEEE
At 31 December 2020, the lease liabilities were repayable as RZBE-ZTF+-_A=+—H #HE
follows: BECEEBRDT

Within 1 year —F R 6,487 5,246

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFERN 4,419 2,665

After 2 years but within 5 years MEERERFR 1,041 221

After 5 years hFE 21,851 =
27,311 2,886

33,798 8,132

22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 22 JREEEEBRBZHE
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet () HEEEEBRZABBIERE
represents:

PRC Corporate Income Tax PR ESH 584 1,481
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22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 22 REBEAEBRPZAEHRE)
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) EERELHEEEREE
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in FARGEEERGBRTERL
the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during EREFRIBEB EAKESD REES
the year are as follows: BRAT :

Depreciation

allowances
in excess of
the related
depreciation
i HARBAITEE Y
wERE
$'000
Tt
Deferred tax arising from: EEHERE :
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—H—H 2,971 2,971
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 32(c)) HE—EM B AR
(FF3E32(0)) (2,829) (2,829)
Exchange adjustments b 5 SR B (6) (6)
Credited to profit or loss (note 6(b)) T AIBz=E (FiEE6(b)) (136) (136)
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 R=-Z—HF
and 31 December 2020 +=—A=+—8"
—T-ZEF-H—H
M_Z_TF
+=-A=+—8H - -
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22

T FFR

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(continued)
() Deferred tax assets not recognised:

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(qg), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of the cumulative tax losses of approximately
$595 million (2019: $613 million) as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entity. The tax losses of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries will
expire in 5 years after the relevant tax losses were incurred
while tax losses for the Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong

do not expire under the current tax legislation.

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

In PRC, dividends paid by a foreign-invested enterprise
to its foreign investors are subject to withholding tax at
a rate of 10% unless reduced by treaty (5% for foreign
investors who are registered in Hong Kong provided
they meet certain criteria). Under the grandfathering
treatments, undistributed profits of a foreign-invested
enterprise as at 31 December 2007 are exempted from

withholding tax.

At 31 December 2020, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted to
$10,364,000 (2019: $1,501,000). Deferred tax liabilities
of $518,000 (2019: $75,000) have not been recognised
in respect of the tax that would be payable on the
distribution of these retained profits as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that the profits will

not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

ERRFEERAT

22

BARERERSTZFERHE)

(9]

(d)

piry

AR ZELEHREE

REBH () FFE 2 SRR
AR EREERRRTKRAIERE
BB 15 R 1R B FE AR B A
NIEHERER - AEEARER
R HEEBBHSSRET(ZF
—NF ¢ 6.13187T) FERBIELER
THEE - NEBER T BEHEAR
MRS BRI R NS B IR %
HERSFERER  MRBBRITH
BED) - AEEEFBHHBA
BB RS -

AERZELEHRRE
RAE - BREE ek rR D B
Sh - SNELEXNEBIMRES
Z R BIREAN10% TR (6 &
REEEMTE ANEETIRE
MSNEIREE - AR5%) - ER
RIBOERBIT - SIMERER—
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o MR R B TRHIR -

RZEZFTF+=-_A=+—8
BARDIRMB ARG EREMNE
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HAEAERRIL)

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES
As at 31 December 2020, the amounts due to related parties
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2019, apart from the non-current amounts
due to related parties of $167,448,000 which were unsecured,
interest-fee and repayable after one year, the amounts due
to related parties are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
within one year.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances of
its staff to the retirement scheme. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make
the required contribution under the scheme. The Group has no
other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits
associated with this scheme beyond the annual contributions
described above.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to
the plan vest immediately.

23

24

A BB TR
R=F-TE+-A=1—8 &
W BB AR - 28 RER
FREE -

R_ZE—NE+=-BA=+—H KT
EIEA RERAR—FREENRE
< B3 Bk 75 JE BN BA 3K 78 167,448,000 7T
Gh o FENREE T OB AEIEE - 28
RBR—FRNERE -

EERAKEF
AEEGETEZHBARZEE /T
BT PR e 2 BIR B IR R AR FIAT
BIZRE - AKREAZEBT 2%
B B RE TR BB DR
ZIRIRE BIR o SRR IRIRAET B
ME » AREZHE—EERREZET
SR 2K o B LB FHR
S - REBR XS RIKE @A
EYEEMEANREE

REBNAEEBRBIEHEAZE
8 BEFBREIENESTEED
HAEmHEREeFE([ARESE
) - afESFEI T —HABY T
AEB 2 REHRFURIRET S - iRIKR
Bertg BEEREBASEIRESR
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AR A #8R8 YA 30,0007T &R © BT
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI + SHERERIN)

(a) Share Award Scheme

(a) KRB E

The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme on
15 April 2019 (the “Adoption Date”) for the purpose of
retaining participants and encouraging them to make
contributions to the growth and development of the
Group.

Pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme (the
“Scheme Rules”), the Board of Directors (the “Board”)
may grant an award to anyone (other than any excluded
participant) who is an employee, director, or consultant of
any member of the Group for participation in the Share
Award Scheme and determine the terms of the award.
The Share Award Scheme is subject to the administration
of the Board in accordance with the Scheme Rules. The
Board may engage one or more trustees to administer the
Share Award Scheme as the Board thinks fit. The Share
Award Scheme will terminate on the tenth anniversary of
the Adoption Date or such earlier date as the Board may
determine. The Board shall not grant any further awards if
such award would cause the aggregate number of shares
underlying such award and all other outstanding awards
(taken together with all unvested awarded shares granted
under the Scheme Rules) to exceed 5% of the number of
issued shares at the date of grant. The Board may, from
time to time remit funds to the trustee for the purposes of
the Share Award Scheme, and such money will form part
of the trust fund. The Board may instruct the trustee to
purchase the number of shares underlying the award from
the open market (either on-market or off-market) and the
trustee shall hold such shares on trust for the participants
until they are vested in accordance with the Scheme Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
remitted in total of $20,000,000 to the trustee for the
purchase of shares of the Company pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme. On 15 April 2019, the trustee purchased a
total number of 58,590,000 shares (the “Share Purchase”)
on the market at a total consideration of approximately
$16,581,000 for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme.
As at 31 December 2019 and 2020, no grant of awards
has been made under the Share Award Scheme.

T FFR

ARARRZE-NFMNA+IH
(TER@ B ) SR A 10 2B Rh &t
3 BEERESEALRTEER
AEBERKRERERIEHER

RBR D R 2R A ([5BIAR
) -g2xg((E2Fg)AR
EMAAEEKRERARNES -

EXREANALTREERNS
R AR {7 2R D At 81 DA Ko B ) R R 15
o Befn EEhET 81 AR B BIAR
AlHEEgER - EEGEE
—EHNLEEFERREENR
FEAAE R RS - A
RETEIHR A B EmE TR
FRAEZSVETNHRFAY
RIE - BE— SR ERRE B
5% SR B AERE K P L KT T
158 A 2 8 (3 RIAR R AT &1 AR Al
HEFrE R ERE R A (D) BB
DEEERBRR A MEHTRN
FEMS%  MEFEHIER
% 52R) - EF & A AL
REETEIRXEAER - BN
ERBRERESN D - &
EEAHERIRAARRRATS
(TimRER ARSI ) B EER
HRBMH BB RZFEABAER

TARZEERBZERD B
EHREFBRANRB AL -

REBEEZT-—NF+/A=+—
BIEEE  KARAAEAE
20,000,000 7T [ % T 18 #5 A% 17
HEETEEEARRRMDHZT
AN RZZE—NAFHA+AHH -

ZEEABLAR () REETEIM S KA
% bR AR {E#916,581,0007C
88 B 4 5158,590,0004% Bfn (A%
HEBEE]) RZE—HER=-ZE
—EF+-fA=+—0  BER
TR SRR 5T B4R (T (R 226 -
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25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

184

(continued)
(b) Share option scheme

Pursuant to ordinary resolutions passed on 28 December
2012, the Company adopted a share option scheme (“the
Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of enabling the
Company to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and
attract resources that are available to the Group and to
provide the Company with a means of giving incentive to,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to such persons who contribute or may bring
benefit to the Group. The Share Option Scheme remains
in force for a period of 10 years from adoption and
expires on 27 December 2022.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of directors
of the Company may at their discretion grant options to
any eligible participant including any employee, director,
consultant, agent, business affiliate, business partner, joint
venture partner, strategic partner of the Company or any
subsidiaries of the Company, or any supplier or provider
of goods or services to the Company or any subsidiaries
of the Company, to take up options at a consideration
of $1 per each option grantee to subscribe shares of the
Company, as may be determined by the directors from
time to time to subscribe for the shares of the Company.
Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company.

On 30 August 2018, 65,000,000 options and 62,500,000
options were granted to directors and employees of the
Group by the Company under the Share Option Scheme
respectively. The directors estimated the weighted average
fair value of each option at the grant date to be $0.12.
The options vested on 31 May 2019 and would then be
exercisable from 30 August 2019 to 29 August 2028.

LEsEE 2 RORS (&)

(b)

BB IR FEET 2
BER-_ZE——F+-A=+N
HEBzERRIE - A2

By —TEm AT 8 ([ SRR A AT
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BREAEAHRES - RAEARE
BEEEBEZER  RAKNRGER
HRBEMZEH RSB BB K
A AR F g 2 A TVEH A - 88
B RE - mER S RIRERE
F o BBARMERTEIBERANE B RERT
TEHE—EBEAR TRZF
T+ A=+tRE®

REBRES  NRRZES
gANBEREARER2EE
(BRARRRSHA R BB
RAZEER - EF - BEH -
A BB E - ZBBH
BECERH  REEBHHEM
[FIAR B ARBERKME QA
RE{EEMEmBRB 2 HEE
(REBSITRET)) R BRE
(REBBREARAZMITTAR
EBRABERE)  URBARXE
Rfn - B BEER TRE AR
BRI T BB ER -

RZE-—N\FNA=F+H AR
AIRIREEIERT 8D Bl R AL
B £ NMEBR 65,000,000 8
% X2 62,500,000 BE A% #E - &
ERR L BHET SR ERES
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25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) Share option scheme (continued)

ZETFFR

On 23 December 2020, 5,000,000 options were granted
to a director of the Group by the Company under the
Share Option Scheme. The directors estimated the
weighted average fair value of each option at the grant
date to be $0.1192. The options vested on 23 December
2020 and would then be exercisable from 23 December
2020 to 22 December 2025.

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses of $596,000
(2019: $8,260,000) were recognised in the consolidated
income statement (note 5(b)) for the year ended 31
December 2020.

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as
follows:
Number of
instruments
TA#HE
Options granted to directors 65,000,000
-on 30 August 2018
RYERBE
-RZE-N\FNA=1H
-on 23 December 2020 5,000,000
Options granted to employees 62,500,000
-on 30 August 2018
BT RS 2 BE
-RZE-N\FENA=TH
Total #85+ 132,500,000
EREERERAR

25 LIEREEC RO (E)

(b) EBRRETEI(E)
RZE-TF+-_A=-+=8"
A ERIE BT S A K E
— &% EH 1 15,000,00017 8 3%
- EEMEISHBRERED
A B piEFS A R B A0.1192
Lo ZEBBRER-_ZS-_ZF
+—A-+ZHBE HEN=
T-_TFE+_A-+=HE-ZF
—HEFt+ A+ HEMA T
1T o

NESEEZRONRAX
596,000 ot ( — T — 7L F
8,260,0007L ) REIZE T =T F
+—A=+—HLEFENGZEE

g R R (FIRE5(b))
() BRERMZHERRIGES
mr
Contractual
Veesting conditions life of options
BEGE  BRESOHR
100% vested on 31 May 2019 10 years
RZE-AFERA=1—H 10F
2HGE
100% vested on 23 December 2020 5 years
“ToTE+AC + H 5%
2HEE
100% vested on 31 May 2019 10 years
RZE-NERA=+—H 105

2HRE
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25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) Share option scheme (continued)
(ii) The number and weighted average exercise
prices of the share options are as follow:

Outstanding at RENHKITE
the beginning of the year

Granted during the year RERFL

Forfeited during the year RERRM

Lapsed during the year RERKK

Exercised during the year REANTE

Outstanding at the end of ~ RERMAKITE
the year

The options outstanding at 31 December 2020

25

TEENT :
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
o INE
FTEE BREHE FHTRE  EREZE
2020 2019
i i
0.236 122,500,000 0.236 127,500,000
0.4 5,000,000 - -
- - 0.236  (2,000,000)
- - 0.236  (3,000,000)
0.236 (49,000,000) - -
0.246 78,500,000 0.236 122,500,000
had —_E2E-ZTEFE+ = A

an exercise price of $0.236 or $0.400 (2019: $0.236)
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of

7.5 years (2019: 8.7 years).

The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for shares options exercised during the year

was $0.41 (2019: not applicable).

EREE RO S (E)

(b) MBRRRERTEI(E)
(i) FBRAE BB RMEFI

I %

T+ —HHERTENE
f% #E 17 {8 /& 0.236 7T 3
04007T (Z & — h &F -
0.2367T) X AN #E ¥ 15 F £
AHBABISF(ZE—H
8 74F)

FACTTEBREETE
& HRohniE A {E R0.41
T(ZF—N%F : TER) °
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25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

25 LIEREEC RO (E)

(continued)
(b) Share option scheme (continued)
(iii) Fair value of the options and assumptions

(b) BARFEREI(E)
(iii) BREZAIAERRBR

ZETFFR

The fair value of services received in return for
options granted is measured by reference to fair
value of the options granted. The estimate of fair
value of options granted is measured based on a
binomial model. The contractual life of the share
option is used as an input into this model.

X B AR A LA SR R BT 2 AR
Bz RnE  H2EMK
LR E 2 AR EE -
REBREZAABKS
BABRAGE - BEREZ
BHFHRELENZE

Grant date

BB

Fair value at measurement date AEERZAR
Vesting period £ a8 A

Share price A&

Exercise price TEfE

Expected volatility TEERR I8

Option life B IR HEF B
Expected dividends TEEAARB
Risk-free interest rate R B &

The expected volatility is based on statistical analysis
of weekly share prices of the Company over the past
years immediately preceding the grant date. The
calculation is based on the assumption that there
is no material difference between the expected
volatility over the whole life of the options and
the historical volatility of the shares of Company.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken into
account in the grant date fair value measurement
of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share option grants.

ERRFEERAT

WER -
23 December 30 August
2020 2018
—EERF —E-N\F
+=A=+=H NA=+H
(=] $0.1192 $0.12
0.1192t 0.127T
- 9 months
9fE A
$0.4 $0.236
0.4t 0.2367T
$0.4 $0.236
0.4t 0.2367T
39% 54%
5 years 10 years
5 104F
Nil % Nil %
Z% L%
0.243% 2.17%

TEE R E RN EREE L

EHABEFEARAE
FEIBAEB AT DT o &t
BRERDBREBEERE
BB SR A 2 B H R 1 R
AR B RAD 2 B 52 IR 08
EMTFEEREZERE -
B A AERIXNELEY
DAERTEREATE -

B IRERS G
o A ERDLE AMER
BH AR ERILREBZ
FRM - ROBREY &
BT IS R -
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26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 26 EBXRKFEE

ERAEART D 2 S E
AEBIRE R SHEKE D B9
BEHAREHOE RSN LA ER
BE)K o AR R F BRI
DRARFE Y ERNE

(@) Movements in components of equity (a)
The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s

individual components of equity between the beginning IEEFT o
and the end of the year are set out below.
The Company /NG
Treasury
sharesheld  Share-hased
Share Share  under share  compensation  Accumulated
capita premium  award scheme reserve losses
BERL
R
10
RA ERRG RGeS
$'000 $'000 $'000
Tr r S
(Note 25(@))  (Note 25(b))
(Bazas(a))  (Ae&E25(b))
Balanceat 1January 2019  R=ZF-hE
-B-RAz&H 373,264 710477 - 6,800 (571,939) 518,602
Changes in equity for2019:  —F-NEERES
Profit and total comprehensive ~ EREFIRZE
income for the year bearetd = = = = 480,120 480,120
Treasury shares held under RER{D R E
share award scheme BENEFRD = = (16,581) = = (16,581)
Fquity settled share-based IEREEY
payment transaction REHZS - - - 8,260 = 8,60
Lapse of share options BRERY = = = (360) 360 =
Balance at 31 December WZE-h&
2019 and 1 January 2020 +ZA=+-HRk
“BCEf
-A-AZER 373,264 710477 (16,581) 14,700 (91459 990401
Changes in equity for 2020: —E-BEEHEEH:
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREBREE
income for the year ey - = = = (5.282) (5,282)
Issue of ordinary shares on RERETERR
placement (note 26(b)i) (FizE26(b)i) 17,500 38,806 - - - 56,306
Equity settled share-based INERESEZ
payment transaction RARFRS - - - 59 - 59
Shares issued on exercise of  {7{ERRRRIER
share options BRI 4900 12,544 = (5,880) = 11,564
Balance at 31 December 2020 R=Z=F5+=f
=t-B2ER 395,664 761,827 (16,581) 9416 (9%,741) 1,053,585
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26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 26 EXRRHEGE)
(b) Share capital (b) KA
(i) Issued share capital (i) BRTRAE

Number of
ordinary
shares Amount

Epiliectc s
'000 $'000
T TIT

Ordinary shares of $0.10 each: HREE0.10TZ

ZER
Authorised: JETE -
At 31 December 2019 and 2020 R-ZE—-LER
—TEF+R
Er=[g 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE -
At 1 January 2019, R-ZE—NF
31 December 2019 and —A—B-
1 January 2020 —T-NF+=A
=+—HK
—E-THF
—H—H 3,732,638 373,264
Issue of ordinary shares RECAREE T TE @A
on placement (note (ii)) (BfFE(D) 175,000 17,500
Shares issued under RIRIE AR ST 81257 T
share option scheme (note (i) HIRR 1 (PR Ciii)) 49,000 4,900
At 31 December 2020 RIE_ETF
+-—A=+—H 3,956,638 395,664
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TEkmE AR RBRKERD
dividends as declared from time to time and are BHEMRERENRE - I F
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the BERARAREHLEZER
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with —ERERR -FIBELBE
regard to the Company's residual assets. BEARRRFGEETTE

BREHAL -

—E-TEER ESERERAT 189
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HAEAERRIL)

(b) Share capital (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Share issued on placement

The Company completed the placing and
subscription, on 27 August 2020 and 28 August
2020 respectively, of 175,000,000 additional shares
at $0.33 per share for a total cash consideration
of $57,750,000. The share capital amount was
approximately $17,500,000 and share premium
arising from the issuance was approximately
$38,806,000, net of share issuance costs. The share
issuance costs mainly included share underwriting
commissions and other related costs, which were
incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance
of the new shares. These costs amounting to
$1,444,000 were treated as a deduction against the
share premium arising from the issuance.

Shares issued under share option scheme

On 30 October 2020, share options were exercised
to subscribe for 49,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at a consideration of $11,564,000, of
which $4,900,000 was credited to share capital
and $6,664,000 was credited to share premium.
$5,880,000 was transferred from employee option
reserve to the share premium accounts in accordance
with policy set out in note 1(p)(ii).

(b) BA&(E)

(ii)

(iii)

RERBTHZER
KRB DRR T _FF
NA-+ttBR-_ZT-F
FNA-_+tN\BEXERE
X 3285 175,000,000 A% 8 5
fgfn - BRVEER0.337T -
#3154 X {8 & 57,750,000
L e WAX & BH A
17,500,000 7T * B B 15
BT BTEER
fi% 15 & 18 49 /& 38,806,000
T MO BEITRAETESR
ERHBHEMAS REMmA
BRA - BEITHROE
BEEENEERA 2%
BN 5 1,444,0007T @ fR1E
BOEEMNBRG EEARN
o ©

BEBRESBIRTHRG
RZE_ZEF+A=+
H - BREEITEINRE
49,000,000 & A~ A 7] & 1@
B - B & 11,564,000
I E A 4,900,0007T 2 &t
ABA K 6,664,000 7T 2 51
AB& {7 % & - 5,880,0007T
EAREIEE1(p) (i) PRSI R
REEBREREE AR
iR ERR -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (SAB TSI + SHERERIN)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

0}

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

T FFR

Share premium
The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

Special reserve
The special reserve arose from the reverse acquisition
in December 2004.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of operations outside Hong
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 1(u).

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for
foreign investment enterprises, a portion of the
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the
PRC is required to transfer to the statutory reserve.
The amounts of profits transferred to the statutory
reserve are determined by the board of directors
of the subsidiaries according to the articles of
association. The reserve is restricted to use and is not
available for distribution.

Treasury shares held under share award scheme

Treasury shares held under share award scheme
represents the shares purchased by the Group that
are not yet granted to directors and employees of the
Company that has been recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 1(p)(ii). The consideration paid for
the purchase of the Company’s shares is reflected as
a decrease in the equity of the Company.

(9]

mETEERAR

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

IR 1 R (B
BiraBEROERXMAS
BERRDE(RERDEE -

BRI
FRlfEAREE —_ZZTMF
T ANRKEEMESL

RZ#E
RXPEEBRFBRET BN
SMOEB M B REE
MIFTBIMNEZER - [ )D
RBHIFE1(U) B R SRR
BRI o

EERE

REERINBRELED
MEZRLER - A&E
RPBEEENHERAN
BB 0 3 N 7R B B 0K O
B BREATHEN L
NEBEHNBRANES
ERESRRAUETE - #
BREXZRHATER
1B °

RERGRBABEEN
EERS

RIRA D B SR A Y
E 77 B fn 5 AN & H PR B
A BRARTARAE
ENEER  XYEREIK
IR (BRE 1 (p) (i) PER 4R
Ve BUR R A
BEARE RN
RERBR SRR A R
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26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

192

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(vi) Share-based compensation reserve
The share-based compensation reserve represents
portion of the grant date fair value of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Company
that has been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments
in note 1(p)(ii).

(d) Distributability of reserves

The Company's reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders comprise share premium and accumulated
losses which in aggregate amounted to approximately
$649 million as at 31 December 2020 (2019: $602
million). Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company
is available for paying distributions or dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its memorandum
and articles of association and provided that immediately
following the payment of distribution or dividends, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. In accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association, distributions shall be
payable out of the profits or other reserves, including the
share premium account, of the Company.

26 BEAXNREHEGE)
(0 REMERARGE)
(vi) BB

BOHFMEEERTAR
AR B 2 REFTRBRE
ZEHBHAAEZ
7 EAREBLHTEE () (i)
AR A 73 BB 2 ST R
2GR T IAMER -

(d) "D IKERE

AAE MR T IR 2 RS
i mE R RiTEE R
=F+-A=1+—H&£H6.49
B(ZZ—N%F : 6.02187T) °
REFRSEE A REKIER]) -
KRR ZBRGRE]BEDIR
SIEARBIRE FIRE  HEZD
kMR BAT A A RIEME
BAEEMEZRTE  MAEER
BE DR MOR B AL BAE - AR E)
R AR EBBIEREEDEE
o MEBEADR ZEHETRA
Bl RARZ o IREM & FI SR E

b - BRARRZRNEE
ARAPEEER
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26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 26 EXRKRfHEE)
(e) Capital management (e) BAERE

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
a net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes interest-
bearing loans and borrowings), less cash and bank
balances. Capital comprises all components of equity, plus
net debt.

During 2020, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2019, was to maintain the net debt-to-capital ratio
at an appropriate level. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group will consider and may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return
capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell
assets to reduce debt.

The net debt-to-capital ratio (as define above) was 0.82 as
at 31 December 2020. The Group was at net cash position
as at 31 December 2019.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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27 ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 27 WEEME AR

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 5
November 2019, GZ Hans, acquired 99% equity interests
in SHDY, a company established in the PRC at a cash
consideration of RMB10,265,335. The acquisition was
completed on 10 December 2019.

The goodwill reflects synergistic effect with the Group’s future
filling station business and provision of terminal and storage
facilities and services for liquid petrochemical products business
as Group's strategy is to extend its principal business. None of
the goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group’s assets
and liabilities on 10 December 2019, the completion date of
the acquisition:

BEARA-ZTE—NF+—ARHEH
BEEHE ENEBREEESER
(AR BRI AR)) BI99% A + IR
&REAARK10,265,3357T ° Wk
R-ZB—NE+-A+HZK -

7 4 L7 R (B8] R 2R ) 00 A S A K
R{EREBOLCERNBERTFRIE
RIRSEGREENBRME - BHR
AEBRERMRETERR -
R E N AER A

W E B AR BN = F — A+
A+A(EREERMHAERAR
BATHE -

$'000
T

Property, plant and equipment (note 10)

W B KR (FIRE10)

1,211

Inventories FE 74,910
Trade and other receivables H 5 & E A ERGRIA 99,559
Cash and cash equivalents RekReLEIAR 92,941
Trade and other payables B 5 M EAMERFRIA (32,021)
Lease liabilities HEBE (1,139)
Current tax BNEATR IR (932)
Amount due to the Group B AREBFRIA (227,731)
Total identifiable net assets ABRFEERE 6,798
Goodwill s 4,729
Non-controlling interests arising from IREM B AR EAER

acquisition of the subsidiary FEFE AR i A (68)
Total consideration HRAME 11,459
An analysis of net cash outflow in respect of WHEETRAIR % HF 58

the acquisition is as follows: DT -
Cash consideration paid BEREeNRE 11,459
Amount due to the Group eSS BFRIA 227,731
Less: consideration payables B EARE (3,363)
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired B BRERS R FMEER (92,941)
Net cash outflow in respect of the acquisition I HE IR IR &0 558 142,886
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27

28

ZETFFR

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Revenue and profit contribution

The revenue and profit after taxation of $162,790,000 and
$1,680,000 respectively included in the consolidated income
statement were contributed by SHDY from the date of the
acquisition to 31 December 2019.

If the acquisition of SHDY had occurred on 1 January 2019, the
Group's revenue and loss after tax of the continuing operation
for the year would have been approximately $3,147,110,000
and $126,495,000 respectively. These amounts have been
calculated by adopting the Group'’s accounting policies.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and
commodity price risk arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group'’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade receivables and cash and bank balances.

ERRFEERAT

27

28

WEBHIE A= (&)

Wi 3% 55 R &
REWEmR AW S MR E R TS
511162,790,0007T & 1,680,000 7T J3 74
WEHRE T NF+_-_A=1+—
HHEAf A EemR =R -

Wi iE B BRR_E—NEF—A—
B#AE - AIAKBFARELERK
PG YA R ER TR B84 2 B B4
3,147,110,0007t X 126,495,0007C °
ZERARBAEEN S BRG
=

BEREBEERERTAARE

8 -BEeRPlt  FxX . G¥KE
mERERERAEE 2 —REKE
BHEL - ZERARSIAEE M
BEBBRRRER(ATOMERE -

() FERMR
FEERBEXZIEFHERLE
HETMERASEEELNKE
BZRK - AEEZEERBRE

BEREZRBERARR S
MARTTHERR -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 28 MEEMEEREMIAQARBE(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@) Credit risk (continued) (a) EEREKE)

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry and country in which customers operate
and therefore significant concentration of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the balance sheet date, the
Group has a certain concentration of credit risk as 96%
(2019: 63%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group'’s five largest customers.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Trade receivables are due within
30 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances
that are more than 1 month past due are requested to
settle all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience indicate significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases and separate the customer bases
by operation segments.

B 5 BWARR
ZISEIFEEEEZEEHIZA : IE‘E
BEREPZENSEMTE -
#%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁEZﬂ%&léﬂ :
HEPEERRFEEAEEE
En”.}ujljgﬁZEj(H HTiZf:E"
REER  AEBZRAREPHE
BHRYIRTBEZ296%(—F
—NEF 63%)  MAR—EIR

Bz EEEHRR -

HRPAERBBE TEETH

ZEPYGETEBEENE -

MR AT SR P B BIHE K
RSN 2 BAREE S WEE
BEFZERER MEEFEEMR
EEERERECER - EHE
WIEAHELRES ARt =1
BAZIE - B AME B —{E
R L2 &8 RIZAZBUBESR
MERR T BRERER - &%
B —gRrerEsREuE R -

AEBERBER2MEREERS
Bz eBEEBRUCRRZE
BEE MARBREHERERS
A E - BRAREZBERE
EBRERERATREFP DAL
BEEEAFERRER - At

BB IR 2 BRBEEAS
BrREFHEZHERY - WK
REDHE D EPRE -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(@) Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)
The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables:

Neither past due nor impaired 37 28381 2R af &

Neither past due nor impaired 37 2381 2 af Bl &
Less than one month past due @ HA > —1& A

1 to 2 months past due wH—Z@E A
Over 2 months and less than 5 38 HA8 48 R (& A
months past due BLRAEA

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 12 months. These rates are adjusted to
reflect differences between economic conditions during
the period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables during the year is disclosed in note 17(b).

—ZoTHEFH EBRFRERAE

28

BREBREEREMTIAANAMBGE)

(a)

Expected

loss rate

%
%

0.1%

Expected
loss rate

TBHIEER

%

EEAR ()
5 BRI ()
FREGIEBASE FHAR
RE SRR 2 EE R
ZER

Gross
carrying
amount
HERHE(E
$'000
Fr

80,180

Loss
allowance
BB RE
$'000

T

64

Gross
carrying Loss
amount allowance
4R (A B R
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
91,459 -
1,124 -
34 -
2,896 —
95,513 -

EMEEXREE+ _EAZE
RERERAE - HFHEBR
BR USR8 T BB AR M 2 IR
MER - BRI RAK B E
WHIRTERFEYR 2 BRI Z
B MANAGEEE

FRBEREZRUSRR 2 BB
ik EBRMEE17(0)E -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

198

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Cash and bank balances

In respect of cash and bank balances, the Group limits its
exposure to credit risk by placing deposits with financial
institutions that meet the established credit rating or other
criteria. Given these high credit ratings, management does
not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 44% of total cash and bank
balances were deposited with a financial institution in
Hong Kong (2019: 77%,).

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to
approval by the Company’s board when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 28 HEEREERESMIAEAAREBE(E)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) E£REBMERRE)
The following table details the remaining contractual TRINEAER ZIEVTELRE
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's BEREEBZHTAYERF
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on 15 @ ERNES4RAR[ SR
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest (BREBEBEHNTZFE  sknz
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, FENXREENERER - fHEZ
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the MEeEFZH)IRAEERESTEE
earliest date the Group can be required to pay: M2 BHETE ¢

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

More than  More than Carrying More than Carying
Within year  2years amount at Within Tyear  2years amount at
fyearor butwithin  butwithin ~ More than 31 dyearor  butwithin  butwitin  More than 3
ondemand  2years  Syears  Syears Total December on demand 2 years 5 years ember
A=A
-Fhg  BE-F RERE =t-8
HERE  fEREA  BRFR  BBRE B K
§1000 §'000 ) §/000 §1000
S i i n 7l i
Bank loans 1 M309 121918 429610 204071 966908 789,778 %442 105927 31915 33667 91195 702,49
Lease liabilties L 8,259 6,010 5583 35232 55084 33798 5428 27113 m = 8364 8132
Trade and BAREf
ofher payables Ef508 100,255 - - - 10025 100255 128252 - - - 18252 18252
Amountsdveto  EATERES
related parties B 82230 - - - 82230 82230 11298 167448 o - 280406 280,406

402,053 127928 435193 239303 1204477 1006061 343080 276,088 373138 336671 1328977  1,119.289
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(9]

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest
rate risk arises primarily from bank loans. The Group’s
bank loans at 31 December 2020 were issued at fixed
rates and therefore did not expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as

28

BBRREEREMIAAAREBEGE)

(c)

F 2R E B

FlEERAE—HERIAEZ AR
BERARKIFEESREBEATISF
R TR BT SRR o AR
EEFERBREBERERTE
Ko AEERZZE_TF+=H
= +—RAZRITERILZETEF=E
B - Bl RS EmERE

ERAERER o ANEEZ MK
MHEREEEWHIINTXE
()8 °

monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

Interest rate profile

RS

2020
—T-TF
Effective

2019
—T-NEF
Effective
interest rate

BRI

Amount
G|
$'000
T

Amount
T
$'000
T

interest rate
|

Fixed rate borrowings: EEBE:
Lease liabilities HEEE 1.7% - 6.8% 33,798 2.4% 8,132
Bank loans RITER 6.5% - 6.8% 789,778 6.8% 702,498
Total borrowings BEERE 823,576 710,630
(d) Currency risk (d) E¥mEks
(i) Foreign currency transactions (i) HNERZ

AEEEZRNOITFEEE
YA K (ii)7E O K 8 i
AZEREERZERE
XBIDEEERMER
mAREESRER - B
EHRARZEEERZR/E
(=Tl -

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through billings of (i) storage and warehousing
income and (ii) port and transshipment income
that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which they
relate. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily
United States dollars (“USD").

RGBT (BT )) BT
B AR ERAET
HET Y HERSHHAE
G TEA -

As the Hong Kong dollar (“HKD") is pegged to the
USD, the Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HKD and the USD to be
insignificant.
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

ZETFFR

Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of trade receivables and deposits held in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level,
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

All the Group's borrowings are denominated in the
functional currency of the entity taking out the loan.
Given this, management does not expect that there
will be any significant currency risk associated with
the Group’s borrowings.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure
at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposures are
expressed in HKD, translated using the spot rate at
the balance sheet date. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency
are excluded.

Cash and bank balances R e RRITHERR
Net exposure arising from ERREERBEESE
recognised assets and liabilities 7 /SRR AYE

ERRFEERAT

28

BHEREEREMIAQREGE)

(d) E¥mERGE)

(i)

(iii)

ERAEEREE
ERNNBRAEBZIER
BN EBBBEZES
MR R R 73R - AR E
EELREEN AN FE
B UREEXREARE
AN - HE R OF R B A R
MR — (AR SKF -

AEBZHAEEEHNIE
BERZERBZNEER
HE - At - EEEL A
BERAKEEZEEG®EE
EREAZEERR

AEFENEERR
TRIMAKREREER
EERNEHERYNES
BNz BB 2 B E
REEHREMEEZE
BERBRFFE - BIE25IZ
A RREREEEZE
REBBABTLIR - A
BIEE L BINEBI R
RRAEEZERSIH
ZER -

185,120

760,233

185,120 760,233
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Commodity price risk
The Group is engaged in trading of oil and petroleum
products. Prices of oil and petroleum products are affected
by a wide range of global and domestic factors which are
beyond the control of the Group. The fluctuations in such
prices may have favourable or unfavourable impacts on
the Group.

(f) Fair values
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value
Fair value hierarchy
The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

e Llevel 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

28

HHRBEEREMTIAEAREGE)

(e)
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AEENREESTHBARAME
M o Bl KR AHE RN ERZ D
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() ROREBEHEZEHMEE
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RAERER
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AEZARE UREE
B BHmEEF 3%
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 28 BEEBREEREMIBAAREE)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(f) Fair values (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the only financial
instruments of the Group carried at fair value were
other investments (See note 14) (2019: Nil). These
instruments are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis and their fair value measurements fall into Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy described above.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

which they occur.

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not

f) DREGE)

(i) BRAKRBEFEZSREE
REBEE)
NABEBEKE)
RZZE_ZFTF+ A
=t+—H  KEEME—I
NAEYEMNES T AT
ERMITE (R ME14) (=
T-NF T -ZELH

Iﬁi%%@ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ
SWHIA FRBEIIIESE

45 o
B2+ A
=t+—BULEE F—HK
BME_—HrBAEEGR
RS =R A SE
oo AEBZHEER AN
AEmy REBERA
E%A$ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ2i

ﬁﬁ%ﬂIﬂZﬂ%%ﬁ

materially different from their fair values as at 31 HER_ZE_TFR_

December 2020 and 2019.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair values of other investments are determined
with reference to the fair value of the underlying
financial assets which are market unobservable.

“hEtZA=+— HZ
NABEAEBREER -

BEREIBRARETEZ
Bt
HiRE 2 2R ETI2R
HRATREEZRAAE(R
M T ARSI ETE

The movement during the year in the balance of FIBRARBEAEBREHRZ

Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows:

Unlisted equity securities:

At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019

and 1 January 2020

Payment for purchases

At 31 December 2020

Financial assets measured at FVPL:

At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019

and 1 January 2020

Payment for purchases

Changes in fair value recognised in profit or

loss during the year

At 31 December 2020

—ETFFR EDERERAT

FREBMT :
$'000
Tt
JEETRRAE S
R-_Z—h&—A—8 -
—Z-NF+=-—A=+—H
&—?—?fﬁ H E -
BEIE 118,557
ﬁ_$_7¢+ B=+—8H 118,557
BARBERABRZ
SREE :
Rn—E—hF—H—A8"
—ZT-AF+-A=+—H
&—?—?Eﬁ H El -
HBE IR 52,756
ENNERERY
NREEE (3,354)
RZE_EF+_A=+—H 49,402
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(f) Fair values (continued)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

The gains arising from the remeasurement of the
financial assets measured at FVPL are presented in
the “Other income” line item in the consolidated
income statement.

29 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessor
The Group leases out certain dock and storage facilities under
operating leases.

Rental and storage income earned during the year was
approximately $120 million (2019: $118 million). The leases are
negotiated for a lease term of 1 to 9 years (2019: 1 to 3 years).
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivables as follows:

28

BBRREEREMIAAAREBEGE)

) DREGFE)
() BROAREBEHEZERMEE

REE#E)
EREIBRAAEFEZ
BR (&)

EFFTERARERAR
BnZEREEEEZHE
RiEaBERAZ Hidk
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29 EEHERH
REBERHBEA

AEERBEEREHEETEAR
B 7 2R o

FRAMBRZASREFERAOE
1208 (ZZE—NF - 1.18(87L) »
METNRBR—Z2NLF(ZTE—NF:
—EZF) 2 FHHITRRE o xEA
EREaEkREE -

AEERIBE TR HE 2 EEHERIK
ZARREERSERENT

Within one year —F RN 19,614 54,444
After one year but within two years —FREMFA 4,360 26,133
After two year but within three years MERE=FNK 1,045 3,368
After three year but within four years —FRENFRN 1,045 334
Beyond four years FRIAPYE 4,442 _

30,506 84,279
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30 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2020, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements in
respect of interests in a limited partnership of $103 million (31

December 2019: $156 million) (note).

At 31 December 2019, the Group also had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements in
respect of (i) purchase of an office of $10 million and (ii) filling

station development amounting to $4 million.

Note: The amount represented USD13 million (2019: USD20
million) (equivalent to $103 million (2019: $156 million))
for subscription for limited partnership interests in a limited
partnership (“the Limited Partnership”) as a limited partner. The
purpose of the Limited Partnership is primarily achieving capital
appreciation and participating primarily through investments in
equity and equity-related securities, mainly in companies based
in Asia-Pacific and Europe and portfolio funds with a similar
investment focus. The business of the Limited Partnership will
be conducted and managed by one single general partner (the
“General Partner”), who have exclusive responsibility for the
operation of the Limited Partnership and the management
conduct and control of its business and affairs and shall make all
investment decisions on behalf of the Limited Partnership. The
limited partners of the Limited Partnership, including the Group,
shall take no part in the operation of the Limited Partnership or
the management or conduct of its business and affairs except
with the written consent of the General Partner. Details of this
transaction were set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 12 April 2019 and 17 May 2019. At the date of this
report, the Group's subscription for limited partnership interests

in the Limited Partnership has not been completed.

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered into

the following material related party transactions:

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel represents
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7.

None of the above related party transactions falls under the
definition of connected transaction or continuing connected

transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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32 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Pursuant to an announcement dated 29 August 2018, the
Company and a third party entered into a sale and purchase
agreement on 22 August 2018 in which 100% equity interest
of GD (Panyu), with 92% held by the Group, 7% held by
Good Ocean Enterprises Limited and 1% held by Guangdong
Lian Ying Petro Chemicals Company Limited), together “the
Sellers”, was conditionally agreed to be sold to a third party
(“the Purchaser”) namely Guangzhou Gas Group Company
Limited (“the Transaction”) at a total consideration of RMB1.56
billion (equivalent to $1.77 billion).

GD (Panyu) owned XHIT and major business activities were
provision of terminal, transshipment, warehousing and storage
activities carried out in Panyu, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"). The Transaction was approved by independent
shareholders on 8 October 2018.

Pursuant to an announcement dated 28 May 2019, the Group
has completed the sale of its equity interest in GD (Panyu)
for a cash consideration of RMB1.44 billion (equivalent to
approximately $1.63 billion).

The management assessed that the criteria for the classification
of the disposal group held for sale were fulfilled prior to 31
December 2018 based on the fact and circumstances specific
to the Transaction. The assets related to GD (Panyu) have
been presented as assets of a disposal group classified as held
for sale in aggregate in the consolidated balance sheet as at
31 December 2018 and a single amount in the consolidated
income statement was presented in respect of GD (Panyu)’s net
profits for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The consolidated profit from the discontinued operations is set
out below.

32
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Loss for the period from discontinued operations RS R AN 1R (73,079)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations HER IS RIS 1,307,768
1,234,689
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32 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATION 32 {EHEMNSERKIIEEER ()

(continued)
(a) Analysis of the results of discontinued operations in (a) HES(ER)EHMRLEEE
relation to GD (Panyu) B

Revenue WA 3 13,477
Direct costs and operating expense BERANEEER (69,999)
Gross loss B8EF (56,522)
Other income E Aotz 4 437
Administrative expenses 1T E A (14,756)
Loss from operations ReEEE (70,841)
Finance costs IR IDN 5(a) (2,374)
Loss before taxation BRELATE R 5 (73,215)
Income tax FTiSt 6(b) 136
Loss from discontinued operations RS LR E (73,079)
Attributable to: AR AL e
Equity shareholders of the Company AN 5 (67,233)
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR I S (5,846)
(b) Analysis of the cash flows of discontinued (b) HHES(ER)BRAMNARILEEE
operations in relation to GD (Panyu) B2REREDI

Net cash generated from operating activities & 2%;EB) TSR 4548 3,398
Net cash generated from investing activities 1% & /BB TSR 4548 3,880
Net cash used in financing activities MEEBFTAE ST (482,809)
Net cash used in discontinued operations AR AR 2 FRET R IR 6 F 58 (475,531)
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32 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATION 32 {EHEMNESERKILEEER )
(continued)
() Analysis of the assets and liabilities of GD (Panyu)

(0 BEERINEEREEIN:

208

At 28 May
2019
RZZE—NF
EAZ+NHR
$'000
T
Property, plant and equipment e e ] 205,584
Interests in leasehold land held for own use  #HEE A2 FAE L gz 37,816
Trade and other receivables B 5 &AM FEWFIE 1,728
Tax recoverable AT ERIE 515
Cash and cash equivalents R kReEFHEEE 6,621
Other payables and accruals HAbEMFIANETIRER (9,805)
Deferred tax liabilities FERIEEE (2,829)
Net assets disposed of It EEEFE 239,630
Gain on disposal of discontinued HEARLKEER
operations: W
Considerations received in cash RSBz K E 1,631,464
Net assets disposed of FtEEEFE (239,630)
Non-controlling interests el 19,170
Capital gain tax on gain on disposal HEWREENEARFIER (140,139)
Release of reserve upon disposal HE R B B 85,880
Other costs directly attributable to SR EE R E A
the disposal BEERAR (48,977)
Gain on disposal B W E 1,307,768
Net cash inflow arising on REMELENERS
the Transaction RAFRE
Consideration received in cash AR & X EL 2 KB 1,631,464
Consideration received in 2018 —E-NFERRE (815,732)
Capital gain tax on gain on disposal B ERREENERFEH (140,139)
Cash and cash equivalent disposed of FEERE EREFHEIER (6,621)
Other costs directly attributable to HERELAREM
the disposal BEENA (48,977)
Net cash inflow WEMANFEE 619,995
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33 COMPANY-LEVEL BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

33

R-B-—2F+=-A=+—-HWAH
EEEEEER

Non-current asset
Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets
Amount due from subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Amount due to a subsidiary

Net current assets/(liabilities)
NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

FRBEE
iSEEIE NI
REBEE
JFE W2 B B8 R R FRIR
ReFREFEREB
REAE

HAb R FIR R AR E A
FE I — KT8 A Rl R0

RBEE (AR FE
EERE

EXREE
PR

G
HER

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

29 March 2021.

Yang Dong
BE
Director

EF

—ZoTHEFH EBRFRERAE

1,051,489 1,051,489
689,930 6,561
12,854 747,690
702,784 754,251
1,578 1,208
699,110 814,131
700,688 815,339
2,096 (61,088)
1,053,585 990,401
395,664 373,264
657,921 617,137
1,053,585 990,401

KRB —F=ZA-+NHEEZEFSE
ol RARRE T3 o

Liu Zhijun
ZE=E
Director

EBEF
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34

35

210

HAEAERRIL)

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2020, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Vand
Petro-Chemicals (BVI) Company Limited, which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce
financial statements available for public use.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET
DATE

(a)

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the grant of
243,763,800 share options to Mr. David An, a substantial
shareholder and an executive director of the Company,
by the Company on 23 December 2020 at an exercise
price of $0.400 per share under the Share Option Scheme
was approved by the Company’s shareholders upon the
resolutions passed in the extraordinary general meeting
held on 25 January 2021.

The directors estimated the weighted average fair value of
each option at the grant date to be $0.1049. The options
vested on 25 January 2021 and would then be exercisable
from 25 January 2021 to 22 December 2025.

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses of
$25,571,000 would be recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the year ending 31 December 2021.

The outbreak of COVID-19 has developed rapidly in
2020 and significantly affected entities and economic
activities in varying scales globally. While there have been
more immediate and pronounced disruptions in certain
industries, its impact on the industry in the areas where
we operate has been rather modest during the current
reporting year. Nevertheless, as COVID-19 continues to
evolve, it is challenging at this juncture to predict the full
extent and duration of its impact to the business and the
economy. Up to the date of this report, management has
not identified any areas that could have a material impact
on the financial performance or position of the Group as
at 31 December 2020.

34

35
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36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, and a new
standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2020 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be relevant to
the Group.

36

EEGERBEZE-E_2F+=A
=+ —HIEFEEHMRERZIEET ~ #
FTEAIRRETAER 2T E
HEAMBRERERGER &g
FTEIAEEEMZIABE R —EME]
AR (BB HHRELERDFE1THRIR
BeEw  EREE—_T-_ZTF+_A
=+ —BHIEFEERER - TIAREHR
MR A TR - ZFE RO EER
SEMEE BT - TR RZEEN
To

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after
RT3 B2 &A%
ZEHEREN

Amendments to HKFRS 16, (CEBUERELERDFE16RIEFTA 1 June 2020
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions HICOVID- 19755/ )5 % —E-TFNRA—H

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

BERHEZR Z JEA

Amendments to HKAS 16,

Property, Plant and Equipment: YFE - BERR

Proceeds before Intended Use Vi e
Amendments to HKAS 37, (BEg

Onerous Contracts HERH —EITE

— Cost of Fulfilling a Contract B

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
2020 Cycle

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

—ZoTHEFH EBRFRERAE

(BAMBHREEADFEIRETA -

(BEGHEADE 165 -
— BT BT HY

FHERINEI7HRAEET A -
ol

(BAMBHREL)_F—
—EoTFERERFENE

1 January 2022
—F-_—_%—HF—H

1 January 2022
—E-_F—AF—H

1 January 2022
—E-_F—H—H

NEZE 1 January 2022

- -F—A—H

AREBRIEFEVIRERREZEFH
ROFE - 2581 - AEERB SR
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Five Year Financial SUmmary

hEHBEBRE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLFE
2016 2017
ZE-RF ZT—LF
(Restated) (Restated)

(&5 (&3]

$'000 $'000
T T
RESULTS ES
Continuing operations  HEKE XK
Revenue A 98,116 110,712 141,556 314,845 2,481,906
Loss before taxation R AEE (106,820) (68,298) (89,516) (127,824) (38,342)
Income tax PSR - - (9.099) (3,552) (994)
Loss for the year FRER (106,820) (68,298) (98,615)  (131,376) (39,336)
Discontinued operations #& 1F /8% %%
Profit for the year FEREHH 27,512 70,892 35,164 1,234,689 -
(Loss)/profit for the year R (&), &F (79,308) 2,594 (63,451) 1,103,313 (39,336)
Attributable to: FE1h -
Equity shareholders of the AR GIEE
Company (75,611) 355 (62,406) 1,108,620 (40,095)
Non-controlling interests  JF¥ERR 1z (3,697) 2,239 (1,045) (5,307) 759
(79,308) 2,594 (63,451) 1,103,313 (39,336)

At 31 December
R+=A=t+—H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE

Total assets BEBE 1,283,331 1,315,233 1,954,760 2,074,490 2,020,480
Total liabilities BEeE 1,289,830 1,306,835 2,039,142 1,120,770 1,034,251
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(Ak)FE (6,499) 8,398 (84,382) 953,720 986,229
Non-controlling interests ~ FF%ARHEZS 15,729 19,154 (7,590) 15,095 17,112
Total equity/(deficit) RARREELR

attributable to equity %/ (B4)
shareholders of the

Company (22,228) (10,756) (76,792) 938,625 969,117
Total equity/(deficit) fatEs /(B4 (6,499) 8,398 (84,382) 953,720 986,229
Note: The presentation of comparative information as at and for the years ~ Mfizt : RZZE—R"FR-_FT—+tF+-A=+—
ended 31 December 2016 and 2017 has been restated to show the ARBEZZEANLESFELRERKN
discontinued operations separately from continuing operations. 2D ST - BRI EEREBE

IREZRB DT °
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